
 
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Chief Executive 

Torridge District Council 

Riverbank House 

Bideford 
Devon 
EX39 2QG 

 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 

MEETING OF AUDIT & GOVERNANCE  
COMMITTEE 

On: Tuesday 19 July 2022 At: 2.00 pm 

Venue: Caddsdown Business Support Centre - Bideford 

 
Temporary measures during the Coronavirus Pandemic: 

Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in the public forum are advised that 
all Audit & Governance meetings taking place during the Covid-19 Pandemic will be filmed for live or 

subsequent broadcast via the YouTube channel - https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

To: Councillor P Hackett (Chair) 
Councillor R Craigie (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: D Bushby, K Hepple, C Hodson and R Lock 

 
Non elected Members:  Vacancy 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

 

1.   Apologies For Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence for the meeting. 

 

2.   Minutes (Pages 3 - 10) 

 Confirmation of minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 31 May 2022.   

 

3.   Action List (Page 11) 

 To review the action list.  
 

4.   Declaration of Interests  

 Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of 
their interest when the item is considered. 

 



 
 

 

5.   Agreement of Agenda Items Part I and II  

6.   Urgent Matters Brought Forward with the Permission of the Chair  

7.   Estate Management Audit Report (Pages 12 - 24) 

 To receive a verbal update from Head of Communities and Place.  
 

8.   Devon Audit Partnership Update Report (Pages 25 - 29) 

 To receive the report from Paul Middlemass Devon Audit Partnership.  

 

9.   Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 (Pages 30 - 145) 

 To receive a report and presentation from Section 151 Officer.  

 

10.   Grant Thornton Update Report (Pages 146 - 159) 

 To receive a report from Grant Thornton.  

 

11.   Final Accounts Findings Report - Grant Thornton (Pages 160 - 200) 

 To receive a report from Grant Thornton.  
 

12.   Contract Waivers - Annual Report (Pages 201 - 210) 

 To receive a report from the Section 151 Officer.  
 

13.   Forward Plan (Page 211) 

 To review the forward plan. 
 

14.   Exclusion of the Public  

 The Chair to move: 
 
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 

disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 10 
of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 

15.   PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  

16.   Verbal Update on Emerging Risk  

 To receive a verbal update from the Section 151 Officer.  
 

 Meeting Organiser: Karen Hewlett - Democratic Services 
 

 



1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE MEETING 
 

Caddsdown Business Support Centre - Bideford 
 

Tuesday, 31 May 2022 - 2.00 pm 

 
PRESENT Councillor P Hackett (Chair) 

 
 Councillor R Craigie (Vice-Chair) 

 

 Councillors D Bushby, K Hepple, C Hodson and R Lock 
 

 
ALSO PRESENT D Heyes - Finance Manager (Section 151 Officer) 

 P Middlemass - Devon Audit Partnership Manager 

 A Squire - Devon Audit Partnership 

 J Masci - Key Audit Partner, Grant Thornton 

 T Vanstone - Senior Electoral & Democratic Services 
Officer 

 K Hewlett - Electoral and Democratic Services Officer 

   
 

1.    APOLOGIES  
 

No apologies were received for the meeting.  
 

2.    MINUTES  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on the 18th January 2022 were presented.  

 
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Bushby and – 
 

Resolved: 
 

That the minutes be confirmed as a correct record by the Chair. 
 
(Vote: for 4, Against 0, Abstain 2) 

 
3.    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

 

Members with interests were asked to refer to the agenda item and describe the 
nature of their interest when the item was considered. 

 
 

 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

4.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II  
 

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Lock and –  
 

Resolved: 
That the agenda as circulated be agreed. 
 

(Vote: For, unanimous) 
 

 
5.    URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 

THE CHAIR  
 

There were no urgent matters brought forward. 

 
6.    DAP AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED TO DATE  

 

The Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) Manager provided members with a summary of 
the internal audits completed since the last Audit & Governance Committee.  

 
There were 5 audit reports completed, with the following assurances made: 
 

Substantial Assurance Main Accounting System 
Food Safety 

 
Reasonable Assurance  Building Control 

Strategic Planning 

 
Limited Assurance Estate Management 

 
 
The DAP Manager went on to summarise the main findings. 

  
 

Main Accounting System 
It was confirmed that DAP were content with the arrangements that were in place, 
and the experience of the officers in the team was highlighted.  

 
Food Safety 

The DAP Manager explained this was an experienced team who were focused on 
delivery and meeting standards. It was stated that the team were recovering since 
the Covid 19 pandemic and are on track to meet target dates set out by Food 

Standards Agency.  
 

Building Control  
It was felt that the control framework was effective, as well as the recording and 
processing of applications and planning inspections, with good customer 

satisfaction and no complaints.  The audit went onto consider how the service was 
recovering costs and it appeared to be making a loss of £80-90,000, it was stated 

Page 4



3 
 

 
 

that the service had a very high market share and DAP felt there was some scope 
to review prices.  

 
The Section 151 officer queried if this was after the allocation of overheads and it 

was confirmed it was. The Section 151 Officer went on to clarify what this loss 
represented and there was a discussion regarding building control and it’s market 
share locally.  

 
Members suggested that charges were reviewed so they breakeven (the service is 

not able to make a profit).  The process to review prices was discussed with 
members and the need to consider market sensitivities when reviewing prices was 
also highlighted. 

 
It was suggested that this would be a piece of work that could be built into the fees 

and charges report for the next budget, and this would need to be in consultation 
with the service.  It was questioned if this could be completed sooner - the Section 
151 Officer confirmed this could be done under delegated powers, but it was felt 

this would be too big a commitment for the team in this financial year.   
 

Strategic Planning  
The DAP Manager confirmed they were impressed at the monitoring and reporting 
in place for the delivery of strategic objectives. 

 
The impact of budget constraints on taking forward some of the strategic plan 

priorities was highlighted, along with the response to this.  It was explained there 
was a recommendation to further consider internal and external strategies and 
other partnership agreements that may impact on the council’s strategic plan.  

 
Estate Management   

The DAP Manager explained why a limited assurance level had been reached and 
provided members with some background to the previous audit work completed in 
this area.  The impact of recent recruitment issues were highlighted for members 

and the DAP Manager directed members to the recommendations in the report. 
 

The DAP Manager then asked for questions.  
 
There was a further discussion regarding reviewing fees for Building Control and 

the impact of any changes.  It was asked if Audit & Governance could put forward a 
recommendation to Community & Resources Committee.  The Section 151 Officer 

confirmed that his team would look at this, with Building Control, as part of fees and 
charges work, and it was confirmed that Community & Resources would sign off on 
this as part of the fees and charges work.  

 
There was a discussion regarding strategic planning and homelessness strategy 

and it was stated that the Household Support Scheme, supported by Encompass, 
should run from October to March 2023.  
 

In reference to the audit on Estates Management member asked the DAP Manager 
to clarify which of the recommendations was high, and it was confirmed that it was 

the action relating to the Asset Management Plan.  

Page 5



4 
 

 
 

 
There was a discussion regarding the Asset Management Plan and the Section 151 

Officer explained how the current recruitment situation is impacting on this piece of 
work.  It was confirmed that an Agency Worker was currently doing some of this 

work, and the previous Estate Manager is also continuing his work on the Asset 
Management Plan.  
 

There was a discussion regarding the action on Health and Safety and members 
felt that this should have been a priority given the potential impact, the DAP Manger 

was in agreement.  
 
Chair summarised the follow up work from the report and requested that Estate 

Management be added to the next cycle of the forward plan and reviewed for the 
next meeting.  

 
It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Lock and –  
 

Resolved: 
That Estate Management be added to the Forward Plan and an update provided at 

the next Audit Committee.  
 
Vote: for, unanimous.  

 
Following the vote there was a query regarding the final action for Estate 

Management. Members asked if a percentage of Health and Safety inspections 
completed were monitored within the QBRs. The Section 151 Officer stated that 
this wasn’t, so members requested it be added.   An action was agreed to follow 

this up with the Strategy, Performance & ICT Manager.  
 

Members noted the report.  
 

7.    AUDIT PLAN 2022 - 2023  
 

The DAP manager summarised the report, which provided members with the draft 

internal audit plan to review and comment on. Members were directed to the chart 
on page 17 which showed the audit plan area by days and the draft audit plan on 
pages 18-20. 

 
The DAP Manager then asked members for their feedback.  

 
Following a query on the climate change audit it was confirmed that this year it 
would have a focus on governance, but that DAP are working with other councils 

on climate change and a comparison measure could be built into the audit process 
if members requested this. It was explained next year could focus more on the 

delivery and projects.  
 
There was a query in relation to Development Management being high risk and why 

this was linked to Issacs Yard in the comments.  It was explained that this risk was 
when the project was still underway and related to the risks of going ahead with the 

development, so was now out of date.  

Page 6



5 
 

 
 

 
Following a discussion regarding the risk calculations it was agreed that an updated 

DAP audit plan would be added to the agenda for the next meeting. The DAP 
Manager and Section 151 Officer also provided members with detail on how the 

audits were judged and explained how decisions were made regarding the focus of 
audits for the year and the resourcing of this work. It was confirmed that the plan 
was a live document and the Committee were able to suggest changes as well.  

 
Specific mention was made of the Housing Options and Housing Renewal audits. It 

was queried whether there was a need to consider this a priority. The Section 151 
Officer confirmed that Housing Options was due to be considered next year.  
 

Members asked how the DAP were managing all audits for councils since the 
pandemic.  It was confirmed by the DAP Manager that the overall KPI was 90% 

audits have been delivered.  
 
Members duly noted the report 

 
8.    ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 2021 - 22  

 

The DAP Manager introduced the annual report and explained that it underpins the 
Torridge governance statement.  

 
It was confirmed Internal Audit were able to provide a ‘reasonable assurance’ on 

the adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority - this was the same as last year’s 
audit and comparable with the vast majority of Authorities in other areas.  
 

Members were directed to the audit opinions for the 2021-22 financial year, which 
underpins the reasonable assurance categorisation.  

 
Members asked for an update regarding the Harbour Board audit and it was 
confirmed that an audit took place on the Harbour Board last year, and the DAP 

Manager provided a summary of the findings for members.  
 

Members raised concern regarding the Cemetery being listed as ‘limited 
assurance’. It was confirmed that this was a separate audit, which took place before 
Grounds Maintenance returned in house. It was stated that there were also 

concerns regarding the operating systems that were being used.  
 

Members duly noted the report. 
 

9.    AUDIT ACTIONS  
 

The Section 151 Officer presented the report to members and provided an update 

on progress with implementing the agreed actions.  
 
Members were informed that at the time of writing the report 19 actions were still 

open and within timescales and 10 actions were late, a total of 71 were completed.  
 

Page 7



6 
 

 
 

The Section 151 Officer highlighted the table on page 39 and explained that this 
listed the late actions and reasons for the delay.  

 
Members queried the action relating to Equality & Diversity and the Section 151 

Officer arranged to contact the Head of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
to clarify the comments.  
 

The DAP Manager provided an update in relation to the action on Risk 
Management and confirmed that at this stage there was still no legal obligation to 

have an independent member on Audit & Governance.   
 
Members raised the action for Estate Management and asked for clarity regarding 

the SAM ELF systems mentioned. The Section 151 Officer confirmed that these 
systems were used to log when energy efficiency surveys need completing and 

routine maintenance is required, it was explained that the system isn’t currently 
being used as effectively as it should be to store the data, so work was underway to 
address this and progressing well.  

 
Members duly noted the report. 

 
10.    GRANT THORNTON UPDATE REPORT  

 

Julie Macsi, Key Audit Partner for Grant Thornton, presented the audit progress 
report for 2021 financial year and planning for the 2022 audit.  

 
Discussion focused on the 2020-2021 audit sign off work, which was now 14 
months overdue.  

 
Chair clarified the minutes from the last meeting with the Key Audit Partner and 

noted his disappointment that there had been no communication from Grant 
Thornton since the last meeting to advised why the accounts were not signed off.  
 

The Key Audit Partner apologised for any miscommunication and recognised there 
was a significant delay since the advice at the last committee. It was stated that this 

delay was a result of a capacity issue for the auditor and her team and nothing was 
outstanding from the Council.  
 

The Key Audit Partner provided a summary of why there had been such a delay 
and an overview of the remaining work to be completed was provided for members. 

It was stated that a meeting was arranged for next Wednesday to complete the 
work for the 2020-21 audit to be signed off. The Chair requested confirmation from 
the Section 151 Officer following this meeting.  

 
Members queried what impact this delay would have on the remaining audits – it 

was explained that there were currently 3 set of accounts open and unsigned. The 
Key Audit Partner stated that the timetable / planning for the 2021-22 audit 
remained in place. It was confirmed the team would be on site in July to start the 

detailed work on the 2021-22 statements. It was confirmed that a report would then 
come to the September committee meeting.  

 

Page 8



7 
 

 
 

Members had sympathy with the situation but still felt it was unacceptable situation 
for an organisation the size of Grant Thornton. It was felt that communication with 

the Council could have been better, and that expectations could have been better 
managed. It was requested that this be addressed going forward.  

 
The Key Audit Partner agreed to take onboard feedback from the Committee and 
suggested that a calendar of monthly meetings be set up with the Section 151 

Officer going forward.  
 

It was agreed that the Key Audit Partner would attend the next Audit & Governance 
Committee meeting in person - this would also provide the opportunity to have an 
update meeting before the Committee to address any matters of concern. 

 
Chair summarised the concerns of the Committee and members noted the report. 

 
11.    GRANT THORNTON EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN  

 

The Key Audit Partner for Grant Thornton presented the audit plan for 21-22, which 
provided members with an overview of the planned work and timings.  It was 

confirmed that the field work would commence this July.  
 
The report aims to communicate the key focus areas and what Grant Thornton 

designate as the significant risks - some of these are presumed and are across all 
Local Authorities and some would be specific to Torridge.  

 
The Key Audit Partner explained how these areas are decided and confirmed that 
the areas specific to Torridge were – property plant and equipment and the pension 

liability.   
 

Members duly noted the report 
 

12.    GRANT THORNTON - INFORMING THE AUDIT RISK ASSESSMENT  
 

The Key Audit Partner for Grant Thornton presented the report to members and 

explained this was in relation to the audit for 2021-22.  
 
It was confirmed that management had already provided their responses to the risk 

assessment and Member now had the opportunity to review these responses and  
provide any additional feedback.  

 
Members duly noted the report. 
 

13.    FORWARD PLAN  
 

Chair reviewed the forward plan with members, and it was confirmed the below two 
items would be added to the forward plan for the next meeting:  
 

 The Asset Management Plan 

 DAP update regarding the internal audit plan and risks. 

 

Page 9



8 
 

 
 

14.    EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
 

15.    PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  
 

It was proposed by Councillor Hackett, seconded by Councillor Lock and  
 
Resolved: 

That the meeting move into Part II.  
 

(Vote: For, unanimous). 
 

16.    RISK REGISTER  
 

The Section 151 Officer provided members with a detailed presentation in relation 

to risk. As part of the briefing, it was confirmed that the Audit & Governance 
Committee would hold a scrutiny role in relation to the newly established budget 
group.   

 
 

 
The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and closed at 3.57 pm 
 

 
Chair:  Date:  

 
 

Page 10



ACTION LIST 

Audit & Governance Committee – 31 May 2022 
 

Minute 

No. 

Raised by Action Allocated To Progress Update Status 

6. Cllr Hodson Request that the percentage of 
Health and Safety  inspections 

completed was added to the QBR.  
To be raised with the Strategy, 

Performance and ICT Manager.  

Democratic 
Services 

Raised with the Strategy, 
Performance and ICT.  

Complete 

10. Key Audit 
Partner 

Set up monthly meetings with the 
Section 151 Officer 

Key Audit 
Partner 

  

      

      

      

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 3



 

1 

Internal Audit Report 
 Official  

 – Estates Management 
 

  
December 2021  

Service Objective 

Management of the Council's estate portfolio in 
support of strategic goals. 
 

 

Audit Opinion Direction 
of travel 

Limited Assurance - Significant gaps, 
weaknesses or non-compliance were 
identified. Improvement is required to the 
system of governance, risk management 
and control to effectively manage risks to 
the achievement of objectives in the area 
audited. 

 

  

Assurance Opinion on Risks or Areas Covered 
- key concerns or unmitigated risks 

Level of 
Assurance 

Direction 
of travel 

Poor strategic planning may lead to an inability to deliver core 
services and an escalation in costs. 

- Asset Management Plan. 
- Asset management strategy. 

Limited 
Assurance  

  

Unreliable property information may hinder the effective 
management of the assets. 

Limited 
Assurance  

  
Inefficiency leading to higher service costs. 

- Performance measures. 

Limited 
Assurance  

  
Poor Estate Management may lead to fire, flood or health and 
safety incidents. 

- List of statutory inspections. 
- Condition surveys. 

Reasonable 
Assurance  

  

Ineffective financial control may lead to higher costs or a 
misstatement within the Authority's accounts. 

Substantial 
Assurance 

  
These areas / risks combine to provide the overall audit assurance opinion. Definitions of the assurance opinion ratings 
can be found in the Appendices. The observations and findings in relation to each of these areas has been discussed 
with management, see the "Detailed Audit Observations and Action Plan" appendix A. This appendix records the 
action plan agreed by management to enhance the internal control framework and mitigate identified risks where 
agreed  

 

 

Introduction 

Local Authorities manage a portfolio of land and buildings which are integral to their strategic planning and their ability to deliver services. In recent years, financial 
pressures and the real term cuts have placed ever greater importance on the effective management of these assets and the streamlining of the portfolio itself. 

Many authorities have been forced to sell off surplus land, buildings and public spaces in order to reduce costs whilst generating capital receipts that can be held in 
reserve or used to offset budget deficiencies. The introduction of the Localism Act 2011 makes provision for a different approach, namely the establishment of Local 

P
age 12

A
genda Item

 7



 

2 

Authority Trading Companies (LATC) which can be used to generate surplus income. This approach, taken by some authorities, carries greater risk and reward but 
has allowed them to increase their portfolio of properties. 

Within Torridge District Council, the Property and Procurement team are responsible for the management of the Authority's land and buildings and for ensuring that 
the property terrier (the Authority's principal database of land and buildings) is kept up to date. The Major Projects and Estates Manager had a budget of £1.7m and 
Income of £1.1m for 2021/22. The previous audit of this area was concluded in January 2020 and provided an audit opinion equivalent to Limited Assurance. 

 
Executive Summary 

Many of the recommendations from our previous audit report of January 2020 have yet to be implemented and a Limited Assurance remains applicable. However, 
we report the new Estate Manager has plans to progress these recommendations and address the areas of weakness within a reasonable timeframe. If that work is 
taken forward, we would expect to raise this Limited Assurance opinion in 2022/23. We do note that some recommendations have been implemented since the last 
audit (supported by the new Estate Manager, and Climate Change Officer) such as the identification and monitoring of Green House Gas emissions, and the 
creation of the Estate Project Management team. We detail below some of our conclusions about this work, and re-state those recommendations that have yet to 
be completed in Appendix A.  

Our previous audit report recommended creation of an Asset Management Plan to maintain and manage council assets to help it move from a reactive to proactive 
approach to estate work. This is not yet in place at present; however, the new Estate Manager is in the process of producing an Asset Management Plan which is 
currently at the information gathering stage. This will include costing the work required over the plan period and ensure budgetary provision is made. It will also 
support work to align with the carbon reduction requirement related to the 2030 Net Zero target. The current intention is for a draft plan to be generated by the end 
of March 2022 and agreed with senior management. While this will now be implemented after completion of the budget setting exercise for the 2022/23 financial 
year, it will ultimately improve future estate management planning.   

Associated with an Asset Management Plan is an aspiration to better align estate management with the corporate priorities. The Estate Manager has noted the 
intention to review current capital assets as he considers the council may be holding too many, to maximise the returns on commercial leased assets, to move to a 
more proactive estate management strategy, and to ensure contracted work secures best value for money. Given that the Strategic Plan is a very high-level 
expression of priorities, we suggest in this report the need for an estate management strategy to express some of those aspirations.   

To support the asset management plan, a single system and database of all work undertaken on all estate assets is needed. Work is planned to consider options to 
introduce one asset management software system and database with support from the IT section as part of a Systems and Practice Review. This was originally 
scheduled to be undertaken during 2021 but has been delayed into this current year. The result is that there are currently several systems used to record 
maintenance and estate management work: 

• The ELF system has details of all assets held by the authority and is used to task a contractor (WPS) to undertake estate maintenance work.  At present the 
ELF system is no longer maintained or accessed by WPS due to IT system compatibility issues, and there is no process to create management reports or to 
monitor estimated versus final costs.  

• Other contractor information is listed on an Excel spreadsheet and input by “Cedar”. This is a rough spreadsheet and not all fields of information are 
maintained, such as final cost of work. The Cedar system does not currently have a property/asset referencing system such that it is difficult to filter spend 
per property. This makes it difficult to compare estimated cost versus final cost to allow suitable challenge and comparison of estimating accuracy.   

P
age 13



 

3 

• Separately, the corporate financial system also details the work orders paid to each contractor but does not list the work undertaken on each specific asset. 
This means it is unable to provide detail on the maintenance tasks and costs undertaken for each individual asset. Review of budget information indicates 
that there is sufficient funding to pay for current maintenance with a reserve maintained for un-expected expenditure.  

• There is no database or single record of the Statutory Inspections required, making it difficult to confirm that all inspections have been undertaken for all 
assets within the required timeframe. This record is currently being compiled. 

 
The Terrier system itself contains all land and buildings owned by the Authority along with the principal interests. We were told that pockets of land considered 
owned by the council are occasionally identified but which are not registered for various reasons. Where identified these instances are rectified by the Legal Team 
in ensuring the land is formally registered. Deed packets are kept both digitally and manually, it is very rare that a packet will need to be retained manually as for 
each physical deed packet there is a corresponding electronic file on the Terrier. Manual records are kept in a strong room which is fireproofed.   

Estate management performance is only reported to members using one key performance on “End to End response repair times. The Q1 QBR states current 
performance is 3.7 days (compared to a year target of 7, and a total for 2020/21 of 15). However, we understand this is based on incomplete information given the 
lack of detail contained in the various systems (see above). The current Q2 performance is reported on the council’s website as 4.2 days although there is no 
update yet for Q3. Some other indicators are used internally, but a broader range of performance indicators will be needed to help identify performance as part of 
the Asset Management Plan. This will also help the council benchmark costs against external sources such as BCIS, which is to be considered in the Property 
Service Review. In the short term, the council is undertaking an Estimated Rental Value (ERV) review to internally benchmark Market Rental level to quantify the 
portfolio gap between ERV and Current Income in addition to having internal targets for the lease activity.  

The Authority currently ensures assets are fully utilised by monitoring vacant units within the let estate. The Estate Manager is in the process of implementing 
changes that will monitor/record vacancy rate on a sq. ft basis both on a building-by-building basis and across the portfolio. In addition to this, the Authority will 
eventually be able to monitor vacancy on an ERV basis to demonstrate lost income and potentially on a holding cost basis. The operational estate is tracked by 
users and the Authority’s various teams. We were told that the built estate tends to be fully utilised unless it is not fit for occupation or being refurbished. Action is 
taken with underutilised assets by looking to let them as soon as possible as part of the Authority’s investment portfolio, by a marketing campaign, with spending 
undertaken if necessary to make the asset more lettable. With occupied estate a decision would be made based on a needs-based decision for occupying/using 
like storage use as an example. If the asset is surplus to requirements both short and long term a review will be conducted on an ad-hoc basis what the options are 
for re-purposing, letting, refurbishing, redeveloping, disposing, and offering to other public sector entities such as Town Councils.  

The council uses a range of different contractors to undertake its maintenance work. There is no overall commercial strategy to consider how to get best value for 
money from this spend or achieve other objectives such as encouraging smaller businesses. WPS are directly tasked via ELF for a significant amount of the 
maintenance work on assets, albeit significantly less now than in previous years (£16k for works in 2021). Providing work directly to WPS is based on a long-
standing relationship and there is no current contract in place with the contractor. This goes against procurement regulations that work above £7,500 should be 
competed. Work provided to other contractors is mainly below the £7,500 threshold with only one quote being required for this type of work.  

The Council is currently in the process of putting together a full schedule of the date of Statutory inspections and setting a five-year maintenance inspection plan. 
The absence of this global list of H&S/statutory inspections means it is difficult to confirm that all inspections have been undertaken. The current arrangement to 
arrange ad-hoc inspections may also reduce the extent to which value for money is achieved if lots of suppliers are involved. The Authority are however looking to 
recruit a Compliance Officer to keep data up to date and tracked accordingly.  
 

P
age 14



 

4 

Our last audit noted there were significant delays in taking forward estate projects. Since that report, a Major Projects Team has been created and is expected to 
have a positive impact on progressing Capital projects more quickly. Removing this work from the Estates team has increased its ability to take other work forward 
more quickly such as the recent successful deliveries of the removal of Torrington Pannier Market Bellcote and resurfacing of the All-Terrain Pitch. 
 
The detailed findings and recommendations regarding these issues and less important matters are described in Appendix A. Recommendations have been 
categorised to aid prioritisation. Definitions of the priority categories and the assurance opinion ratings are also given in the Appendices to this report.  
 
Management is required to agree an action plan, ideally within three weeks of receiving the draft internal audit report.  
 
Written responses should be returned to Lee Elson (lee.elson@devon.gov.uk). Alternatively, a meeting to discuss the report and agree the action plan should be 
arranged with the named auditors. 

 

Value Added 

Internal Audit adds value to the organisation by employing a systematic and disciplined approach to evaluating and improving the effectiveness of risk 
management, control, and governance processes. In this audit we have helped the estate manager in formulating actions to deal with the identified weaknesses.  

 
Issues for the Annual Governance Statement 
The evidence obtained in internal audit reviews can identify issues in respect of risk management, systems and controls that may be relevant to the Annual 
Governance Statement. 
 

Acknowledgements 

We would like to express our thanks and appreciation to all those who provided support and assistance during the course of this audit. 
 

Robert Hutchins 
Head of Partnership 

  

P
age 15



 

5 

Appendix A 

Detailed Audit Observations and Action Plan 

Risk Area: Poor strategic planning may lead to an inability to deliver core services and an escalation in costs. 
Level of Assurance 

  
Limited Assurance  

Opinion Statement: 

The Estate Manager is currently in the process of creating an Asset Management Plan which will support a more strategic and proactive approach to manage 
assets.  

The Strategic Plan found is a very high expression of the council's strategic objectives. Therefore, it is unlikely to provide the necessary strategic direction on how 
the council's estate should be managed to ensure it most effectively supports delivery of the overall objectives in the Strategic Plan. As a result, we suggest there is 
a need for a lower-level document on Estate Strategy that details the council's approach to its assets, how they are managed effectively, how to deliver best value 
for money and how to support strategic objectives.  

No. Observation and Implications Impact / Priority Recommendation Management Response 

1.1 We identified in our last audit that the council does not have a 
current Asset Management Plan and is therefore unable to take a 
proactive approach to managing its assets.  

The Estate Manager is currently creating an Asset Management 
Plan to detail out the work required to maintain its assets, with the 
plan due to be completed by the start of April 2022. This should 
support a more strategic and proactive approach to managing its 
assets.  

High 

A new Asset Management Plan 
should be drawn up, approved 
and published. The new Plan 
should be aligned closely with 

the Authority’s’ Strategic Plan to 

ensure it will support and help 
deliver strategic priorities over 
the short to medium term.  

Recommendation from last 
audit. 

A change in personnel has 
frustrated the production of the 
Strategic Asset Management 
Plan.  However, this is now 
being progressed in the 
background and an internally 
approved Draft has a target 
completion date of end of 
financial year.  End of 
September for it being adopted. 

Action Officer: Estate Manager 
Target Date: 31 March 2022 
and 30 September 2022 

1.2 The Strategic Plan is a very high expression of the council's 

strategic objectives. It is therefore unlikely to provide the 

necessary strategic direction on how the councils estate should 

be managed to ensure it most effectively supports delivery of the 

overall objectives in the Strategic Plan. This suggests there is a 

need for a lower-level document on Estate Strategy that details 

Medium 

Produce an Estate Strategic 
Plan that outlines the intended 
approach to manage assets, 
including rationalising down the 
number of assets and 
maximising the returns on 
commercial leased assets, and 

The Strategic Asset 
Management Plan will 
eventually form three tiers:  
1 - high level strategy.  
2 - delivery action plan.  

P
age 16



 

6 

the council approach to its assets and how to ensure they are 

managed effectively and to deliver best value for money and 

support to strategic objectives. 

 

adopting a more proactive 
approach to asset maintenance.  

3 - detailed asset by asset 
plans and maintain, improve, 
hold, dispose earmarking 

Action Officer: Estates Manager Target Date: 31 March 2023 

 

Risk Area: Unreliable property information may hinder the effective management of the assets. 
Level of Assurance 

 
Limited Assurance 

Opinion Statement: 

A Property Terrier system is in place containing a good amount of property information. Further improvements are possible in terms of the level and accuracy of 
information recorded. Our last audit identified errors relating to some of the postcodes. We will review again in our next audit in 2022-23.  
 
At present, the council does not have one single system and database to monitor and manage its assets. Asset details are on ELF, although there is an issue about 
user ability to maintain the system including deleting or amending assets. Going forward there is planned work to introduce one system and database which will list 
all the council's assets resulting in a more structured way of maintaining them.  
 
From previous audit work it indicates that manual records such as title deeds are held in a securely locked area, we did not test this due to the pandemic.  

No. Observation and Implications Impact / Priority Recommendation Management Response 

2.1 The council does not currently have one single system and 
database to monitor and manage its assets. Asset details are on 
ELF, although there is an issue about user ability to maintain the 
system including deleting or amending assets. Work is planned to 
introduce one system and database on which all council assets 
are to be listed. In terms of the manual records such as deeds, 
we did not check this due to covid-19 restrictions, but previous 
audit work indicates that these are held securely in a locked area. 
 

Medium 

The Estate Manager should 
progress creation of a single 
system and database to hold 
details of all estate assets and 
the maintenance work 
undertaken or planned for them. 

 

We confirmed manual records 
are held in secure fireproof 
vault. 
As discussed, this was in 
process of being reviewed in 
Oct 2021 with an internal IT 
systems review arranged.  
However, this was delayed and 
will now take place in 2022.  
Following which IT will report 
and advise on the best software 
and hardware setup to 
implement to handle the 
services workloads.  This 

P
age 17



 

7 

element highlighted was to be / 
will be included 

Action Officer: Estates Manager
  

Target Date: 31 December 
2022 

 

Risk Area: Inefficiency leading to higher service costs. 
Level of Assurance 

 
Limited Assurance  

Opinion Statement: 

There is one Corporate Performance Indicator report (on end-to-end work times), and the estate manager has some other performance indicators. Working groups 
including the TDC Carbon Footprint group provides ongoing monitoring of assets. However, more Key Performance Indicators supported by a single software 
system and database is needed to help management to assess the value for money they are securing from the work taken place. There is also an opportunity to 
consider the Commercial arrangements to contract work to ensure best value for money is achieved once the new Asset Management Strategy is created.  
 
Periodic benchmarking activity in relation to costs and other indicators are not currently being used against external sources at present but will be addressed during 
the Property Service Review. To help determine the effectiveness and efficiency of Estate Management, Key Performance Indicators will need to be established.  
 
Estate management work at present is provided to companies based on a single quote where works below the £7,500 threshold do not require competing. Noted is 
a relationship with WPS where they are instructed through the ELF system which denotes a commercial relationship. As a result of this not being competed, the 
Council is open to reputational damage and poor value for money.  
 
 

No. Observation and Implications Impact / Priority Recommendation Management Response 

3.1 Best practice performance indicators, known as Property 

Performance Indicators, have not been produced for over three 

years, due largely to resourcing issues. 

The lack of performance indicators may hamper the Authority's 

ability to monitor trends and take corrective measures, and to 

assess the value for money they are securing from the work. 

Benchmarking activity in relation to costs and other indicators are 
not currently being used against external sources at present but 
once the position is reviewed during the Property Service Review 
this will be addressed. Key Performance Indicators will also need 

Medium 

Suitable Performance Indicators 
that assist management in 
gauging and improving its 
performance should be 
implemented.  
 
Recommendation from last 

audit.  

Estates has the ability to 
analyse a number of 
performance indicators to 
monitor the investment 
portfolio, however, this is 
undertaken ad-hoc and not 
routine which means there is no 
longer term trend analysis on 
some measures such as 
vacancy rates.  This is already 
in the process of being 
changed so is regularly 

P
age 18



 

8 

to be established to help determine the effectiveness and 
efficiency of estate management.  

recorded.  We will also track 
income against ERV to set 
internal benchmarks. 
On costs we will move towards 
monitoring cost v estimate by 
improving data inputting.  This 
is in addition to end-to-end 
times which are reported within 
QBR. 
Major project costs are cross-
checked against BCIS stats. 

Action Officer: Estate Manager Target Date: 30 June 2022 

3.2 Estate management work is provided to companies based on one 
quote. These are below the £7,500 threshold and do not require 
competing as a result. There is however a relationship with WPS 
which is given work through the ELF system which denotes a 
commercial relationship. This has not been competed, and the 
council is open to reputational damage and poor value for money 
as well from this work.  
 
Comparing the estimated costs and actual costs needs to be 

investigated with there being a huge difference during 2021 in the 

two columns on the spreadsheet provided for WPS spending. 

Monitoring the works more efficiently will improve work, cost and 

quality. 

 

Medium 

The relationship with WPS 
should be reviewed to ensure it 
is not breaching procurement 
regulations including competing 
work over £7,500.  

Again as discussed. Senior 
Management appointed a 
dedicated Contracts Officer to 
the team to sort this.  The 
immediate priority is working 
out existing major contracts 
which are due to come to an 
end on 31 March 2022.  
Following that she will be able 
to shift more focus to 
formalising this. 

Action Officer: Contact Officer 
Target Date: 31 December 
2022 

P
age 19



 

9 

3.3 There is an opportunity to consider better value for money, and 
quality of service, or other priorities through a contract 

management strategy – for instance, competing more work more 

effectively, having a prime contractor and sub-contractors, or 
systematically encouraging smaller suppliers.   
 
 
 Opportunity 

When the new Asset 
Management Strategy is 
created, there should be 
consideration of the Commercial 
arrangements to contract work to 
ensure best value for money is 
achieved.  
 
 

Please see note above about 
dedicated Contract Officer.  
This position was filled in 
February 2021, so the process 
is already well underway. 

Action Officer:  
Target Date: 31 December 
2022 

 

Risk Area: Poor Estate Management may lead to fire, flood or health and safety incidents. 
Level of Assurance 

 
Reasonable 
Assurance  

Opinion Statement: 

At present the Council does not currently have a global list of statutory inspections for its assets. However, it is currently creating a full schedule of the date of 
inspections along with setting a five-year maintenance inspection plan. Firstly, what this will support is a more systematic approach to putting work out to a 
contractor rather than the existing approach of asking disparate contractors to undertake necessary work. Secondly, this will also reduce the risk of corporate 
memory that is held by a small number of Council Officers.  
 
Condition surveys have recently started to be undertaken to start to obtain a picture of the condition of assets and to help identify immediate or priority work 
required. From the examples received, internal areas aren't listed on the Pollyfield Centre which could suggest the authority is not reporting back internal findings 
which could lead to further damage and/or costs. There is however an aspiration to utilise opportunities to use electronic surveys to remove use of paper forms and 
make details virtual.  

 

 

 

P
age 20



 

10 

No. Observation and Implications Impact / Priority Recommendation Management Response 

4.1 The council does not currently have a global list of statutory 
inspections for all its assets. It is in the process of creating a full 
schedule of the date of inspections and setting a five-year 
maintenance inspection. This will support a more systematic 
approach to putting this work out to a contractor, rather than the 
current approach of asking disparate contractors to undertake the 
work. It will also reduce the risk of corporate memory that is held 
by a small number of council staff. This work is in conjunction 
with creation of the Asset Management Plan, to ensure a full list 
of all maintenance work required for its assets. 

Medium 

The expired contract for the 
Statutory Building Inspection 
should be retendered at the first 
opportunity. 
 
Recommendation from last 
audit.  
 
A global list of all inspection 
requirements should be 
compiled. 
 
 

As discussed, we have agreed 
a team restructure October 
2021 with Senior Management 
and that included the 
appointment of a compliance 
officer. 
 
Ahead of that in the short term 
the Estate Manager will agree a 
capture all spreadsheet and 
task the technical officers with 
helping to populate it and keep 
it up to date. 

Action Officer: Estates Manager Target Date: 30 June 2022 

4.2 Condition surveys are now being undertaken to start to obtain a 

picture of the condition of assets, and to help identify immediate 

or priority work required. It will take time for these to be 

completed. The estate team have expressed an interest in the 

use of electronic surveys (ipads) to remove use of paper forms 

and make details virtual.   

 

Internal areas are listed on the Cricket Club report however they 

aren’t listed on the Pollyfield centre which could suggest the 

authority is not reporting back findings internally which could lead 

to further damage/costs. 

 

Medium 

Condition surveys should be 
promptly undertaken for the 
Authority's buildings and 
remedial actions undertaken. 
 
Recommendation from last 

audit.  

A process of continually 
inspecting and reporting on 
condition has been introduced 
and pro-formas are being 
saved.  This will build an audit 
trail and body of supporting 
documents including actions 
against each asset. 
Your point on one report being 
external only – on occasion we 
undertake external only 
inspections for good reason.  I 
would not want a report to not 
be done because it doesn’t 
include internal.  This is 
standard practice and should 
not be criticised. 

Action Officer: Facilities Manager Target Date: Ongoing 

 

 

P
age 21



 

11 

Risk Area: Ineffective financial control may lead to higher costs or a misstatement within the Authority's accounts. 
Level of Assurance 

 
Substantial 
Assurance 

Opinion Statement: 

The Council has appropriate financial and procurement regulations which are included in the Torridge District Council's constitution. Accounting codes used for 
Estate Management look appropriate and provide good financial information where the Authority has a structure to record costs against the different estate 
elements. The Estate Management Team's financial management is undertaken effectively with support from the Authority's finance team.  
 
The Council's constitution rules outline in clear detail the rules related the any Acquisitions and Disposals with appropriate arrangements in place to value their 
estate which is supported by the Valuation Office Agency.  
 
 

No. Observation and Implications Impact / Priority Recommendation Management Response 

None 

 

 

  

P
age 22



 

12 

Appendix B 

Scope and Objectives 

The audit is intended to provide management with independent assurance that risks associated with Estates Management are managed effectively. 
 
The following key risks have been identified and will form the basis of testing: 
Poor strategic planning may lead to an inability to deliver core services and an escalation in costs. 
Unreliable Property Terrier information may hinder the effective management of the assets. 
Inefficiency leading to higher service costs. 
Poor Estate Management may lead to fire, flood or health and safety incidents. 
Ineffective financial control may lead to higher costs or a misstatement within the Authority's accounts. 
 
To assess how well these risks are mitigated, the scope of testing will include a consideration of: 
The Authority's Strategic and Asset Management Plan's 
The adequacy of the Property Terrier 
The use of resources and how inefficiencies are avoided 
Statutory inspections of Authority owned buildings 
Financial control framework 
 

Inherent Limitations 

The opinions and recommendations contained within this report are based on our examination of restricted samples of transactions / records and our discussions 
with officers responsible for the processes reviewed.  
  

Confidentiality under the National Protective Marking Scheme 

This report is protectively marked in accordance with the National Protective Marking Scheme. It is accepted that issues raised may well need to be discussed with other officers 
within the Council, the report itself should only be copied/circulated/disclosed to anyone outside of the organisation in line with the organisation’s disclosure policies. This report is 
prepared for the organisation’s use.  We can take no responsibility to any third party for any reliance they might place upon it. 

Marking Definitions 
Official The majority of information that is created or processed by the public sector. This includes routine business operations and services, some of which could have 

damaging consequences if lost, stolen or published in the media, but are not subject to a heightened threat profile. 

Official: Sensitive A limited subset of OFFICIAL information could have more damaging consequences if it were lost, stolen or published in the media.  This subset of information 
should still be managed within the ‘OFFICIAL’ classification tier but may attract additional measures to reinforce the ‘need to know’.  In such cases where there 
is a clear and justifiable requirement to reinforce the ‘need to know’, assets should be conspicuously marked: ‘OFFICIAL–SENSITIVE’.  All documents marked 
OFFICIAL: SENSITIVE must be handled appropriately and with extra care, to ensure the information is not accessed by unauthorised people. 
 

 

  
 

P
age 23



 

13 

Appendix C 

Definitions of Audit Assurance Opinion Levels  Definition of Recommendation Priority 

Assurance Definition   

Substantial 
Assurance 

A sound system of governance, risk management and control 
exists, with internal controls operating effectively and being 
consistently applied to support the achievement of objectives in the 
area audited. 

  

High 

A significant finding. A key control is absent or is being 
compromised; if not acted upon this could result in high exposure to 
risk. Failure to address could result in internal or external 
responsibilities and obligations not being met. 

 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

There is a generally sound system of governance, risk 
management and control in place. Some issues, non-compliance or 
scope for improvement were identified which may put at risk the 
achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

  

Medium 

Control arrangements not operating as required resulting in a 
moderate exposure to risk. This could result in minor disruption of 
service, undetected errors or inefficiencies in service provision. 
Important recommendations made to improve internal control 
arrangements and manage identified risks. 

 

Limited 
Assurance 

Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. 
Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk 
management and control to effectively manage risks to the 
achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

  

Low 

Low risk issues, minor system compliance concerns or process 
inefficiencies where benefit would be gained from improving 
arrangements. Management should review, make changes if 
considered necessary or formally agree to accept the risks.  These 
issues may be dealt with outside of the formal report during the course 
of the audit. 

No Assurance 

Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, 
weaknesses or non-compliance identified. The system of 
governance, risk management and control is inadequate to 
effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the 
area audited. 

  

Opportunity 

A recommendation to drive operational improvement which may 
enable efficiency savings to be realised, capacity to be created, 
support opportunity for commercialisation / income generation or 
improve customer experience.  These recommendations do not feed 
into the assurance control environment. 

 

Devon Audit Partnership  Direction of Travel Indicators 

Indicator Definitions 

 

No Progress has been made. 

The action plan is not being progressed at this time, 
actions remain outstanding. 

 

Progress has been made but further work is required. 

The action plan is being progressed though some actions are 
outside of agreed timescales or have stalled. 

 

Good Progress has/is being made. 

Good Progress has continued. 
 

The Devon Audit Partnership has been formed under a joint committee 
arrangement comprising of Plymouth, Torbay, Devon, Mid Devon, South 
Hams & West Devon, Torridge and North Devon councils.  We aim to be 
recognised as a high quality internal audit service in the public sector.  We 
work with our partners by providing a professional internal audit service that 
will assist them in meeting their challenges, managing their risks and 
achieving their goals.  In carrying out our work we are required to comply with 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards along with other best practice and 
professional standards.  The Partnership is committed to providing high 
quality, professional customer services to all; if you have any comments or 
suggestions on our service, processes or standards, the Head of Partnership 
would be pleased to receive them at robert.hutchins@devon.gov.uk 

 

 

P
age 24

mailto:robert.hutchins@devon.gov.uk


 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

1 
 

  

REPORT OF DAP Audit Partnership 

To: Audit & Governance Committee 

Subject: Audit Reports Issued to Date 

Date: 8 July 2022   

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:  To provide a summary of the internal audit 
reports issued since the last Audit and Governance Committee to enable 
members to discuss any matters they wish to raise. 
  

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

The Audit & Governance Committee have requested a regular summary of internal audit reports 
issued. This is to provide an opportunity for discussion and to raise queries related to the reports.  

 
As members receive a full copy of the internal audit report upon release, they are encouraged to 
raise any significant concerns they may have with the Auditor at that time. This summary report 
gives an added opportunity for Members as a group to discuss related matters. 

 
This report includes all final internal audit reports issued to date that have not been previously 
reported to the Committee.  

 
2. REPORT 

A summary of final reports issued to date and not included in previous committee reports is 
included at Appendix A.  

 
There are two audit reports to note: 
 

 Climate Change 

 Treasury Management 
 
We also provide an update on our work with Active Torridge to confirm appropriate controls 
are in place, and confirmation of two grants we have certified.  

 

  
  

3. IMPLICATIONS 
 
Legal Implications 
None. 
 

Financial Implications 
None. 
 

Human Resources Implications 
None. 
 
Sustainability Implications 
None. 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

2 
 

Equality/Diversity 
None. 
 
 
Risk Management 

The Risk Based Internal Audit Plan is designed to provide robust coverage of the key risks faced by 
the Council each year. It is developed in consultation with management and approved by members. 
 
Each internal audit report provides the following key information: 
Assurance level – providing an overall opinion on the audit area. 
Acton plan – including audit recommendations (where applicable) and management responses. 
 
Reported issues are assigned a priority rating of high, medium, or low, based on the perceived 
impact and likelihood as established within the corporate risk matrix. 
 
The report may also include ‘opportunity’ findings, which are suggested courses of action perceived 
to add value and included for consideration. 
 
Low priority or housekeeping matters are reported separately to operational management during 
the draft audit stage. 
 
Reporting of progress to the Audit & Governance Committee to implement internal audit actions is 
the responsibility of the Finance Director / S151. 

 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
This report complies with the Audit Committee terms of reference and the Audit Procedures 
Manual.  
 
Ward Member and Leader Member Views 
Councillor Philip Hackett, Chair of Audit & Governance, commented “The Internal Audits Reports 
contribute to the Council’s robust governance arrangements.”    

 
4. CONCLUSIONS 

The following is a summary of the four assurance levels currently used, along with the audits that 
have been awarded each level: 
 

Opinion Audit 

Substantial Assurance 
‘A sound system of Governance’ 

Treasury Management 

Reasonable Assurance  
‘Some scope for improvement’ 

Climate Change 

Limited Assurance 
‘Improvement is required’ 

 

No Assurance 
‘Immediate action required’ 

NA 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

3 
 

 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Committee are asked to: 
 

Note the reports issued in this reporting period and raise any queries, suggestions or proposals 
relating to the internal audits in this report. 

 
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
 Consultations:  

 
Steve Hearse, Chief Executive Officer 
Staci Dorey, Head of Legal and Governance and Monitoring 
Officer 
Councillor Philip Hackett, Audit and Governance Committee Chair 
 

 Contact Officer:  
 

David Heyes, Finance Manager & S151 Officer 
Robert Hutchins – Head of Devon Audit Partnership 
Paul Middlemass – DAP Audit Manager 

  
Background Papers: 

 
Audit files 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 27



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

4 
 

Appendix A 

 
Overview of Reports Issued not previously reported to Committee 

 

Treasury Management 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Substantial  
 
No of management actions made / agreed:  One Medium 
 
Summary    

The Annual Treasury Management and Investment Strategy was approved by Full Council. The 
Strategy clearly sets out the criteria when making investments as well as maximum values for 
individual transactions and overall investments in a single counterparty. Prudential indicators, 
including the operational boundary and authorised limit for external borrowing, are also set within the 
Strategy. The Strategy is a low risk one, and investments in place were with UK based counterparties 
with a high credit rating from Fitch (a credit rating agency) to minimise risk. Investment yields have 
been low for some years but may now be increasing given changes to interest rates. The Deputy 
Head of Finance has been undertaking this role for some years and has good knowledge and 
experience to support the activity.   

A detailed cashflow forecasting spreadsheet is maintained by the TM Officer. We reviewed the 
document during discussions and found it to be accurate and reliable, to support retention of sufficient 
cash for operations. The TM officer told us that it has been challenging to maintain cashflow and stay 
within the agreed limits of the current account and investing as stated in the policy. This has been 
necessitated due to holding several million pounds of government funds to pay for grants that need to 
be paid, or refund back at short notice. This requirement has been referenced in the strategy, and we 
were told the full council has been informed when these limits have been exceeded. 

There were appropriate controls over payments into and out of the current account and to move 
money into the investment accounts. This included segregation between those raising the bank 
account transfer request, and those authorising the transfer. There is also an audit trail that records 
the investments in counterparties. Home working has necessitated reduced use of paper records to 
store papers and the audit trail and more reliance on electronic records which should be maintained 
going forward. We re-state a management action from our last audit report that deposit confirmations 
should be independently checked and signed before or during the actual transaction. 
 

Climate Change 
 
Overall Assurance Level – Reasonable  
 
No of management actions made / agreed: 7 Medium. 
 
Summary    

Since April 2021, the council has put significant increased focus on meeting the overall target of net 
zero, supported by the establishment of a governance and management framework to manage this 
work. Progress from 2019 has been slow due to the Covid-19 emergency, although initiatives have 
been undertaken over the last couple of years to improve energy efficiency, such as the Burrows 
refurbishment, Carbon surveys of assets and purchase of a first electric vehicle.  

That said, over the last year there has been more focus and a systematic approach to meet the 
objective, including completing Carbon audits to provide a baseline. The work is actively led by the 
Public Health and Housing Manager supported by a Climate Change officer shared with North Devon 
council. They are supported by a dedicated Lead Member and an active Member Climate Change 
Working Group. This commitment will need to continue given the amount of work and resources 

Page 28



 

Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued to Date 

 

5 
 

needed if the objective is to be substantially met.  

We agreed management actions related to the following:  

 Review of the Climate Change Working Group objectives. 

 Consideration of the resources to achieve net zero and other environment targets. 

 Include the need for offsets in the Carbon, Environment and Biodiversity Action Plan 
 Ongoing requirement for a Climate Change officer. 

 Systematic risk and opportunity management. 

 Greater focus on Adaption related to council infrastructure and services, and the local 
community.  

 Identify and agree Performance measures to monitor success and drive delivery. 

 

Active Torridge 

Following creation of this new council owned company, we have started fieldwork to confirm to 
management that key controls are in place. For this first year, we will be looking at the following:  

 Budget setting and budgetary control. 

 Main Accounting System. 

 Creditors. 

 Safeguarding. 

 Facilities Maintenance. 

 Health and Safety. 
 Training and Qualifications. 

 Data Protection. 

 Information Systems and Security. 

 Contract Management and Monitoring (mainly related to the primary contractor: Active Nation) 

We are working to provide a draft report on our findings by end of August 2022, and a final report by 
end of September. Significant issues will be raised for management action as they are identified 
during our fieldwork.      

 

Grant Certifications: 

We checked and provided certification for the following grants: 

Getting Building Fund – Northam Burrows (related to £827k received via the Heart of the Southwest 
LEP)  

Contain Outbreak Management Fund (related to £104k received from the UK Health Security Agency).   

 

Page 29



DRAFT 

STATEMENT

OF

ACCOUNTS

(unaudited)

2021/22

Page 30

Agenda Item 9



 

Narrative report   

 

 

     

Contents – Overview  
            

            Page 
    
1: Narrative Report        2-16 
 
2:  Annual Governance Statement     17-33 
 
3: Statement of Responsibilities         34 
 
Core Statements 

 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement   35 

 Movement in Reserves Statement      36   

 Balance Sheet         37 

 Cash Flow Statement        38 
 
4: Statement of Accounting Policies     39-53  
 
5: Accounting Standards issued but not yet adopted     54 
 
6: Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies     55 
 
7: Assumptions about future and major sources of estimation  56-57 
 
8: Events after the accounting period       58 
 
9: Financial Statements 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements index      59 
 

Notes to the Core Statements     60-97 
 

Collection Fund Statement               98-100 
 
9: Auditor Opinion                101-104 
 
10: Glossary of Terms                105-115 
  

1

Page 31



 

Narrative report   

 

 

An Introduction to the 2021/22 Annual Accounts 

The purpose of this report is to provide the reader with an explanation of the most significant 

financial matters reported in the accounts. It sets out the overall financial position and details 

the Council’s financial transactions for the year ending 31st March 2022. 

1.1  Preface & Impact of Covid-19 

Torridge District Council is located within the northwest of Devon.  The district is divided into 16 

Wards and is predominantly rural.  The main towns are Bideford, Holsworthy and Torrington, 

with almost half of the population living in or close to Bideford/Northam and the remainder of the 

area is fairly sparsely populated. The district is officially classified as ‘Rural 80’, with at least 80 

per cent of the population living in rural settlements and larger market towns. The district 

comprises 984 sq. km (380 sq. miles) and has a high quality natural and built environment.  

The majority of land in Torridge is classified as green space, covering 95% (935 sq. km) of the 

district’s total area. The coastline, historic towns, nature reserves and Areas of Outstanding 

Natural Beauty are valuable assets. As quality of life and environment becomes an ever more 

important factor in choosing where to live, it is likely that population growth in Torridge will 

continue.  Reflecting its peripheral location and rural nature, Torridge is relatively poorly 

connected to major urban economies. There are no rail services within Torridge itself, with the 

nearest railway station being located in Barnstaple (about 20 minutes away by car) whilst 

Exeter and Plymouth are located over an hour away.  

Some major services such as further education and hospitals lie outside of the district.  The 

Office for National Statistics (ONS) provided a population estimate for Torridge in mid-2020 of 

68,719. Torridge’s population is older than the national average, over 28% of the local 

population is aged 65 or over (National figure being 18.3%).  Between 2018 and 2043 

Torridge’s population was set to grow by 15.8% from an estimated 68,000 in 2018 to an 

estimated 79,000 by 2043. The age profile of the population is expected to shift dramatically 

with a real and proportionate increase in the oldest age groups over the 25-year period. 

Low wages are approximately 21% below the national average. Unemployment rates have 

been falling nationally over recent years (they did increase during the COVID-19 pandemic but 

have since fallen back). The level of unemployment in 2021 in Torridge was 2.8% (up from 

2.4% in 2019) and is lower than the South West figure (3.3%) and the national figure (4.4%). 

In 2021 there were 3,740 business enterprises in Torridge, with 92% of those enterprises being 

micro sized (0 to 9 employees).  

Amongst the services provided by Torridge District Council are the following:  

 Refuse Collection and Street Cleansing 

 Maintenance of Parks and Open Spaces 

 Processing Planning Applications 
 

2

Page 32



 

Narrative report   

 

 

 Environmental Health and Licensing 

 Collection of Council Tax and Business Rates 

 Housing and Homelessness Services 

 Processing Housing Benefit Claims 

 Provision of Industrial and Commercial Premises for rent 

 Processing Land Charge searches 

2021/22 surplus 
 
The financial impact of Covid-19 continued to be felt during 2021/22, as Torridge Council acting 

 Delivery of Business Support Grants   £0.419m 

 Delivery of Self-isolation grants to individuals. £0.059m  

The surplus reported for 2021/22 before reallocation of the surplus to reserves has arisen for a 

variety of reasons but the two biggest contributory factors being the financial support provided 

by Central Government for delivering services in response to the pandemic exceeded the 

additional expenditure incurred. The other major factor being the unprecedented level of 

planning applications received and processed by the Council. 

The majority of business support grants paid out by Torridge during the financial year 2021/22 

were processed in accordance with Central Government guidance, whereby Torridge acted as 

agent on behalf of Central Government. The value of grants paid out where Torridge acted as 

an agent of Central Government was £11.89m.   

The income and costs associated with these grants are therefore not included within the CEIS 

or Note 3 – Expenditure and Income by Nature note, since the Council is deemed to have acted 

as an agent on behalf of Government in the administration and payment of these grants. The 

grant income from Central Government and the grant payments to businesses are however, 

included within the Cashflow statement and notes. The transactions pertaining to grants 

processed on behalf of Government in an agency capacity net off to zero, as business support 

grants processed are matched by funding received.  

In total Torridge Council paid out £12.76m in business support grants, the balance of the grants 

(£1.28m) being discretionary in nature where the Council determined the rules pertaining to the 

grant amount and eligibility for payment.  These discretionary grant costs and the funding are 

included within the Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 

 

 

on behalf of Central Government continued to process Business Support Grants and to make 

payments to individuals forced to self-isolate.  Central Government provided financial support 

throughout 2021/22 to Councils recognising the additional work undertaken by Councils in 

implementing Central Government’s response to the pandemic.  The main areas of Covid-19 

grant income received during the financial year 2021/22 being: 

3

Page 33



 

Narrative report   

 

 

1.2  Core Statements 

The core statements comprise: 

 Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement (CIES) 

 Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS) 

 Balance Sheet 

 Cash Flow Statement  

The purpose of each of the components is set out below. 

1.3.1 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

The CIES provides a summary of the resources generated and consumed by the Council during 
the year in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (GAAP).   
Accompanying the CIES are two notes, which are not core statements but are given due 
prominence in accordance with the Code of Practice: 
 
The Expenditure and Funding Analysis – Demonstrates to stakeholders how the funding 
available to the authority (i.e. government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) for the 
year have been used in providing services, in comparison with those resources consumed or 
earned by the authority in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practices. 
Additionally, it also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes 
between the Council’s various responsibility areas.  
 
This analysis provides the link between quarterly reporting and the statements. It is a 
reconciliation of the management accounting (budget monitoring) outturn after reallocation of 
the surplus to reserves per responsibility area to the Cost of Services in the CIES. 
 
Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature - shows the surplus or deficit on the provision 
of the services included in the CIES, analysed by nature. 
 
For information the main functions contained within the responsibility areas shown on both the 
Expenditure Funding Analysis and the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are 
detailed below: 
 
Chief Executive 

 ICT Strategy, Performance & ICT 

 Human Resources, Communications and Customer Services 
Communities and Place 

 Development Control 

 Planning   

 Planning Policy 

 Economic Development 

 Building Control 

 Property Services 

 Major projects 

 Parking 

 Leisure 
 

4

Page 34



 

Narrative report   

 

 

 Waste Collection & Recycling 

 Street Cleansing 
Head of Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer 

 Elections and Corporate Governance 

 Legal & Land Charges 

 Revenues and Benefits 
 

 Democratic Services 

 Housing 

 Environmental Health & Licensing 
Finance (Section 151 Officer) 

 Finance 

 Internal Audit 

 Risk Management 
 
1.4   Movement in Reserves Statement 

This statement analyses the changes in the Council’s reserves over the year and clearly shows 
the real value of cash reserves held by the council. Reserves are classed as “Usable” i.e. those 
which may be used to provide services or invested in capital, or “Unusable” which must be set 
aside to meet statutory obligations. 
 
1.4.1 The Balance Sheet 

This statement is fundamental to the understanding of the Council’s financial position at the 
year end.  It shows all the balances and reserves available to the Council, its long term and 
short-term indebtedness and the current and non-current assets employed in its operation.  

 

1.5   Cash Flow Statement 

This consolidated statement summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from the 

Council’s transactions with third parties for both revenue and capital purposes. 

1.6  Collection Fund 
 

This account reflects the statutory requirement for the Council, in its capacity as a billing 
authority, to maintain a separate Collection Fund for National Non-Domestic Rates (Business 
Rates) and Council Tax. It illustrates how these have been distributed to the various preceptors, 
namely: 

 Devon County Council (Council Tax and Business Rates)  

 Devon and Cornwall Police Commissioner (Council Tax) 

 Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority (Council Tax and Business Rates) 

 Central Government (Business Rates) 

 Torridge District Council (Council Tax and Business Rates) 

 Town & Parish Councils (Council Tax) 

The balance sheet reflects only the Council’s share of any Collection Fund surplus or deficit. 

 

5

Page 35



 

Narrative report   

 

 
1.7 Accounting Policies 
 
This section describes the accounting concepts and policies adopted in the preparation of the 
accounts. The Council complied with all recommended accounting practices contained within 
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 which is 
recognised by statute as representing proper Local Authority Accounting Practice. These  
principles provide the basis by which authorities present their net cost of services in the 
statement of accounts.  
 

1.8 Financial Performance 

The purpose of the narrative report is to provide commentary on the main financial highlights 

and to identify any significant events that may affect the reader’s interpretation of the Financial 

Statements. 

1.9 Revenue Income and Expenditure   
 
The Council’s 2021/22 net budget was £6.956m, funded from the following sources: 
 
Central Government Grant (including New Homes Bonus)  £1.713m 
Council Tax        £4.238m 
Business Rates (including Section 31 Grants)   £0.900m 
Use of reserves       £0.105m 

 
The 2021/22 outturn shows a favourable variance to budget of £1,752k for the year, arrived at 
through a combination of net savings of £2,135k and increased cost pressures of (£383k). The 
following tables analyse this surplus by nature and by responsibility area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6

Page 36



 

Narrative report   

 

 
 
The surplus of £1,752k before transferring balance to reserve by responsibility area is as 
detailed below: 
  

 

 

The large budget variations in the Finance Manager area mostly pertains to setting aside 
monies to reserve to meet the deficit on the Business Rate collection fund, which is largely 
offset by additional Section 31 grant monies in the Funding service area. This is a result of 
timing issues arising from Collection Fund (Business rates) accounting rules. 

 
 
 
 
The table below details the major factors contributing towards the 2021/22 surplus before 
transferring balance to reserves: 
 

7

Page 37



 

Narrative report   

 

 
 
1.10 Utilisation of Surplus and Capital Expenditure  
 
It is proposed that the 2021/22 surplus is utilised as detailed below bringing the net movement 
on the General fund to zero: 
 

 Contribution to the Transition in Government Funding Reserve £1,149k 

 Funding for Apprentices         £100k 

 Funding for succession planning        £153k 

 Contribution to Capital         £160k 

 Various one-off grant support        £ 89k 

 Household Support Funding         £ 36k 

 Economic Development         £ 65k 
 

The budget for the capital programme for the year 2021/22 was £11.994m  
 
During the year, capital expenditure amounted to £2.144m funded by a combination of capital 
receipts, external grants and utilisation of earmarked capital reserves. The main area of 
slippage pertained to the Environmental Centre - £7m, where the Council has yet to secure a 
site. 
 
The larger items of expenditure are detailed below: 
 

 Visitor Centre Northam Burrows  £1.080m 

 Purchase of Middledock   £0.284m 

 New Vehicles      £0.211m 

 Recycling Receptacles   £0.099m 

 Artificial Football Pitch renewal  £0.117m 

 Digitalization – Revenues & Benefits  £0.109m 

 Renovation of Offices    £0.089m 

1.11 The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement  
 
The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) details an overall surplus of 
£6,707k for the year, primarily due to favourable movements on the valuation of the Council’s 
pension’s liability and property related assets. 
 
A number of statutory accounting adjustments are made to the final accounts in order to reflect 
the final cash position. These entries are included in the Adjustments between Accounting 
Entries and Funding Basis under regulations captured in the Movement in Reserves Statement.  
 

1.12 The Movement in Reserves Statement 
 

This statement is the key to establishing the aggregate financial position of the Council, as it 
produces a summary of all the “cash backed” usable reserves that the Council holds. 
 
It shows that the Council’s usable general reserves increased by £0.564m to £17.366m during  
2021/22.  

8

Page 38



 

Narrative report   

 

 
The biggest contributing factors to the increased earmarked reserves balances being: 

 Net £1.367m being released from reserves to meet deficits on the Collection Fund in 
2020/21, which because of collection fund accounting rules, were realised in the 
financial year 2021/22. 

 £763k being released from reserves in respect of unutilised Covid-19 grants from 
Government; repayable to Government or received in advance of spend in 2020/21 and 
subsequently in 2021/22. 

 £261k being set aside into reserves reflecting Government Covid-19 related grants 
repayable or Covid-19 related grants received in advance of need, which will be 
released during 2022/23 to meet expenditure.  

 £1.436m was set aside to reserve to meet future capital expenditure, such as vehicle 
replacement. 
 

In addition, the Capital Receipts Reserve reflects a net increase of £1.297m bringing the total 
usable reserves to £18.790m; before the statutory movements of £9,859m on the Unusable 
reserves to arrive at the net Total Authority Reserves per the Balance sheet. 
 
1.13 The Balance Sheet 
 
Notable items on the balance sheet are: 
 

 The overall Pension deficit has decreased by £4.549m  

 The Council’s short-term investments lodged with financial institutions increased 

from £7m to £14m, reflecting additional cash balances held by the Council whilst 

it administers various Central Government initiatives. 

 Assets held for sale have moved from £2.621m to zero reflecting the sale of land 

at Cleave Wood and Bridge Buildings (former council offices). 

 Short term debtors have decreased from £8.986m to £5.542m largely reflecting 

the repayment of Business rate balances to Central Government and other 

business rate preceptors.  

 

Including the above, the net assets for the period have increased by £6.707m (Net worth 

£8.931m 2021/22 from £2.225m in 2020/21) 

1.14 Cash Flow Statement 
 
The Council had a net cash outflow of £0.300m during the financial year 2021/22. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 £1.149m being monies set aside to the Transition in Government funding reserve, 
funded from the 2021/22 surplus as detailed paragraph 1.10 above.  

9

Page 39



 

Narrative report   

 

 

1.15 The Collection Fund 
 

The financial highlights are detailed below 

 Council Tax - The Council Tax collection rate in 2021/22 was 97.55% (97.3% 

2020/21) 

 

The difference between the forecast level of council tax receivable and the actual 

outturn for 21/22 resulted in an overall surplus on the fund of £1.014m at 31st 

March 2022; of which 12% is due to Torridge Council, amounting to £0.117m. 

Collection Fund rules dictate that the Council Tax levied by Town and Parish 

Councils are included when allocating Torridge’s share of any surplus or deficit 

on the Fund.  The actual share of Council Tax collected for Torridge’s own 

purposes is circa 8.5%, however Torridge Council bears the surplus /deficit of 

Council tax on behalf of Town and Parish Councils. 

 Business Rates - The Business Rates collection rate in 2021/22 was 98.26% 
(95.9% in 2020/21) 
 
The difference between the forecast level of NNDR receivable and the actual 

outturn for 2021/22, resulted in an overall deficit of £6.347m at the 31st March 

2022, of which 40% is attributable to Torridge Council, amounting to £2.539m. 

 

The deficit on the Business Rates Collection monies being due Government’s 

award of extended retail relief. The Council received grant compensation from 

Government for this lost business rate income in 2021/22. However due to the 

accounting rules pertaining to the business rate collection fund, the 2021/22 

deficit can only be realised in 2022/23. Consequently, the compensating grant  

monies received in 2021/22 (£1.637m) has been set aside to reserve to be 

released in 2022/23 to meet the deficit.  

1.16 Pension Fund 

 
The highlights of the pension fund are: 

 Pension Fund assets have increased by £3.181m to £54.887m (£51.706m in 

2020/21) 

 Pension Fund liabilities have decreased by £1.368m to £102.039m (£103.407m in 

2020/21) 

 The net deficit on the pension fund has decreased by £4.549m to £47.152m 

(£51.706m in 2020/21) 

The latest Triennial review of the Council’s pension scheme undertaken during 2019 resulted in 
the Employer’s Pension contribution rate rising from 15.8% to 17.5% for 2020/21.  In addition, 
the Council made an annual contribution to the underlying pension deficit of £0.663m. The next 
tri-annual review of the Council’s pension scheme is scheduled for 2022/23.  

 

10

Page 40



 

Narrative report   

 

 

1.17 Treasury Activities 

The main purpose of the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy is to:  

 Ensure the Council has sufficient cash to meet its day-to-day obligations. 

 Invest surplus funds in a manner that balances low risk of default by the investee 

with a fair rate of interest. 

As at the 31st March 2022, the Council held £14.000m of short-term investments (per note 25) 
with Fitch 1 rated UK Banks and Building Societies. These investments generated interest 
receivable of £0.019m, which gave an average rate of interest of 0.08%. 
 
The Treasury Management and Investment Strategy is reviewed annually to ensure that new 
and emerging risks are mitigated, and opportunities identified. 
 
1.18 Borrowing 

As at the 31st March 2022 the Council had a total borrowing of £0.470m, made up of four Public 
Works Board loans. The interest paid on these loans during 2021/22 was £0.041m, the interest 
rates on these loans being between 4.875% and 5.125%. 
 
1.19 Valuation of Property Portfolio 
 
The Council has instructed the District Valuer to undertake a full valuation of 20% of its asset 
portfolio as at the 1st April 2021 and a desktop review of the remaining assets to ascertain a 
current fair value for the 31st March 2022 balance sheet. The District Valuer reported no 
material changes to the 1st April valuations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11

Page 41



 

Narrative report   

 

 
1.20  The Council’s Strategic Plan  

 
The approved plan for the period 2020-2023 sets out the goals for the Council, under four 
themes, the four schemes adopted being: 
 
Theme 1 – Local Economy 
 

o Promote aspiration and growth to create a vibrant culture and thriving economy with 
quality jobs. 

o Develop town centres and the rural offering, recognised as great places to live, visit 
and invest into. 

o Create access to good quality jobs and employment, supporting businesses and the 
local economy. 
 

Theme 2  – Communities, Health & Housing 
 

o Increase the availability of quality homes that meet local needs. 
o Reduce health inequalities while promoting active and healthy lifestyles. 
o Maintain low levels of crime so people feel safe and secure in their communities. 

 

Theme 3  – Protecting & Enhancing our Quality Environment. 

o Reduce the eco-footprint of the district to meet the Council’s carbon neutral plan.  

o Deliver clean, well maintained, and managed streets, parks and open spaces. 

o Provide high quality planning and development services. 

o Reduce waste and increase recycling. 

o Manage coastal and flood defence to meet the challenges of the changing climate. 

 

Theme 4  – Our Council 

o Provide clear effective communication and be easily accessible. 

o Deliver quality services to business and residents, understand what matters to our 

customers. 

o Become more agile and commercial council, securing our financial future while 

support local wherever possible. 

o Be a great place to build a career. 

 
 
  

12

Page 42



 

Narrative report   

 

 

 

13

Page 43



 

Narrative report   

 

 

 

14

Page 44



 

Narrative report   

 

 

1.21 Meeting the Challenges – The Medium Term Financial Strategy 
 
The Council’s Revenue Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) approved by Full 
Council on 21st February 2022 identified funding challenges over the life of the MTFS, the 
MTFS at this juncture projected that the Council’s budgets would not return to a semblance of 
balance until 2026-27:  
 

      
 
The MTFS report included several key assumptions: 

 Council Tax increases at the referendum level of £5 per Band D equivalent for the 
duration of the MTFS 

 Minimal growth in the underlying Business Rates base 

 Assumptions regarding future provision for business rate appeals 

 Salary increases of 2% per annum for the duration of the MTFS. 

 New Homes Bonus grant funding (or its replacement) at £131k per annum for the 
duration of the MTFS 

 Revenue Support Grant at 2022/23 levels uplifted by inflation. 

 No inflationary uplift to the Rural Sparsity Grant. 

 The cost of providing leisure services would reduce to £450k per annum by 2025/26 
 
The Council’s reserve levels are constantly reviewed in order to ensure that the Council has 
adequate financial resources to meet future uncertain financial pressures.  The Council has set 
aside funds into a Transition in Government Funding Reserve to meet in the short term the 
impact of the identified funding gap; the MTFS projected that there would be a balance on this 
reserve of £0.3m at the end of 2026/27. The balance on the Transition in Government Funding 
Reserve at the 31st March 2022 was £1.7m. Per the statements it is £2.4m after the reallocation 
of the surplus at year end. 

 Council Tax Income – constrained by referendum limits of circa 2.85% 

 Business Rates – rateable value set by Valuation Office and rate in the pound charged 
set by Central Government. 

 Grant funding - determined by central government 

 Fees and Charges – some at the discretion of the Council, others set by statute  
 
Therefore, it was agreed by Full Council that a Member Budget Working Group, consisting of 
members from all political groupings be established to seek proposals to bring the Council’s 
budgets back into balance. 

15

 
The MTFS presented to Full Council on 21st February 2022 approved a Capital Program for the 
period 2022/23 – 2026/27 of £30.4m, with funding of £30.01m identified leaving a funding deficit 
of £177k before future capital bids in subsequent years. Inflationary pressures, in particular 
construction price inflation, are a challenge to funding the agreed capital program. 
 
1.22      Future Uncertainty – Inflationary pressures 
 
The UK and the world in general are facing inflation rates not seen for decades.  As Torridge 
Council is unable to match increased costs by corresponding increases to its income as 
detailed in the bullet points below:  

Page 45



 

Narrative report   

 

 
An updated MTFS was reported to Community & Resources Committee on the 25th April 2022, 
in recognition of the changed financial environment faced by the Council since the MTFS was 
previously reported to Full Council in February 2022.  
 
The updated MTFS reported a range of possible scenarios with a range of potential budget 
deficits over the life of the MTFS, £2.16m at the Optimistic range to £6.89m at the pessimistic 
range. 
 
The key financial pressures faced by Torridge Council being: 
 

 Support for Leisure: From the 1st April 2022, the management of leisure services within 
Torridge have been undertaken by Active Torridge (a wholly owned subsidiary company 
of the Council).  It was recognised that in post pandemic era that substantial support (via 
a management fee) would be required for Active Torridge to deliver leisure services. 
Inflationary pressures (in particular, utility costs) present a risk that Leisure Services 
cannot be provided within an affordable cost envelope. 
 

 General Inflationary pressures:  With inflation in April 2022 running at circa 9%, the 
Council is facing inflationary pressures with respect to the goods and services it 
procures. Construction price inflation, in particular, is recognised as a key concern with 
respect to the funding of the Council’s agreed capital program. 
 

The Member Budget Working Group will meet regularly throughout the financial year 2022/23 
and report back to Full Council in the autumn in line with the annual budget setting cycle. If 
insufficient savings or additional income streams are not identified by the Working Group then 
other remedial actions will have to be explored, including restricting capital expenditure to 
essential H&S works only, the utilisation of earmarked reserves, and reviewing all non-statutory 
expenditure. 
 

 

16

 Housing benefit subsidy shortfall: With the lack of affordable rental properties the 
Council’s use of temporary accommodation for its residents at risk of homelessness 
has risen considerably resulting in a shortfall on Housing benefit subsidy as only a 
modest proportion of the costs of temporary accommodation incurred by the Council 
can be recovered from the Department of Works and Pensions (via Housing Benefit 
Subsidy).  

 Pay Awards:  The MTFS reported to Full Council on 21st February 2022 assumed a pay
 award of 2% across the life of the MTFS. However, with the historically high levels of 
inflation currently being experienced it is highly unlikely that the local government pay 
award for 2022/23 and 
beyond can be contained within a 2% threshold.  The problem is compounded by 
increases to the minimum wage being linked to inflation, which will potentially exceed 
the lower local authority grades resulting in incremental salary pressures as differentials 
are maintained. 
 

Page 46



 

   Governance Statement            

 

 

2. Annual Governance Statement – Draft 

 

 

 

17

Page 47



 

   Governance Statement            

 

 

 

  

18

Page 48



 

   Governance Statement            

 

 

 
 
 
 

19

Page 49



 

   Governance Statement            

 

 

 

  

20

Page 50



 

   Governance Statement            

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

21

Page 51



 

   Governance Statement            

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

22

Page 52



 

   Governance Statement            

 

 
 

 

23

Page 53



 

   Governance Statement            

 

 

 

24

Page 54



 

   Governance Statement            

 

 
 

 
 
 

25

Page 55



 

   Governance Statement            

 

 
 

 

 

26

Page 56



 

   Governance Statement            

 

 

 

27

Page 57



 

   Governance Statement            

 

 

 

  

28

Page 58



 

   Governance Statement            

 

 

 

  

29

Page 59



 

   Governance Statement            

 

 
 

 
 
  

30

Page 60



 

   Governance Statement            

 

 
 

 

31

Page 61



 

   Governance Statement            

 

 

 

  

32

Page 62



 

   Governance Statement            

 

 

 

33

Page 63



  

Statement of Responsibilities          

 

 

3. Statement of Responsibilities 

The Council is required to: 

 Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure 

that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs, in line 

with statute the responsibility is held by the Section 151 Officer, who in this Council is 

the Strategic Director (Resources). 

 Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and 

safeguard its assets. 

 Certify the Statement of Accounts. 

The Section 151 Officer’s Responsibilities 

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s Statement of 

Accounts to present fairly the financial position of the Council in accordance with proper 

practices set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 

Kingdom (“the code”) at the accounting date and the income and expenditure for the year 

then ended.  In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Section 151 officer has: 

 Selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently. 

 Made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 

 Complied with code. 

The Section 151 Officer has also:  

 Kept proper, up to date accounting records and 

 Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 

irregularities. 

I certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position 

of the Torridge District Council as at 31st March 2022 and its income and expenditure for the 

year end 31st March 2022. 

 

 

34

David Heyes 
Finance Manager and Section 151 Officer
29th June 2022

Page 64



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Gross 

Expenditure
Gross Income

Net 

Expenditure

Gross 

Expenditure
Gross Income

Net 

Expenditure

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

1,679 (19) 1,660 Chief Executive 1,800 (10) 1,790

18,136 (15,984) 2,153 17,438 (15,471) 1,967

1,897 (13) 1,883 Finance Manager (S151) 3,070 (34) 3,036

12,919 (8,751) 4,168 Head of Communities & Place 12,448 (7,037) 5,411

34,630 (24,766) 9,864 34,755 (22,552) 12,203

362 (384) (21) 304 (327) (23)

9,842 12,181

1,471 6 1,662

851 7 913

(13,735) 8 (13,274)

(1,571) 1,481

11 37 (1,181) 

9,329 46 (7,007) 

9,340 (8,188)

7,770 (6,707)

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of 

Property, Plant and Equipment

Remeasurements of the net defined 

benefit liability

Cost of services

Other Operating Expenditure 

Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure 

 

Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 

This section is a summary of our spending per our Reporting Structure on services and where we got the money from to do so.

2020/21

Notes

2021/22

Other

Subtotal

Head of Legal & Governance & Monitoring Officer

(Surplus) / Deficit on Provision of Services

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

35

Page 65



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

General 

Fund 

Balance

Earmarked 

General 

Fund 

Reserves

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total 

Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total 

Authority 

Reserves

Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 March 2020 1,084 8,908 127 10,119 (124) 9,994

Reset of balances due to roundings* 1

1,084 8,908 127 10,119 (123) 9,994
Movement in Reserves during 2020/21

Surplus / (Deficit) on the provision of services 1,571 1,571 1,571
Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (9,340) (9,340)
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 1,571 1,571 (9,340) (7,770)

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding 5 5,239 5,239 (5,239)
Net Increase  /(Decrease) before Transfers to / (from) 5,239 5,239 (5,239)

Transfers to / (from) Earmarked Reserves 41 (6,810) 6,810
 

Net Increase / (Decrease) in 2020/21 0 6,810 6,810 (14,579) (7,770)

Balance at 31 March 2021 1,084 15,718 127 16,929 (14,703) 2,225

 Available for Revenue or Capital Purposes 1,084 15,718 16,802

 Held for Capital Purposes 127 127

General Fund Movement for the 2020/21 year 1 6,810

General 

Fund 

Balance

Earmarked 

General 

Fund 

Reserves

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total 

Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total 

Authority 

Reserves

Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 March 2021 1,084 15,718 127 16,929 (14,703) 2,225

Reset of balances due to roundings* (1)

1,084 15,718 127 16,929 (14,704) 2,225

Movement in Reserves during 2021/22

Surplus / (Deficit) on the provision of services (1,481) (1,481) (1,481)

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 8,188 8,188

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (1,481) (1,481) 8,188 6,707

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis 

under regulations 5 2,046 1,297 3,343 (3,343)

Net Increase  /(Decrease) before Transfers to / (from) 

Earmarked Reserves 2,046 1,297 3,343 (3,343)

Transfers to / (from) Earmarked Reserves 41 (564) 564
 

Net Increase / (Decrease) in 2021/22 0 564 1,297 1,862 4,845 6,707

Balance at 31 March 2022 1,084 16,282 1,297 127 18,790 (9,859) 8,931

Available for Revenue or Capital Purposes 1,084 16,282 17,366

 Held for Capital Purposes 1,297 127 1,424

General Fund Movement for the 2021/22 year 1 564

* Over time the roundings cause the MiRS to become out of sync with the balance sheet - this clarifies the impact of roundings in the interest of transparency

REVENUE RESERVES CAPITAL RESERVES

USEABLE RESERVES

Movement in Reserves Statement 

USEABLE RESERVES

REVENUE RESERVES CAPITAL RESERVES

2020/21

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to 

fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing 

the authority’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. This is different from the statutory amounts 

required to be charged to the General Fund Balance for council tax setting purposes. The net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line 

shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from earmarked reserves undertaken by the Council. 

2021/22

36

Page 66



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Balance Sheet

2020/21 2021/22

£000 Notes £000

35,993 Property, Plant & Equipment 17 36,873 

1,219 Heritage Assets 19 1,219 

481 Intangible assets 20 343 

1,630 Investment Properties 21 1,608 

141 Long-term Debtors 22 212 

39,464 Non-Current Assets 40,255 

7,001 Short-Term Investments 24 14,000 

2,621 Assets held for sale 23 (0) 

8,986 Short-Term Debtors 25 5,542 

10,458 Cash and Cash Equivalents 26 10,758 

29,066 Current Assets 30,299 

(12,638) Short-term Creditors 30 (12,334) 

(1,038) Provisions 31 (1,159) 

(191) Short-term Borrowing 32 0 

(13,867) Current Liabilities (13,493) 

(483) Long-Term Borrowing 33 (483) 

(51,701) Pension Fund Liability 46 (47,152) 

(253) Capital Grants Receipts in Advance (495) 

(52,437) Long Term Liabilities (48,130) 

2,225 Net Assets 8,931 

(51,701) Pension Fund Reserve 34 (47,152) 

(128) Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account (123) 

(3,894) Collection Fund Adjustment 35 (2,408) 

114 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 36 778 

14,679 Revaluation Reserve 37 13,715

26,227 Capital Adjustment Account 38 25,331

(14,703) Total Unusable Reserves (9,859) 

127 Capital Grants Unapplied 39 127

0 Capital Receipts Reserve 40 1,297

15,718 Earmarked Reserves 41 16,282

1,084 General Fund reserve 1,084

16,929 Total Usable Reserves 18,790

2,225 Total Reserves 8,931

This section shows our financial position at the end of the financial year.

37

The Financial Statements were authorised for issue by the Section 151 Officer on the 29th June 2022

Page 67



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Cash Flow Statement

2020/21 2021/22

£000 Notes £000

(1,571) Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 1,481

(7,158)
Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of 

services for non-cash movements 43 (11,116)

2,569

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus on the 

provision of services that are investing and financing 

activities (See note references)

43 3,782

(6,160) Net cash flows from Operating Activities (5,854)

415 Investing Activities 44 5,363

153 Financing Activities 45 191

(5,592) equivalents (300)

Per balance sheet

4,866
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 

reporting period
10,458

5,592 In year increase (decrease) in cash equivalents 300

10,458
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting 

period
26 10,758

This section shows what cash we spent and received

38

Page 68



 

                                                                                                        
Statement of Accounting Policies   

 

 

4. Statement of Accounting Policies 

4.1 General Principles 
 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2021/22 financial 
year and its position at the year end of 31st March 2022. The Authority is required to prepare 
an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 to be 
prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily 
comprise the “Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2021/22”. 
 
For the 2021/22 the Council has made no changes to its accounting policies. 
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical 
cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial 
instruments.  
 
In line with CIPFA Practice Note 10, these accounts have been prepared on a going concern 
basis and it has been assumed that the functions of the Council will continue in operational 
existence for the foreseeable future. 
 

Class of Asset Valuation Basis 

Property, Plant & Equipment – Land & 
Buildings 

Current Value, comprising existing use value.  
Where prices for comparable properties are 
available in an active market, properties are 
valued at market value considering their existing 
use.  Where no market exists or the property is 
specialised, current value is measured at 
depreciated replacement cost. 

Property, Plant & Equipment – 
Surplus Assets 

Fair Value 

Investment Properties Fair Value 

Financial Instruments – Available for 
Sale 

Fair Value 

Pensions Assets Fair Value 

 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measure date. 
 
Rounding 
 
Unless otherwise stated the convention used in these Financial Statements is to round 
amounts to the nearest thousand pounds. All totals are the rounded additions of unrounded 
figures, and therefore– from time-to-time – there may be small differences between parts of 
the Financial Statements and the strict sums of the figures presented in the text or tables. 
  

39

Page 69



 

                                                                                                        
Statement of Accounting Policies   

 

 
4.2 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis 
 
The resources available to the Council in any financial year and the expenses that are 
charged against those resources are specified by statute (the Local Government Act 2003 
and the 2003 regulations).  Where the statutory provisions differ from the accruals basis 
used in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, adjustments to the 
accounting treatment are made in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that usable 
reserves reflect the funding available at the year end. Unusable reserves are created to 
manage the timing differences between the accounting and funding basis.  The material 
adjustments are: 
 

Expense Accounting Basis in 
CIES 

Funding Basis in 
MiRS 

Adjustment Account 

Property, Plant & 
Equipment 

Depreciation and 
revaluation/impairment 
losses 

Revenue provision 
to cover historical 
cost determined in 
accordance with 
2003 regs 
 
 

Capital Adjustment 
Account & 
Revaluation account 

Intangible Assets Amortisation and 
Impairment 

Revenue provision 
to cover historical 
cost determined in 
accordance with 
2003 regs 
 
 

Capital Adjustment 
Account 

Investment 
Properties 

Movement in fair value Revenue provision 
to cover historical 
costs determined 
in accordance with 
2003 regs 
 
 

Capital Adjustment 
Account 

Revenue 
Expenditure 
funded from 
Capital under 
statue 

Expenditure incurred 
in 2020/21 

Revenue provision 
to cover historical 
costs determined 
in accordance with 
2003 regs 
 
 

Capital Adjustment 
Account 

Capital Grants 
and Contributions 

Grants that became 
unconditional in 
2020/21 or were 
received in 2020/21 
without conditions 

No credit Capital Grants 
unapplied Reserve 
(amounts unapplied at 
31st March 2021)   
Capital Adjustment 
Account (other 
amounts) 
 
 

40

Page 70



 

                                                                                                        
Statement of Accounting Policies   

 

 

Expense Accounting Basis in 
CIES 

Funding Basis in 
MiRS 

Adjustment Account 

Non Current 
Assets Disposals 

Gain or loss based on 
sale proceeds less 
carrying amount of the 
asset 

No charge or credit Capital Adjustment 
Account (carrying 
amount) 
Capital Receipts 
Reserve (sale 
proceeds and costs of 
disposal) 
Deferred Capital 
Receipts (where sale 
proceeds have yet to 
be received) 

Pension Costs Movements in 
pension assets and 
liabilities  

Employer’s 
pension 
contributions 
payable and direct 
payments made by 
the Council to 
pensioners 
2021/22.  

Pensions Reserve 

Council Tax Accrued income from 
2021/22 bills 

Demand on the 
Collection Fund for 
2021/22 plus 
recovery of 
estimated share of 
estimated surplus 
for 2020/21 

Collection Fund 
Adjustment Account 

Business Rates Accrued income from 
2021/22 bills 

Budgeted income 
receivable from the 
Collection Fund for 
2021/22 plus 
estimated share of 
estimated deficit for 
2020/21 

Collection Fund 
Adjustment Account 

Holiday Pay Projected cost of 
untaken leave 
entitlements at 31 
March 2022 

No charge Accumulated 
Absences Adjustment 
Account 

 
4.3 Accruals and Prepayments of Income and Expenditure 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are 
made or received. In particular: 

 Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the provision 
of goods is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the 
service recipient in accordance with the performance obligations in the contract. 

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed /received. 
 

41

Page 71



 

                                                                                                        
Statement of Accounting Policies   

 

 

 Expenses in relation to services provided (including services provided by employees) 
are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than payments 
made. 
 

 Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for 
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for 
the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the 
contract. 

 Where income and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been 
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the 
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is impaired 
and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected. 

 A deminimus level of £5,000 is normally applied to any manual accrual adjustments. 
 

The Council has adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers in accordance 
with the Code, it has assessed the impact of this accounting policy and it has had no 
material impact upon the Financial Statements. 
 
4.4 Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 
 
Expenditure on services and income relating to those services is classified within the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in accordance with the CIPFA Code of 
Local Authority Accounting in the UK.  The 2021/22 code requires that authorities present 
expenditure and income on services based on their reportable segments.  These reportable 
segments are based upon the Authority’s internal management reporting structure. 
 
4.5 Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 
 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to 
record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year: 

 depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 

 revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be 
written off 

 amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service  
 

42

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation, revaluations, 
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual provision from 
revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (equal to at 
least 4% of the underlying amount measured by the adjusted Capital Financing 
Requirement). 
 
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by 
the Minimum Revenue Provision in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting 
transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
 
 
 

Page 72



 

                                                                                                        
Statement of Accounting Policies   

 

 
4.6 Employee Benefits 
 
Benefits Payable during Employment 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. 
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, 
and non-monetary benefits e.g. cars for current employees and are recognised as an 
expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the Authority. 
 
An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave e.g. time off in 
lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees carry forward 
into the next financial year. The accrual is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 
Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that 
holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence 
occurs. 
 
4.7 Termination Benefits 
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to 
terminate an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision 
to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate 
service area within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.  
 
The cost is recognised at the earlier of: 

 the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or 

 when the Council recognises costs for a restructuring 
 
4.8 Post-Employment Benefits 
 
Employees of the Authority are members of The Local Government Pension Scheme, 
administered by Peninsula Pensions on behalf of Devon County Council. The scheme 
provides defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions) earned as 
employees worked for the Authority. 
 
4.9 The Local Government Pensions Scheme (LGPS) 
 
The LGPS is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 

 The liabilities of the Devon County Council pension scheme attributable to the 
Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected 
unit method. 

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate based 
on the AA corporate bond rate as required by the code.  

 The assets of the Devon County Council pension fund attributable to the Council are 
included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

 
The change in the net pension liability is analysed into the following components: 

 current service cost – allocated in the CIES to the service for which the employees 
worked. 

 past service cost – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in 
the CIES as part of non-distributed costs  

 

43

Page 73



 

                                                                                                        
Statement of Accounting Policies   

 

 

 net interest on the net defined benefit liability - charged to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line of the CIES 

 
Re-measurements comprising: 

 the return on plan assets - excluding amounts included in net interest on the net 
defined benefit liability - charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 

 actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because 
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or 
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to the Pensions 
reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

 Contributions paid to the Devon County Council Pension Scheme - cash paid as 
employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted 
for as an expense in the CIES. 
 

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or directly to  
pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting 
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are appropriations  
to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement 
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and any such 
amounts payable but unpaid at year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions 
Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to 
account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned 
by employees. 
 
4.10 Discretionary Benefits 
 
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits 
in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to 
any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and 
accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension 
Scheme. 
 
4.11 Grants and Contributions 
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third-party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable 
assurance that: 

44

 the Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

 the grants or contributions will be received. 
 

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the CIES until the Council has 
satisfied any conditions attached to the grant or contribution that would require repayment if 
not met. 
  
The grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants 
and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring fenced revenue 
grants and all capital grants) in the CIES. 
 

Page 74



 

                                                                                                        
Statement of Accounting Policies   

 

 
Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
they are reversed out of the General Fund balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital 
Grants Unapplied reserve. When it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment 
Account. 
 
4.12 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (REFCUS) 
 
REFCUS represents expenditure that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not 
result in the creation of tangible assets controlled by the Council. Service revenue accounts have 
been charged on the basis of the benefit that the service received as a result of the expenditure, 
net of any capital grants received during the year.  
 
As the asset created is not owned by the Authority at the end of the accounting period, the 
expenditure, net of any capital grants received during the year, is immediately written off in  
full in the year of creation. Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of the REFCUS 
from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer to the Capital  
Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged in the Movement in Reserves 
Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account, so there is no 
impact upon the level of Council Tax. 
 
4.13 Value Added Tax 
 
Income and expenditure exclude any amounts related to VAT as all VAT collected is payable to 
HM Revenue and Customs and all VAT paid is recoverable from it, except where the Council is 
unable to recover VAT. VAT receivable is excluded from income. 
 
4.14 Exceptional Items 
 
When items of income and expenditure are material, their nature and amount is disclosed 
separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or  
in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of 
the Authority’s financial performance. 
 
4.15 Minimum Revenue Provision  
 
The Prudential Code requires that all capital expenditure is financed by a credit to the 
Capital Adjustment Account. If funding is not immediately available, then a Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR) arises. 
 
Essentially the CFR has to be mitigated over time on a prudent basis by making a “minimum 
revenue provision”. This is a charge to the General Fund made from the “Adjustments between 
Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations” and the Capital Adjustment account.\ 
 
The basis of estimation adopted by the Authority comprises three elements: 

 To make a minimum revenue provision of 4% on assets acquired prior to 1 April 
2008. 

 Finance leases have their capital financing applied on a straight-line basis over the life of 
the lease contract.  

 New assets acquired after 1 April 2008 that are not finance leases, have their capital 
financing calculated on a straight line at 4%.  

 

Page 75



 

                                                                                                        
Statement of Accounting Policies   

 

 
4.16 Events after the Balance Sheet Date 
 
Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, 
that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of 
Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 

 those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting 
period the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events 

 those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period the 
Statement of Accounts are not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category  
of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature 
of the events and their estimated financial effect. 
 

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the 
Statement of Accounts. 
 
4.17 Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies, Estimates and 
Errors 
 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to 
correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively. 
i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior 
period adjustment. Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper 
accounting practices or if the change provides more reliable or relevant information about 
the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Authority’s financial position or 
financial performance. When a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless 
otherwise stated) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the period as 
if the new policy had always been applied. 
 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending 
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 
 
4.18 Property, Plant and Equipment  
 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of 
the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s 
potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (e.g. repairs and 
maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.  
 
Expenditure is treated as revenue in nature unless the expenditure exceeds £10k. However, 
where significant quantities of items are acquired at the same time e.g. personal computers 
or the expenditure is financed by capital grant, then it would be capitalised. 
 
Assets are initially measured at cost comprising: 

 the purchase price 

 any costs attributable to bringing the asset into the working condition necessary for it 
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management 

 any costs attributable to dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on 
which it is located 

46

Page 76



 

                                                                                                        
Statement of Accounting Policies   

 

 where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the revaluation reserve, 
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the 
amount of the accumulated gains) 
 

 where there is no balance in the revaluation reserve or an insufficient balance, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1st April 2007 only, 
the date of formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated 
into the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication that items may 
be impaired.  Where indications exist and any possible differences are material, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying  
amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. Where impairment 
losses are identified, they are accounted for in the same way as revaluation losses. 
 
Depreciation is provided on all Property, Plant & Equipment assets by the systematic 
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives.  An exception is made for 
assets without a determinable finite life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community assets) 
and assets that are not yet available for use (assets under construction). 
 
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components whose cost is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated 
separately. 
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the 
balance sheet (Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the 
Other Operating Expenditure line in the CIES against any receipts arising from the disposal 
as a gain or loss on disposal. 
 
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an 
Asset held for Sale. The asset is re-valued immediately before reclassification and then 
carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a 
subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Other  
 

47

 
The Authority does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under 
construction. 
 
Certain categories of Property, Plant and Equipment are measured subsequently at current 
value (see 4.1 for details). Assets included in the balance sheet at current value are revalued 
sufficiently regularly to ensure that their carrying amount is not materially different from 
current value at the year end.  As a minimum a full asset revaluation is undertaken every five 
years.  Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the revaluation reserve to 
recognise unrealised gains. 
 
Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for as follows: 
 

Page 77



 

                                                                                                        
Statement of Accounting Policies   

 

 
Operating Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains or 
losses on sale are posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the CIES. Gains in fair 
value are recognised only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus 
or Deficit on Provision of Services.  
 
Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. If assets no longer meet the criteria to 
be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to non-current assets and 
valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for sale; 
adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had 
they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the 
decision not to sell. Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as 
Assets Held for sale.  
 
4.19 Heritage Asset 
 
A tangible heritage asset is defined as an asset with historical, artistic, scientific, 
technological, geophysical or environmental qualities that is held and maintained principally 
for its contribution to knowledge and culture. Where such assets are identified the asset is 
included in the accounts as a tangible heritage asset and shown separately from Vehicles, 
Property Plant and Equipment. If the asset was donated or acquired for less than fair value, 
the asset is brought into the balance sheet at its fair value. The authority values heritage 
assets on the basis of insurance valuations. 
 
The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment 
for heritage assets, e.g. where an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or 
where doubts arise as to its authenticity. Any impairment is recognised and measured in 
accordance with the Authority’s general policies on impairment. Where an impairment loss 
has been determined, and a revised valuation obtained, the impairment loss is charged to 
the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. The charge is then reversed out and 
charged to the Capital Adjustment account. 
 
4.20 Investment Properties 
 
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the 
delivery of services or the production of goods or is held for sale.  
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on 
the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s-
length. Investment properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to 
market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the 
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.  
Rentals and expenditure in relation to investment properties are credited / debited to the 
Financing and Investment Income line and generally result in a gain for the General Fund 
Balance.  
 
 
 
 

48

Page 78



 

                                                                                                        
Statement of Accounting Policies   

 

 
However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory 
arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are 
therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the MiRS and posted to the CAA and 
(for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Useable Capital Receipts Reserve 
 

4.21 Intangible Assets 

Expenditure on assets that do not have a physical substance but are identified and 
controlled by the Authority as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised 
when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the 
intangible asset to the Authority. 
 
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair 
value of the assets held by the Authority can be determined by reference to an active 
market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Authority meets this criterion, and they 
are therefore carried at amortised cost. 
 
The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over their estimated useful 
economic life and debited to the relevant service line within the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement.  Any gain or loss arising from the disposal of an intangible asset is 
posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line within the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. 
 
4.22 Leases 
 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the 
lessor to the lessee.  All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
 
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings are considered 
separately for classification. 
 
Property, plant and equipment held by the Council under finance leases is recognised on the 
balance sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s 
inception (or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower).  The asset 
recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor.  Premiums paid on 
entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Subsequent payments are 
apportioned between: 

 a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – 
applied to write down the lease liability. 

 Financing charges and contingent rents (debited to the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line within the CIES. 

 
Rentals paid by the Council under operating leases are charged to the CIES as an expense 
of the service benefitting from the use of the leased asset. Charges are made on a straight-
line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of the payments. 
 
 
 

49

Page 79



 

                                                                                                        
Statement of Accounting Policies   

 

 
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or 
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is recognised in the 
CIES. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does 
not match the pattern of payments. 
 

4.23 Investments including Cash on Deposit with Banking Institutions 
 
Where investments are held at the balance sheet date they are treated as long term, if at the 
initial contract date, their term is more than twelve months. If, at the initial contract date, their 
term is more than three months but less than twelve months they are regarded as short-term 
investments. All the Council’s investments are currently less than 12 months in duration and 
therefore classed as short-term investments. Any cash and bank balances whose term, at 
their initial contract date is less than three months are categorised as cash and cash 
equivalents. 
 
4.24 Collection Fund - accounting for local taxation 
 
The Council as a billing authority is statutorily required to maintain a separate agency 
Collection Fund account, into which all transactions relating to the collection of Business 
Rates, Council tax income from taxpayers and distributions to local government bodies and  
central government are made.  The Collection fund account is accounted for separately from 
the General Fund. 
 
Distributions of Council Tax Income, including Surpluses or Deficits are apportioned to the 
relevant precepting bodies in the following year, in proportion to each preceptor’s share of 
the Band D Council Tax.  
 
Business rate surpluses or deficits are distributed in accordance with the rules of the Devon 
Business Rate Pool (Devon Business Rate Pilot for the 2018/19 year). 
 
Both Business Rates and Council Tax income will be recognised in the CIES included within 
the line on Taxation & Non-Specific Grant Income.  
 
As a billing authority, the difference between the Business Rates and Council Tax included 
in the CIES and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General Fund shall 
be taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and reported in the Movement in 
Reserve Statement.  
 
Each major preceptor’s share of the accrued Business Rates and Council Tax income is 
shown within the Collection Fund Statement.  
 
Revenue relating to items such as council tax, general rates, etc. shall be measured at the 
full amount receivable (net of any impairment losses), as they are non-contractual, non-
exchange transactions and there can be no difference between the delivery and payment 
dates. 
 
4.25 Inventories 
 
For the 2021/22 accounts the Council did not hold any material stock inventories 

50

Page 80



 

                                                                                                        
Statement of Accounting Policies   

 

 
4.26 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable 
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that 
at, their inception, mature in no more than three months or less from the date of acquisition 
and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in  
 
value. In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank 
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s cash 
management. 
 
4.27 Financial Instruments 
 
Financial Instruments are recognised on the balance sheet when the Council becomes party 
to their contractual provisions. They are initially measured at fair value. 
 
Financial Liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised costs. For the Council’s 
borrowing this means that the amount presented in the balance sheet is the outstanding 
principal repayable plus accrued interest. Annual charges to Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the CEIS are based upon the carrying amount of the liability 
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. 
 
Financial Assets are measured in one of two ways: 

 Amortised costs – assets whose contractual terms are basic lending arrangements 
(i.e. they give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal or interest on the principal amount outstanding, which the Council holds 
under a business model whose objective is to collect those cash flows) 

 Fair value – all other financial assets 
 
Amortised cost assets are measured in the balance sheet at the outstanding principal 
repayable plus accrued interest. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the CIES are based upon the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by 
the effective interest rate for the instrument. Any gains or losses in fair value that might arise 
are not accounted for until the instrument matures or is sold. 
 
Allowances for impairment losses have been calculated for amortised assets, applying the 
expected credit losses model. Changes in loss allowances (including balances outstanding 
at the date of de-recognition of an asset) are debited/credited to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES. 

 
Changes in the value of assets carried at fair value (described as Fair Value through Profit 
and Loss) are debited/credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line 
in the CIES as they arise. 
 
4.28 Provisions 
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the CIES where an 
event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive obligation that probably 
requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the amount of the obligation, but where the timing of the transfer is uncertain. Provisions  

51

Page 81



 

                                                                                                        
Statement of Accounting Policies   

 

 
are charged as the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to 
settle the obligation, taking into relevant risks and uncertainties. 
 
4.29 Contingent Liabilities 
 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a 
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the existence of uncertain  
 
future events not wholly within the control of the Authority. Contingent liabilities also arise in 
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts.  
 
4.30 Joint Operations  
 
Joint operations are arrangements where the parties that have joint control of the 
arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the 
arrangement.  The activities undertaken by the authority in conjunction with other joint 
operators involve the use of the assets and resources of those joint operators.  In relation to 
its interest in a joint operation, the authority as a joint operator recognises: 
 
 

 its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly 

 its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly 

 its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint operation 

 its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint operation 

 its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly. 
 
The Council has an interest in another entity, the Joint North Devon Crematorium, which falls 
outside the accounting group boundary of the Council on the grounds that it is a Joint 
Operation. 
 
The joint operation is with our neighbouring authority North Devon Council and has been in 
existence and operated successfully since 1974. Torridge’s share of the assets, liabilities, 
income and expenditure from the Crematorium is 40%. 
 
4.31 Reserves 
 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate 
service in that year to debiting the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 
CIES.  The Reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the 
expenditure. 

52

Page 82



 

                                                                                                        
Statement of Accounting Policies   

 

 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, 
financial instruments, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable 
resources for the Council; these reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 
 
The Council has approved a policy whereby the level of the General Fund balance should 
not fall below £1m, the current General Fund balance being of £1.1m. 
 
 

53

Page 83



 

                                                                                                        
Accounting Standards that have been issued but not yet adopted   

 

 

5: Accounting Standards that have been issued but not yet adopted 

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the code) 
requires the disclosure of information relating to the expected impact of an accounting 
change that will be required by a new standard which has been issued but has yet to be 
adopted by the 2020/21 Code. 
 
The Code also requires that changes in accounting policy are to be applied retrospectively 
unless transitional arrangements are specified, this would result in an impact on disclosures 
spanning two financial years. 
 
Accounting changes that are introduced by the 2021/22 code are: 

 Definition of Business: Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations 

 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform: Amendments to IRFS 9, IAS 39 & IFRS 7 
 

In response to the Covid-19 pandemic CIPFA/LASAAC deferred the implementation of IFRS 
16 leases in the public sector until the 2022/23 financial year, with an effective date of 1st 
April 2022. This will require lessees to recognise assets subject to lease as right of use 
assets on their balance sheet, along with corresponding lease liabilities. 
 
These changes are not expected to have a material impact on the Council’s Statement of 
Accounts. 

54

Page 84



 
 

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies     

 

 

6.  Critical Judgement in Applying Accounting Policies 

In applying the accounting policies laid out in section 4, the Council has had to make certain 

critical judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future 

events. In these accounts these are as follows: 

Provisions 
Provisions made for Business Rate appeals are estimates made for the expected loss in 
Business Rate income as a result of successful appeals based on currently outstanding 
appeals dating back to 01/04/2010 and outstanding and expected appeals dating back to 
01/04/2017. 
 

Joint Working Arrangements 
 
The Council has an interest in the Joint North Devon Crematorium, which falls outside the 
accounting group boundary of the Council on the grounds that it is a Joint Operation as 
defined by the Code.  The Joint arrangement is with our neighbouring North Devon Council 
and has been in existence and operated successfully since 1974. Based on Historical 
population splits Torridge Council has a 40% share in the operation. Torridge’s share of 
balances pertaining to the Crematorium is incorporated within the financial statements. The 
financial operating position is considered viable and robust, as reported to the respective 
Councils to the arrangement. The Council does not believe that there is a need for an 
impairment of assets in light of this arrangement.  
 
The Council has a number of interests in another entity “North Devon+” which falls within the 
group boundary of the Council on the grounds of control and significant influence in line with 
the Code. However, the Council’s interests in aggregate are not sufficiently material to 
warrant producing consolidated financial statements when reviewing both quantitative and 
qualitative information. For this reason, group accounts are not deemed necessary within 
these statements. 

55

Page 85



                                                                                                
Assumptions made about future and other major sources of estimation 

 

 
7.   Assumptions made about future and other major sources of estimation 
 

The statement of accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by 
the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimations are made, taking into 
account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because 
balances cannot be determined with certainty actual results could be materially different from the 
estimates. 
 

The items in the Council’s’ balance sheet at 31st March 2022 which have the greatest risk of 
material adjustment in the forthcoming year are as follows: 

Item Uncertainty Effect if actual different from 
estimate 

Property, 
Plant & 
Equipment 

Asset values are based upon market prices and are 
periodically reviewed to ensure the Council does not 
materially miss-state its non-current & investment 
assets. 
 
The Council’s external Valuer provided valuations as 
at 1st April 2021 for 20% of its operational portfolio, 
with the remaining 80% being subject to a desktop 
revaluation, both on a fair value basis.  The valuations 
returned reported an increase in the value of the 
Council’s portfolio of properties of £0.561m.  
 
 
 
 

A reduction in the estimated 
valuations would result in 
reductions to the revaluation 
reserve, and / or a loss 
recorded as appropriate to the 
Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure statement.  
 
The net book value of assets 
subject to potential revaluation 
is circa £33.127m. If the 
valuations on these assets were 
to reduce/increase by 10% 
there would be a movement on 
the revaluation reserve of 
£3.313m 

Pension 
Liability 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The estimation of the Councils’ net pension liability is 
dependent upon several factors 

 Future Interest Rates 

 Life expectancy 

 Salary inflation 

 Expected returns on investments 
 

Devon County Council has engaged Barnett 
Waddingham as its consulting actuary to provide 
expert advice about the assumptions to be applied. 
 
A full actuarial revaluation is done on a triennial basis, 
the latest revaluation being undertaken in 2019/20.  
As a result of this revaluation the employer’s pension 
contribution rates rose to 17.5% from 15.8% 
 
There are currently uncertainties in relation to LGPS 
benefits due to the McCloud and Sergeant 
judgements. Remedial regulations are expected in 
2022 and uncertainty over the benefit changes 
proposed for the LGPS will remain until these have 
been finalised.  Torridge’s pension actuaries (Barnett 
& Waddington) have already made an allowance in  
their calculation of future pension liability for the 
possible remedy to McCloud.  

Variations within the key 
assumptions will have the 
following impact upon the net 
pension liability. 
 
- An increase in 1 year in life 
expectancy would result in an 
increase of £4.752m on the net 
pension liability 
 
- A 0.1% increase to the salary 
costs would result in a £0.177m 
increase to the net pension 
liability 
 
- An increased movement of 
0.1% on future interest rates 
results in a movement of 
£1.753m on the net liability, an 
increase resulting in a decrease 
to the net liability, whilst a 
decrease to future interest rates 
would increase the liability by 
the £1.720m 

56

Page 86



                                                                                                
Assumptions made about future and other major sources of estimation 

 

 

Item Uncertainty Effect if actual different from 
estimate 

Business 
Rates 

Following the introduction in April 2013 of the 
Business Rates Retention scheme the Council has 
been liable for a proportion of successful rating 
appeals. A provision is calculated based upon the 
best available information, including the latest list of 
outstanding appeals lodged with the Valuation Office 
(VO), analysis of past settled appeals, age of appeals 
and knowledge of issues pertaining to specific 
business sectors.  
 

Torridge’s approach to 
calculating its provision for 
NNDR appeals is to use the 
Valuation Office’s national 
estimate of successful appeals 
as a basis for calculating the 
NNDR appeals provision 

57

Page 87



                                                                                                
Events after the Accounting Period 

 

 

8: Events after the accounting period 

The draft statement of accounts was authorised for issue by the Finance Manager and 
Section 151 Officer on the 30th June 2022. Events taking place after this date are not 
reflected in the financial statement or notes. Where events taking place before this date 
provided information about conditions existing at the 31st March 2022, the figures in the 
financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material aspects to reflect the 
impact of this information.  
 

58

Page 88



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ASSOCIATED NOTES INDEX 

Item Note Page No

Expenditure Funding Analysis 1a 60

Expenditure chargeable to General Fund not included in reporting 1b 61

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2 61

Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature 3 62

Segment reporting 4 62

Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations 5 63-66

Other Operating expenditure 6 67

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 7 67

Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income 8 67

Grant Income 9 68

Officers' Remuneration 10 69

Termination Benefits 11 69

Members Allowances 12 70

Related Party Transactions 13 70

External Audit Costs 14 70

Agency Services 15 70

Summary of Capital Expenditure and Financing 16 71

Property, Plant and Equipment 17 72-73

Property, Plant and Equipment - Revaluations 18 74

Heritage Assets 19 75

Intangible Assets 20 75

Investment properties 21 76

Long-term Debtors 22 76

Assets held for sale 23 76

Short-term investments 24 77

Short Term Debtors 25 77

Aged Debt Analysis Local Taxpayers 25a 77

Cash and Cash Equivalents 26 77

Financial Instruments 27 78-80

Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments 28 80-82

Operating Leases 29 83

Short-term Creditors 30 84

Provisions 31 84

Short-term Borrowing 32 84

Long Term Borrowing 33 85

Pensions Reserve 34 85

Collection Fund Adjustment Account 35 86

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 36 87

Revaluation Reserve 37 87

Capital Adjustment Account 38 88

Capital Grants Unapplied 39 89

Capital Receipts Reserve 40 89

Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 41 90

Cash Flow Statement - Operating Activities 42 91

Cash Flow Statement  - Non-cash Adjustments to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services 43 91

Cash Flow Statement - Adjustment for items in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services 

that are investing or financing activities

43 91

Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities 44 92

Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities 45 92

Defined Benefit Pension Scheme 46 93-96

Contingent Liabilities 47 97

Contingent Assets 48 97

Trusts 49 97

Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account -  Council Tax 98

Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account - Non-Domestic Rates 99

Calculation of Council Tax Base 1 100

Income collectable from Business Rates 2 100

59

Page 89



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

1a

2020/21

As reported for 

resource 

management

Expenditure 

chargeable to 

General Fund not 

incl in reporting

Net movement on 

GF reserves

Adjustments 

between Funding 

and Accounting 

basis

Net Expenditure in 

CIES

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Funding Monitoring (14,613) 14,613

Chief Executive 1,421 238 1,660 1,660

Head of Legal & Gov & Monitoring Officer 1,903 249 2,153 2,153

Finance Manager (S151) 8,683 (1,593) 7,090 (5,207) 1,883

Head of Communities & Place 2,605 1,563 4,168 4,168

Other (22) (22)

Net cost of services 0 15,071 15,071 (5,229) 9,842

Other Income and Expenditure 2,322 2,322 2,322

Taxation and non-specific grant income (17,393) (17,393) 3,658 (13,735)

Total 0 0 0 (1,571) (1,571)

See note 1b See note 2

Opening General fund & Earmarked reserve balances (9,992)

Less Surplus on General Fund and Earmarked Reserve balances in year 6,810

Closing General Fund and Earmarked Reserve balances (16,802)

2021/22

As reported for 

resource 

management

Expenditure 

chargeable to 

General Fund not 

incl in reporting

Net movement on 

GF reserves

Adjustments 

between Funding 

and Accounting 

basis

Net Expenditure in 

CIES

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Funding Monitoring (9,177) 9,177

Chief Executive 1,585 205 1,790 1,790

Head of Legal & Gov & Monitoring Officer 1,988 (22) 1,967 1,967

Finance Manager (S151) 2,606 (2,560) 46 2,991 3,036

Head of Communities & Place 2,999 2,412 5,411 5,411

Other (23) (23)

Net cost of services 9,213 9,213 2,968 12,181

Other Income and Expenditure 2,575 2,575 2,575

Taxation and non-specific grant income (11,788) (11,788) (1,487) (13,274)

Total 0 0 1,481 1,481

See note 1b See note 2

Opening General fund & Earmarked reserve balances (16,802)

Less Surplus on General Fund and Earmarked Reserve balances in year (564)

Closing General Fund and Earmarked Reserve balances (17,366)

The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to council tax payers how the funding available to 

the Council (i.e. government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) for the year has been used in providing services, 

in comparison with those resourced, consumed or earned by the Council in accordance with Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practices.  The Expenditure Funding Analysis also shows how expenditure is allocated for decision making 

purposes between the Authority's responsibility sections for reporting.  Income and expenditure accounted for under 

Generally Accepted Accounting Practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement.

Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

60

Page 90



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the accounts

1b Expenditure chargeable to General Fund not included in reporting

2020/21 Fixed assets
Net Pension 

Adjustment

Other operating 

Expenditure

Specific 

Grants & 

Taxation

Other Total

Funding Monitoring 14,613 14,613

Chief Executive 237 1 238

Head of Legal & Gov & Monitoring Officer 246 3 249

Finance Manager (S151) (604) (988) (1,592)

Head of Communities & Place 1,556 7 1,563

Other

Net cost of services 1,435 (977) 14,613 15,071

Other Income and Expenditure 701 1,621 2,322

Taxation and non-specific grant income (1,160) (16,233) (17,393)

Total 1,435 (977) (459) 1 0

2021/22 Fixed assets
Net Pension 

Adjustment

Other operating 

Expenditure

Specific 

Grants & 

Taxation

Other Total

Funding Monitoring 9,177 9,177

Chief Executive 207 (2) 205

Head of Legal & Gov & Monitoring Officer (17) (5) (22)

Finance Manager (S151) (1,520) (1,032) (8) (2,560)

Head of Communities & Place 2,421 (9) 2,412

Other

Net cost of services 1,091 (1,048) (8) 9,177 9,213

Other Income and Expenditure 2,575 2,575

Taxation and non-specific grant income (11,788) (11,788)

Total 1,091 (1,048) 2,567 (2,610) 0

2 Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

Capital

Net change for 

pensions 

adjustment 

Accumulated 

absences

Collection 

Fund

Earmarked 

reserves
TOTAL

Funding Monitoring (3,658) (3,658)

Chief Executive

Head of Legal & Gov & Monitoring Officer

Finance Manager (S151) (187) (1,308) (50) 6,751 5,207

Head of Communities & Place

Other (37) 59 22

Total (224) (1,308) (50) (3,658) 6,810 1,571

Capital

Net change for 

pensions 

adjustment 

Accumulated 

absences

Collection 

Fund

Earmarked 

reserve 
Total

Funding Monitoring 1,487 1,487

Chief Executive

Head of Legal & Gov & Monitoring Officer

Finance Manager (S151) (1,045) (2,458) 4 507 (2,991)

Head of Communities & Place

Other (34) 57 23

Total (1,079) (2,458) 4 1,487 564 (1,481)

2020/21

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

2021/22

This note recognises that statutorily the Council Tax payers are not to be charged with a number of charges, so these 

are removed through entries through the Movements In Reserves statement to arrive at the net surplus or deficit 

chargeable in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services.

Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis

61

Page 91



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the accounts

3 Expenditure and Income analysed by Nature

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

1,822 1,916

190 Impairment charged to service 620

8,808 9,396

9,995 8,871

12,909 Housing Benefit payments 12,077

41 34

1,612 1,631

944 1,016

32 Pension administration expense 32

332 Employees benefit adjustment 1,410

956 776

102 Transfer of investment asset 117

37,743 37,896

(173) (1)

(8,966) (10,158)

(997) (776)

(9,989) (5,278)

(12,654) Housing Benefit Subsidy (11,716)

(6,400) (8,351)

(32) (19)

(102) (117)

(39,313) (36,415)

(1,571) 1,481

4 Segment Reporting

Income received on a segmental basis is analysed below

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

(5) Chief Executive (10)

(1,201) Head of Legal & Governance & Monitoring Officer (1,866)

(13) Finance Manager (S151) (17)

(4,797) Head of Communities & Place (6,131)

(384) Other (327)

(6,400) Total income analysed on a segmental basis (8,351)

Income per Responsibility Centre

Net Investment Properties

(Surplus) / Deficit on the provision of services

Total Income

(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets

Collection Fund income

External contribution to deferred charge write off

Government Grants

Income - fees and charges

Interest and Investment Income

Expenditure and Income

Parish Precepts

Pension interest cost and expected return

Revenue expenditure financed from capital source 

Total Expenditure

Depreciation

Employees

Expenditure

External interest payable

62

Page 92



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

5 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

2020/21

General 

Fund 

Balance

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total Usable 

Reserves

Movement in 

Unusable 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement:

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 1,627 1,627 (1,627) 

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment 214 214 (214) 

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties (24) (24) 24 

Amortisation of intangible assets 195 195 (195) 

Capital grants and contributions applied (2,157) (2,157) 2,157 

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 956 956 (956) 

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as 

part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement
61 61 (61) 

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment (43) (43) 43 

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund (371) (371) 371 

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:

Transfer of sale proceeds previously credited as part of the 

gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement from Deferred Capital Receipts reserve

291 291 (291) 

Transfer of in year cash sale proceeds credited as part of gain 

loss on disposal (121) 121 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure (412) (412) 412 

Adjustments involving the Deferred Capital Receipts 

Reserve:

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds as part of the gain/loss on 

disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement (114) (114) 114 

Balance carried forward 224 224 (224) 

This section shows the adjustments we have to make to arrive at the final charge to Council tax - these adjustments are 

reflected in the Movement in Reserves Statement

Usable Reserves

63

Page 93



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

5 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations - continued ….

2020/21
General 

Fund 

Balance

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total Usable 

Reserves

Movement in 

Unusable 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance brought forward 224 224 (224) 

Adjustment involving the Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement 3,066 3,066 (3,066) 

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to 

pensioners payable in the year (1,758) (1,758) 1,758 

Adjustment involving the Collection Fund Adjustment 

Account:

Amount by which council tax income credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements is different 

from council tax income calculated for the year in accordance 

with statutory requirements 58 58 (58) 

Amount by which NNDR income credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statements is different from NNDR 

income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory 

requirements 3,600 3,600 (3,600) 

Adjustment involving the Accumulating Compensated 

Absences Adjustment Account:

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 

Comprehensive Income an Expenditure Statement on an 

accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the 

year in accordance with statutory requirements. 50 50 (50) 

Total Adjustments 5,239 5,239 (5,239)

Usable Reserves

64

Page 94



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

5 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations

2021/22

General 

Fund 

Balance

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total Usable 

Reserves

Movement in 

Unusable 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement:

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 1,726 1,726 (1,726) 

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment 598 598 (598) 

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties 22 22 (22) 

Amortisation of intangible assets 182 182 (182) 

Capital grants and contributions applied (1,747) (1,747) 1,747 

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 776 776 (776) 

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as 

part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement
2,698 2,698 (2,698) 

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment (41) (41) 41 

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund (435) (435) 435 

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:

Transfer of sale proceeds previously credited as part of the 

gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement from Deferred Capital Receipts reserve

114 114 (114) 

Transfer of in year cash sale proceeds credited as part of gain 

loss on disposal (1,921) 1,921 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure (738) (738) 738 

Adjustments involving the Deferred Capital Receipts 

Reserve:

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds as part of the gain/loss on 

disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement (778) (778) 778 

Balance carried forward 1,079 1,297 2,376 (2,376) 

This section shows the adjustments we have to make to arrive at the final charge to Council tax - these adjustments are 

reflected in the Movement in Reserves Statement

Usable Reserves

65

Page 95



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

5 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations - continued ….

2020/21
General 

Fund 

Balance

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total Usable 

Reserves

Movement in 

Unusable 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance brought forward 1,079 1,297 2,376 (2,376) 

Adjustment involving the Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or 

credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement 4,233 4,233 (4,233) 

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to 

pensioners payable in the year. (1,775) (1,775) 1,775 

Adjustment involving the Collection Fund Adjustment 

Account:

Amount by which council tax income credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statements is different 

from council tax income calculated for the year in accordance 

with statutory requirements (140) (140) 140 

Amount by which NNDR income credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statements is different from NNDR 

income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory 

requirements (1,347) (1,347) 1,347 

Adjustment involving the Accumulating Compensated 

Absences Adjustment Account:

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the 

Comprehensive Income an Expenditure Statement on an 

accruals basis is different from remuneration chargeable in the 

year in accordance with statutory requirements. (4) (4) 4 

Total Adjustments 2,046 1,297 3,343 (3,343)

Usable Reserves

66

Page 96



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

6 Other Operating Expenditure

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

1,612 1,631

32 32

(173) (1)

1,471 1,662

7 Financing & Investment Income & Expenditure

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

41 34

944 1,016

(102) (117)

(32) (19)

851 913

8 Taxation & Non Specific Grant Income

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

(5,699) (6,015)

(3,268) (4,143)

(3,609) (2,146)

(1,160) (971)

(13,735) (13,274)

Non-ringfenced government grants

Capital grants and contributions

Total

Further details of specific grant income are shown in note 9

Interest receivable and similar income

Total

Council tax income

Non domestic rates

Income & Expenditure relating to Investment Properties and change in fair value

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability

Parish Council precepts

Pension Fund Administration expense

(Gains)/Losses on the disposal of non current assets

Total

Interest payable and similar charges

67

Page 97



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

9 Grant Income

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

(133) (134) 

(474) (497) 

(924) (381) 

(4,433) (3,282) 

(8) (8) 

(71) (158) 

(1,160) (971) 

(2,070) Covid Related Support Grants (757) 

(297) 

(9,272) (6,485) 

2020/21 2021/22

£000 Credited to Services £000

(12,654) (11,716) 

(218) (192) 

(68) (66) 

(282) (513) 

(5) 

(40) (10) 

(13) (17) 

(119) 

(997) (710) 

(567) Covid-19 Related Funding (473) 

(3,903) Covid-19 Support to Businesses (785) 

(33) 

(49) 

(5) (23) 

(18,871) (14,587) 

Food Safety

Leisure Contract Facilities

Total

Planning, Brownfield Register & Custom Build

Other (Miscellaneous) 

Northam Burrows 

Housing Renewal Capital Grants

Economic Regeneration

Rural Sparsity Grant

The Authority credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement

Revenue Support Grant

New Homes Bonus

Homelessness

Council Tax Collection

Grants Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

Lower Tier Funding

Individual Registration Costs

Transparency Code Grant

Capital grants

Section 31 grant distribution

Total

Housing Benefits 

Housing Benefit Admin 

Local Support For Council Tax Admin 

68

Page 98



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

10 Officers' Remuneration

Remuneration Band Number of 

Employees

Left During Year Number of 

Employees

Left During 

Year

£50,000 - £54,999 1 6

£55,000 - £59,999 1

£60,000- £64,999 1

£65,000 - £69,999 2

£70,000 - £79,999 2

£100,000 - £115,000 1 1

Officers' Remuneration

Officers Earning in Excess of £50,000

Post Title Salary Compensation Expenses Total Pension Total 

Chief Executive (Statutory 

Post) 110,549        344               110,893       19,346            130,239            

Legal & Governance 

Manager/Monitoring Officer  

(Statutory post) 72,239          306               72,545         12,642            85,187              

Head of Finance and Section 

151 Officer (Statutory Post) 61,702          344               62,045         10,798            72,843              

Head of Communities and 

Place 72,391          72,391         12,668            85,059              

11 Termination Benefits

2020/21

Exit Package Cost Band

Total cost 

of exit 

packages 

in each 

band

£

NO EXIT PACKAGES WERE AGREED DURING 2020-21

2021/22

Exit Package Cost Band

Total cost 

of exit 

packages 

in each 

band

£

£0 - £19,999 4 4 20,907

£100,000 - £150,000

This table includes all statutory and non-statutory posts whose overall remuneration exceeds £50k excluding pension 

contributions and non taxable allowances.

2020/21 2021/22

In completing the 2021/22 Accounts we have complied with the statutory instrument regarding officer remuneration. The 

Note - the amounts included in the two above tables are shown gross of any related tax which would be levied.

Number of Compulsory 

redundancies

Number of other 

departures agreed

Total number of exit packages 

by cost band

Number of Compulsory 

redundancies

Number of other 

departures agreed

Total number of exit packages 

by cost band

69

Page 99



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

12 Members Allowances

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

232 248 

2 7 

234 255 

13 Related Party Transactions

14 External Audit Costs

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

53 70

20 22

73 Total 92

15 Agency Services

Allowances 

Fees payable with regard to the annual audit fee

Fees payable for the certification of claims and returns

Other services

The Council acts as agent for Devon County Council, Devon & Cornwall Police & Crime Commissioner and 

Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority in the collection of Council Tax and for Central Government in the 

collection of Non-Domestic Business Rates. The council also acts as agent for various Government 

departments and agencies in the distribution and collection of grant funding and welfare payments.

Fees paid to Torridge District Council's appointed external auditor, Grant Thornton, were as follows:

Expenses

Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the Council. It is responsible for 

providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates, provides the majority of its funding in the 

form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Council has with other parties (e.g. 

Housing Benefits). Details of transactions with government departments are set out in note 9 relating to all grant 

income and the NNDR Collection Fund.

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or individuals that have the 

potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by the Council.  Disclosure of these 

transactions allows readers of the accounts to assess the extent to which the Council might have been 

constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party's ability to 

bargain freely with the Council.

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council's financial and operating policies. The Council's 

constitution requires members to declare their interests in related parties in a register of interests. 

Some elected members are also parish councillors, details of the parish precepts are contained within note 6.  

The Council Constitution instructs members to exclude themselves when funding decisions are made regarding 

organisations in which they have declared an interest.   Officers of the Council are bound by the Council's Code 

of Conduct. Senior Officers (which encompasses all members of Management Team) are required to declare any 

related party transactions with the Council. No transactions have required disclosure.

In 2021/22 the Council made net payments of £790k  (Expenditure £496k - Income £1,286k) to parties in which 

members had declared an interest. Transactions with these parties amounting to over £50k are highlighted 

below.

Bideford Town Council (Expenditure £41k - Income £19k) Expenditure predominantly relates to Welcome Back 

Fund and Income includes Property rental and utility/insurance recharges

Devon County Council (Expenditure £54k - Income £1,092k) 

Income includes £1,031k Disabled Facilities Grants.

Great Torrington Town Council  (Expenditure £21k - Income £46k) Expenditure predominantly relates to 

Welcome Back Fund. Income includes £36k In Relation to the Architectural Heritage grant funded Globe Project 

in Torrington.

North Devon + (Expenditure £253k - Income £4k)

ND+ is a company limited by guarantee, joint owned between Torridge and North Devon Councils to facilitate 

Economic Regeneration. Expenditure includes £160k of Additional Restrictions Grant funding for the "Business 

Boost" programme of business support and grants for local businesses, and £56k paid in respect of administering 

Covid 19 Discretionary grant schemes.

70

Page 100



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2020/21

Notes to the Accounts

16 Summary of Capital Expenditure and Financing

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

1,080 1,037

1,961 2,112

15 44

11 (10)

956 776

(412) (738)

(2,159) (1,748)

(371) (435)

(43) (41)

1,037 997

43 41

Closing Capital Financing Requirement

Repayment of Prudential Borrowing

Explanation of movements in year

Use of reserves

Assets Held for Sale

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including the value of assets 

acquired under finance leases), together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where capital is to be 

financed in future years by charges to revenue for assets used by the Authority, the expenditure results in an increase 

in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred historically by the Authority 

that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note.

Decrease/(Increase) in Capital Financing 

Requirement

Opening Capital Financing Requirement

Plus Capital investment

Property, Plant and Equipment

Intangible assets

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under 

Statute

From Sources of Finance

 - Capital receipts applied

Sum from capital sources

 - Government grants and contributions

Sums set aside from revenue:

Statutory provision for the financing of capital 

investment

71

Page 101



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

17 Property, Plant and Equipment - continued

Movements in Balances

2020/21
Other Land & 

Buildings

Vehicles 

Plant & 

Equip

Infra-

structure 

Assets

Community 

Assets

Surplus 

Assets

Assets under 

construction

Total Property, 

plant and 

Equipment

Cost or Valuation £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 39,469 9,303 776 1,130 361 1,255 52,294

Additions 97                   425             -              425                1,013                 1,961

Reclassification* 770                 -              -                 (1,377)                (607)

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the 

Provision of Services (213) (213)

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Revaluation reserve
14 (4) 10

Derecognition - Disposals (128) (128)

Derecognition - Other

Other movements in cost or valuation

At 31 March 40,009 9,728 776 1,555 357 891 53,317

Accumulated Depreciation and 

ImpairmentAt 1 April (9,370) (6,006) (335) (52) (15,763) 
Depreciation charge

(554) (693) (32) (1,279)
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation 

Reserve (348) (0) -             (348)
Impairment losses/(reversals) recognised in 

the Revaluation Reserve

Derecognition - Disposals 67 67

At 31 March (10,205) (6,699) (367) (52) (17,323)

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2021
29,804 3,029 409 1,555 305 891 35,993

At 31 March 2020
30,099 3,297 441 1,130 309 1,255 36,531

* The balance of £607k on reclassification pertains to intangible assets and is included in the Purchases on the Intangible Assets Note 21

Depreciation is calculated on a straightline basis over useful life of the asset

• Buildings - useful lives are provided by valuer annually

• Specialist plant and equipment - 10-25 years

• Fleet vehicles - 6-9 years

• Secondhand vehicles - estimated useful life left

• General plant and equipment - 2-15 years

• Infrastructure assets - 10-60 years 

72

Page 102



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

17 Property, Plant and Equipment - continued

Movements in Balances

2021/22
Other Land & 

Buildings

Vehicles 

Plant & 

Equip

Infra-

structure 

Assets

Community 

Assets

Surplus 

Assets

Assets under 

construction

Total Property, 

plant and 

Equipment

Cost or Valuation £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 April 40,009 9,728 776 1,555 357 891 53,317

Additions 1,114              396             375             14                  213                    2,112

Reclassification* 823                 -              35                  (47)             (811)                   
Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Surplus/Deficit on the 

Provision of Services (602) 4 (598)

Revaluation increases/(decreases) 

recognised in the Revaluation reserve 1,182 (1) 1,181

Derecognition - Disposals (143) (143)

At 31 March 42,383 10,124 1,151 1,604 313 293 55,869

Accumulated Depreciation and 

Impairment

At 1 April (10,205) (6,699) (367) (52) (17,323) 
Depreciation charge

(583) (710) (43) (1,336)
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation 

Reserve (391) (0) -             (391)

Derecognition - Disposals 55 55

Other adjustments (12) 12 

At 31 March (11,136) (7,409) (410) (40) (18,995)

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2022 31,247 2,715 741 1,604 273 293 36,873

At 31 March 2021 29,804 3,029 409 1,555 305 891 35,993

Depreciation is calculated on a straightline basis over useful life of the asset

• Buildings - useful lives are provided by valuer annually

• Specialist plant and equipment - 10-25 years

• Fleet vehicles - 6-9 years

• Secondhand vehicles - estimated useful life left

• General plant and equipment - 2-15 years

• Infrastructure assets - 10-60 years 

73

Page 103



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

18 Property, Plant and Equipment

Revaluations

Other Land & 

Buildings

Vehicles Plant & 

Equip

Infra-

structure 

Assets

Community 

Assets

Surplus 

Assets

Assets under 

construction

Total Property, 

plant and 

Equipment

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Carried at Historical Cost 10,124 1,151 1,604 293 13,172

Valued at current value as at:

31 March 2022 42,383 313 42,696

31 March 2021

30 March 2020

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Total Cost or Valuation 42,383 10,124 1,151 1,604 313 293 55,868

The Council carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required to be measured at current value is 

revalued every five years. Valuations of land and buildings were carried out by the District Valuer and Valuation Office. Valuations were 

carried out in accordance with methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of 

Chartered Surveyors. Asset revaluations are based on a 20% full revaluation exercise as at 1 April 2021 and an 80% desktop exercise as at 

31 March 2022.

74

Page 104



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

19

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

Valuation

1,219 Balance at start of year 1,219 

1,219 Balance at end of year 1,219

20 Intangible Assets

The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows:

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

1,679 Gross carrying amounts 2,301 

(1,626)  Accumulated amortisation (1,821) 

54 Net carrying amount at start of year 481

622 Purchases 44 

(195) Amortisation charge for the period (182) 

481 Net carrying amount at the end of year 343

Heritage Assets

The Authority's accounting policies for recognition and measurement of heritage assets are set out 

in the Authority's summary of accounting policies (see 4.19).

The majority of Heritage Assets are held by the Burton Art Gallery. Many items are on permanent display 

whilst others are included as part of shows that take place during the year.  From 1 April 2016 the operation 

of the Burton Art Gallery was transferred to a Trust however the permanent collection remains in the 

ownership of the Council. Other assets, such as statues and war memorials, are located on open display 

throughout the District. 

The Council accounts for its purchased licences for software as intangible assets. All software is given a 

finite life based on the period that the software in the purchased form is expected to be of use to the 

Council. The useful lives vary from two to four years and are amortised on a straight-line basis. Service 

specific software is charged to the relevant service but non-specific software is charged to the ICT cost 

centres.

75

Page 105



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

21

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

(121) (124) 

19 7 

(102) (117)

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

1,606        1,630             

24 (22) 

1,630        Balance at end of year: 1,608

22 Long Term Debtors 

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

141 212 

141 212 

23 Assets Held for Sale

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

2,635 2,621 

11 Additions (10) 

Disposals (Sold) (2,611) 

(25) 

2,621 Balance at year end (0) 

Total

Balance at start of the year

Revaluation

Brunswick Wharf, Bridge Buildings and land at Cleave Wood were all sold during 2021/22.

Investment Properties

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and Investing 

Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

There are no restrictions on the Council's ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property or 

in the Council's right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal.  The Council has no 

contractual obligations, either to purchase, construct or develop investment property, or enhancement. 

The investment properties are leased out via operating leases and are included in Note 29.

Investment properties are revalued annually and are recorded using their fair values. Fair Value being 

defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market 

participants at the measurement date. All revaluations carried out are assessed and categorised in 

accordance with accounting policy. The Council's investment property revaluations have been assessed 

as Level 2 for valuation purposes. There has been no change in accounting policy for revaluation of 

investment properties during the year.  All valuations were carried out in accordance with the 

methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of 

Chartered Surveyors.

Other debtors

Balance at start of year:

Net gains / (losses) from fair value adjustments

Rental income from investment property

Direct operating expenses arising from investment

Net gain / (loss)

76

Page 106



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

24 Short Term Investments

2020/21 2121/22

£000 £000

7,001 14,000 

Short Term investments are lodged with UK registered financial institutions with a Fitch F1 rating

25 Short Term Debtors 

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

543 589 

194 184 

177 56 

4,478 2,572 

1,420 Local Authority Preceptors (192) 

206 Prepayments 156 

2,880 3,173 

9,897 Total 6,538 

Allowance for impairment of debt:

(138) Council Tax Arrears (169) 

(118) NNDR Arrears (105) 

(655) (722) 

(911) Total (997) 

8,986 Net current debtors total 5,542 

25a Aged Debt Analysis local taxpayers

Council Tax

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

205 220 

172 207 

166 163 

543 Total 589 

Business Rates

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

87 61 

64 53 

43 64 

194 Total 179 

26 Cash and Cash Equivalents

2020/21 2020/21

£000 £000

10,071 10,316 

386 441 

10,458 Net Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,758 

Over 3 years

Cash held by the Authority

Bank current accounts

Short-term deposits with financial institutions

Other debtors

Less than 1 year

Between 1 and 3 years

Over 3 years

Less than 1 year

Between 1 and 3 years

Other Debtors 

Total

Council Tax payers

Business Ratepayers

HM Revenue & Customs

Government Departments

During 2021/22 the Council has been charged with processing business support grants on behalf of central 

government.  Consequently cash balances have exceed limits as detailed within the Treasury Management 

Policy.  This has been reported to Full Council.

77

Page 107



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

27 Financial Instruments Balances

Long term Current    Long term Current

£000 £000 Financial Assets £000 £000

Investments

7,001 Short term investment 14,000

7,001 Total Investments 14,000

Debtors

141 Loans and trade receivables 212

2,063 Debtors that are financial instruments 2,254

141 2,063 Debtors subtotal 212 2,254

6,923 Debtors that are not financial instruments 3,287

141 8,986 Total Debtors 212 5,541

Cash and Cash Equivalents

10,458 Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,758

10,458 Total Cash and cash equivalents 10,758

Borrowings

482 191 Financial Loans at amortised cost 483

482 191 Total Borrowings 483

Creditors

1,322 Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1,323

1,322 Creditors subtotal 1,323

11,316 Creditors that are not financial instruments 11,011

12,638 Total Creditors 12,334

The Loans and investments disclosed in the Balance Sheet are made up of the following categories of 

financial instruments:

2021/222020/21

78

Page 108



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

27 Financial Instruments continued…

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

Expense in Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

41 Interest payable 34 

41 Interest payable and similar charges 34

Income in Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

(32) Interest and investment income (19) 

(32) Interest and investment income (19)

9 Net (gain)/loss for the year 15

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities Carried at Amortised Cost

The gains and losses recognised in the Income and Expenditure account in relation to financial instruments 

are:

Financial liabilities and financial assets represented by loans and receivables and long-term debtors and 

Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the present value of cash flows that take place over the 

remaining life of the instruments, using the following assumptions:

• For loans from PWLB estimated interest rates in the range from 4.875% at 5.125% have been used.                                             
• No early repayment or impairment is recognised.

• Where the instrument has a maturity of less than 12 months the carrying amount is assumed to 

approximate to fair value.

• The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.

79

Page 109



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

27 Financial Instruments continued…

The fair values calculated are as follows:

Carrying 

Amount
Fair Value

Carrying 

Amount
Fair Value

£000 £000 £000 £000

PWLB Debt 2 661 750 470 516

Other Loans N/A 12 12 12 12

Finance Leases

Creditors N/A 1,195 1,195 1,199 1,199 

Total Financial Liabilities 1,868 1,957 1,681 1,727

Cash and Cash equivalents 10,458 10,458 10,758 10,758

Long Term Investments

Money market loans< 1 year N/A 7,001 7,001 14,000 14,000

Trade debtors N/A 2,063 2,063 2,254 2,254

Total Loans and Receivables 9,064 9,064 16,254 16,254

Long term debtors N/A 141 141 212 212

28 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising From Financial Instruments

The Council’s overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise 

potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund services. Risk management is carried out under policies in the 

Annual Treasury Management Strategy, which is approved by the Council. The Council maintains written principles for overall 

risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas such as; interest rate risk, credit risk, and the investment of 

surplus cash.

2020/21 2021/22

Fair value 

Level

Level 2 Fair Value Liabilities 

The fair value of long-term loans from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) of £0.516 million measures the economic effect of 

•   Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council as a result of changes in such measures as interest 

rate movements.

The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

•  Credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council.

•  Liquidity risk – the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its commitments to make payments.

80

Page 110



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

28 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising From Financial Instruments continued…

Credit risk

Estimated 

maximum 

exposure to 

default at 31 

March 2021

Amount at 31 

March 2022

Historical 

experience of 

default
31 March 2022

Estimated 

maximum 

exposure to 

default at   31 

March 2022

£000 £000 % % £000

Trade debtors 2,241 2,501 9.9% 246 

2,241 2,501 246

  Maximum investment of £5 million with any one institution.

  Minimum short-term Fitch rating of F1.

The Council does not generally allow credit for its trade debtors, such that all of the balance is past its due date for payment.

  Maximum investment of £3 million.

The following analysis summarises the Council’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk on other financial assets, based on 

the experience of the historical default over the last five financial years, adjusted to reflect current market conditions.  

Customers for goods and services are assessed, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

The Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building societies of £5million cannot 

be assessed generally as the risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be specific to 

each individual institution. A risk of non-recovery applies to all of the Council’s deposits, but there is no evidence at 31 March 

2021 that this was likely to crystallise. 

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to the Council’s customers.  

The risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that deposits are not made with banks and 

financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria as assessed by Fitch Rating Services. The Strategy 

imposes a maximum sum to be invested with a financial institution.

The credit criteria in respect of financial assets by the Council are:

Adjustment 

for market 

conditions at 

81

Page 111



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

28 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising From Financial Instruments continued…

Liquidity risk

£000 % £000 %

Local Bonds 12 0.24 12 0.07

Public Works Loans Board < 1 year 191 5.13

1-2 years

2-5 years 279 5.00 470 5.04

5-10 years 191 5.13

Total loan value outstanding 673 483

Interest rate risk

£000

Impact (increase) on Income and 

Expenditure Account (188) 

According to the Strategy if all interest rates had been 1% higher at 31 March 2022, with all other variables held 

constant, the financial effect would have been:

The Council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its investments. Movements in 

interest rates have a complex impact on the Council. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the following 

effects:

The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed.  

                                   Maturity Date Due

2020/21 2021/22

The Council has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The absence of a need to borrow will limit the 

exposure to interest rate movements on borrowing.  The Annual Investment Strategy recognises the current low level 

of interest rates. The treasury team monitors market and forecast interest rates within the year and adjusts exposures 

appropriately. For instance during periods of falling interest rates, and where circumstances make it favourable, fixed 

rate investments may be taken for longer periods to secure better returns.  

Borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities will fall.

Investments at variable rates – the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services will 

rise.
Investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall.

Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate borrowings would not impact on the 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other Comprehensive Income or Expenditure. However, changes in 

the interest receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services and affect the General Fund Balance. 

The Council manages its liquidity position through cash flow management procedures.  In the event of an unexpected 

cash requirement the Council has ready access to borrow from the money markets and the Public Works Loans Board. 

There is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments.  

The Council currently has no need to undertake significant borrowings to finance expenditure or replenish its 

borrowings. The maturity of the Council’s financial liabilities is as follows: 

Maturity Dates and Interest Rates

82

Page 112



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

29 Operating Leases

Authority as Lessor

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

678 791

1,595 1,547

1,819 2,087

4,091 4,425

Authority as Lessee

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

52 72

74 98

253 185

380 354

The Council has a number of leases with various organisations for the lease of land and buildings, over 

periods of between 1 and 99 years. The future minimum lease payments receivable under non 

cancellable lease in future years are:

Not later than one year

Later than five years

Total

Later than one year but not later than five years

Not later than one year

Later than one year but not later than five years

Later than five years

Total

The Council is committed to making minimum payments under leases relating to the long term liability for 

the interest in property and land acquired by the Council.  The minimum lease payments due from the 

Council are made up of the following amounts:

83

Page 113



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

30 Short Term Creditors

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

129 179 

9,529 8,898 

147 411 

1,510 Other income in advance 1,523 

1,322 1,323 

12,638 12,334 

31 Provisions

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

1,000 NNDR Appeals 126 1,126 

38 Housing Bond scheme (5) 33 

1,038 Total at 31 March (5) 121 1,159 

32 Short-term Borrowing

Balance Balance 

Maturity
At 31st 

March 2021

At 31st March 

2022

Date £000 £000

< 1 year

191 0

HM Revenue & Customs

Government Departments

Collection Fund Income in Advance

Public Works Loans 

Board

Lender

Total at 31 March

Other entities and individuals

Amounts 

used in 

2021/22

Unused - 

reversed

84

Page 114



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

33 Long Term Borrowing 

Balance Balance 

Maturity 2020/21 2021/22

Date £000 Lender £000

N/A 12 Local Bonds 12 

1-2 years Public Works Loans Board 0 

2-5 years 279 Public Works Loans Board 470 

5-10 years 191 Public Works Loans Board 0 

483 Total loan value outstanding 483 

34 Pensions Reserve

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

(41,064) (51,701) 

(9,329) 7,007 

(3,066) (4,233) 

1,758 1,775 

(51,701) (47,152) 

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for 

accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. 

The Authority accounts for post employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement as the benefits are earned by the employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities 

recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to 

meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the authority 

makes employer's contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is directly 

responsible. The credit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the 

benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Authority has set aside to meet them. 

The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come 

to be paid.

Employer's pension contributions and direct payments 

to pensioners payable in the year

At 1 April

At 31 March

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits 

debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement

Remeasurement of net defined liability

85

Page 115



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

35 Collection Fund Adjustment Account 

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

(35) 23 

58 (140) 

23 (117) 

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

271 At 1 April 3,871 

3,600 (1,347) 

3,871 At 31 March 2,525 

At 1 April

Amount by which council tax income credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement is different from Council Tax 

income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory 

requirements

At 31 March 

The Council Tax Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the 

recognition of the Council Tax income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

as it falls due from council tax payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying 

across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection fund

The (£117k) represents TDC's share (12%) of the overall Collection Fund Surplus of £1,014k at 

31/03/22

£2,539k  being the Council share of the NNDR deficit (£6,347k deficit x 40%) see the Collection 

Fund Statement. 

(£14k) being surplus in income from renewable energy in 2021/22 which by statute is not realised 

until 2022/23

Amount by which NNDR income credited to the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement is different from NNDR income 

calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements

The balance on this account is made up of two elements:

The NNDR (National Non Domestic Rate) Adjustment Account manages the differences arising 

from the recognition of the NNDR income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement as it falls due from NNDR payers compared with the statutory arrangements for paying 

across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection fund.

86

Page 116



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

36 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

291 114 

(291) (114) 

114 778 

114 778 

37 Revaluation Reserve

 - revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost

 - disposed of and the gains are realised.

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

15,084 14,679 

435 1,356 

(446) (175) 

(11) 1,181 

(45) (1,739) 

(348) (391) 

(15) 

14,679 13,715 At 31 March

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority arising from increases in the value of its 

Property, Plant and Equipment. The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

At 1 April

Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash

Transfer of deemed sale proceeds credited to gain/loss on disposal in 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement

At 31 March

The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non current assets but for 

which cash settlement has yet to take place.  Under statutory arrangements the Council does not treat these 

gains as useable for financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts.  When the deferred 

cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

 - used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the reserve was 

created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.

Disposals in Year

Transfer of Surplus asset to Community asset

Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost depreciation

At 1 April

Upward revaluation of assets

Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not posted to the Surplus on 

the Provision of Services

Surplus or deficit on revaluation of non-current assets not posted to the Surplus on 

the Provision of Services

87

Page 117



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

38 Capital Adjustment Account 

 

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

25,879 26,227 

(1,627) (1,726) 

(214) (598) 

(195) (182) 

(956) (776) 

(61) (2,698) 

(3,053) (5,980) 

348 391 

(2,705) (5,589) 

412 738 

2,158 1,747 

43 41 

371 435 

2,984 2,961 

24 (22) 

45 Revaluation reserve movement iro disposed assets 1,739 

15 

69 Revaluation reserve movements 1,732 

26,227 Balance at 31 March 25,331 

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from different arrangements for accounting 

for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those 

assets under statutory provisions. The account is debited with the cost of the acquisition, construction or 

enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income 

and expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to 

a historical cost basis). The account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the 

costs of acquisition, construction or enhancement.

The account contains revaluation gains and losses on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date 

that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

Balance at 1 April

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged against the 

General Fund

This note provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those involving 

the Revaluation Reserve.

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Charges for Depreciation and impairment of non current assets

Revaluation losses on Property, Plant and Equipment 

Amortisation of intangible assets

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

Transfer RR balance iro Transfer of Surplus Asset to Community Asset

Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss 

on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve

Net written out amount of the cost of non current assets consumed in the year

Capital financing applied in the year:

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties

Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund 

Capital grants and contributions credited to Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement that have been applied to capital financing

88

Page 118



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

39 Capital Grants Unapplied

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

127 127 

127 127 

40 Capital Receipts Reserve

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

(0) (0) 

121 1,921

(412) (738)

291 114

(0) 1,297

The Capital Receipts Reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets, which 

are restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or to be set 

aside to finance historic capital expenditure. The balance on the reserve shows the resources that 

have yet to be applied for these purposes.

At 1 April

At 31 March

The Capital Grants Unapplied Account  holds the grants and contributions received towards 

capital projects for which the Council has met the conditions that would otherwise require 

repayment of the monies, but which have yet to be applied to meet expenditure. The balance is 

restricted by grant terms as to the capital expenditure against which it can be applied and /or the 

financial year in which this can take place.

At 1 April

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on 

disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital 

expenditure

At 31 March

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds as part of the gain/loss on 

disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement

89

Page 119



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

41 Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves

General Fund - Revenue 

Earmarked Reserves

Balance 

at 

31/03/20

Transfers 

In

Transfers 

Out

Re- 

classified

Balance at 

31/03/21

Transfers In Transfers Out Re- 

classified

Balance at 

31/03/22

Backlog Maintenance 155 330 (94) 391 75 (33) 433

Section 215 Notices 111 111 111

Planning Appeals 98 20 118 20 138

Business Support 194 194 194

Transition in Government Funding 612 (196) 792 1,208 1,149 (105) 134 2,387

Project reserve 154 154 154

Economic Regeneration 63 42 (25) 80 65 145

Apprentice & Succession planning 63 51 (27) 88 253 (41) 300

Homelessness 153 (104) 59 107 39 146

Leisure 771 771 (73) 698

Various future Commitment 

reserves (<£100k) 811 165 (140) (32) 804 224 (244) (174) 610

Other earmarked reserves

Local Plan Inquiry 296 296 11 307

Collection Fund Timing 792 3,929 (792) 3,929 1,638 (3,005) 2,561

Covid-19 Grants RIA 763 763 261 (763) 261

Total 3,502 6,070 (560) 9,012 3,735 (4,264) (40) 8,443

Capital Reserves

Crematorium 293 59 352 57 409

Capital Scheme Funding Reserve 4,629 762 5,392 745 6,136

General Vehicle Replacement 260 554 (221) 593 554 (310) 837

General Equipment Including IT 241 (80) 161 80 (15) 40 266

Total 5,183 1,616 (301) 6,498 1,436 (325) 40 7,649

Section 106 Reserves

Commuted Sums 207 (15) 192 2 (20) 175

S106 Revenue 16 16 16

Total 223 (15) 208 2 (20) 190

Total Earmarked Reserves 8,908 7,687 (877) 15,718 5,173 (4,608) 16,282

Net Movement in year 6,810 564

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balance in Earmarked Reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the 

amounts posted back from Earmarked Reserves to meet General Fund Expenditure.

Revenue reserves

* Backlog Maintenance Reserve will be used to undertake outstanding repairs to Property, Plant and Equipment. 

* Section 215 Notices Reserve to fund a Planning Act which can enforce buildings / land to be cleaned up when the condition adversely affects the area

* Planning Appeals Reserve is to meet the costs of defending/settling planning appeals.

* Business Support Reserve - grants to support Small Business Entrepreneurs to employ additional staff and economic regeneration

*Transition in Government Funding Reserve will be utilsied to meet funding shortfalls, until savings or additional revenue streams are identified to bring  the 

budgets back into balance 

* Project Reserve is to fund various economic development project costs

* Economic Regeneration Reserve is to fund economic regeneration initiatives

* Apprentice and Succession Planning Reserve to fund apprentice programme and succession planning strategy

* Homeless Reserve to fund additional staff as required

* Leisure Reserve to meet the costs associated with a backlog of maintenance and mobilisation costs associated with future delivery of leisure

  services 

* Local Plan Inquiry Reserve is to meet the costs associated with revising the local plan. 

* NNDR & Council Tax Reserve to meet 2020/21 deficits which under Collection Fund Acccounting rules can only be realised in subsequent years

* Covid-19 Grants RIA reserve to cover Government grants paid ahead of spend spanning the year end where TDC is acting as principal.  these grants

  are reflected in Creditors as Government Grant creditors

Capital Reserves have been generated from revenue income, but are to meet future capital expenditure.

S106 Reserves are contributions that the Council has received from developers for specific purposes and have been set aside to fund specific expenditure or 

projects in future years.

This section shows movements in these reserves

90

Page 120



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

42 Cash Flow Statement - Operating Activities

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

(32) (19) 

41 34 

9 15 

43

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

(1,627) (1,726) 

(195) (182) 

(214) (598) 

(9,228) 304 

6,138 (3,373) 

(61) (2,698) 

(1,308) (2,458) 

(487) (121) 

(176) (265) 

(7,158) (11,117) 

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

412 2,035 

2,157 1,747 

2,569 3,782 

Items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services that are 

investing and financing activities

Interest received

Interest paid

Cash Flow statement - Adjustment for items in the net surplus or deficit on the 

provision of services that are investing or financing activities

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, 

investment property and intangible assets

Cash Flow Statement - Non Cash Adjustments to the surplus or deficit on provision 

of services

Change in provisions

Capital grants credited to surplus or deficit on the provision 

of services

Other adjustments

Depreciation 

Amortisation

Impairments & downward revaluations

(Increase) / Decrease in creditors

Increase / (Decrease) in debtors

Carrying amount of non-current assets sold

Pension liability reversal

91

Page 121



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

44 Cash Flow Statement - Investing Activities

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

783 1,173 

22,000 23,000 

(412) (2,035) 

(21,000) (16,000) 

(956) (776) 

415 5,362 

45 Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

153 191 

153 191 Net cash flows from financing activities

Net cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property 

and Intangible assets

Purchase of short-term investments

Proceeds from the sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

PWLB debt repayment

Proceeds of short-term investments 

Other receipts from investing activities

92

Page 122



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

46 Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

Participation in the Pension Scheme

All of the pension figures included in the 2020/21 Accounts are prepared in accordance with International 

Accounting Standard 19 (IAS 19). This complies with all generic Technical Actuarial Standards (TASs) and the 

Pensions TAS. The data provided by the Pension Fund's Actuary (Barnett Waddingham) also fully complies with 

their understanding of Financial Reporting Standard 17 and International Financial Reporting Standards.

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers the Council offers retirement benefits. Although 

these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the 

payments that needs to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.

The Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) administered by Devon County 

Council - this is a (defined benefit scheme) and is fully funded, meaning that the Council and its employees pay 

contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pensions liabilities with the investment 

assets. Governance of the scheme is the responsibility of the pensions committee of Devon County Council. 

Policy is determined in accordance with the Pension Fund Regulations. 

The principal risks to the authority of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the 

scheme, structural changes to the scheme (i.e. large scale withdrawals from the scheme), changes to inflation, 

bond yields and the performance of the equity investments held by the scheme. These are mitigated to a certain 

extent by the statutory requirements to charge to the General Fund  the amounts required by statute as described 

in the accounting policies note.

This is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities are recognised when awards are made. 

There are no investment assets built up to meet these pension liabilities and cash has to be generated to meet 

Transactions relating to Retirement Benefits

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the Net Cost of Services when they are earned by 

employees rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge the Council is 

required to make against council tax is based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of retirement 

benefits is reversed out in the note titled Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under 

Regulations (AABFBR). The following transactions have been made in the Income and Expenditure Account and 

the AABFBR:

Discretionary Post-retirement Benefits

Discretionary post-retirement benefits on early retirement are an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under 

which liabilities are recognised when awards are made. There are no plan assets built up to meet these pension 

Arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits upon early retirement .

93

Page 123



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

46 Defined Benefit Pension Scheme continued…

 2020/21  2021/22  2020/21  2021/22 

£000 £000 £000 £000

81,765     102,020        1,341         1,387       

(42,042)    (51,706)        

39,723     50,314          1,341         1,387       

39,723     50,314          1,341         1,387       

Pension Statement

 Scheme  Pension  Net  Scheme  Pension  Net 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

42,042 (83,106) (41,064) 51,706 (103,407) (51,701) 

(2,090) (2,090) (3,185) (3,185) 

(2,090) (2,090) (3,185) (3,185) 

977 (1,921) (944) 1,029 (2,045) (1,016) 

(32) (32) (32) (32) 

945 (4,011) (3,066) 997 (5,230) (4,233) 

9,624 9,624 2,727 2,727 

(20,045) (20,045) 4,531 4,531 

1,092 1,092 (251) (251) 

9,624 (18,953) (9,329) 2,727 4,280 7,007 

373 (373) 382 (382) 

1,758 1,758 1,775 1,775 

87 87 84 84 

2,218 (373) 1,845 2,241 (382) 1,859 

(3,036) 2,949 (87) (2,700) 2,616 (84) 

(87) 87 (84) 84 

(3,123) 3,036 (87) (2,784) 2,700 (84) 

51,706 (103,407) (51,701) 54,887 (102,039) (47,152)

Interest income & expenses

2020/21

Opening Balance 1st April

Current service cost

CIES - Net Cost of Services

Closing Balance as at 31 March

Remeasurement of net Defined 

Liability-CIES

Employers' contributions payable to 

the scheme

Reversal of Retirement Benefit

Contributions

Re-measurements

Actuarial gains and losses arising on 

changes in demographic and financial 

assumptions

Other actuarial gains & losses

Return on plan assets

Retirement grants and pensions

  Funded Payments

  Unfunded Payments

  Net payments

2021/22

Net liability from defined benefit 

Local Government 

Pension Scheme

Pension Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Discretionary Benefit 

Arrangements

Present value of the defined benefit 

obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Sub-total

Admin Expenses

Employee Contributions

Employer (Council) Contributions

Employer (Council) Contributions --       

Unfunded

94

Page 124



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

46 Defined Benefit Pension Scheme continued…
Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been:

 2020/21  2021/22  2020/21  2021/22 

22.6 22.7 22.6 22.7

23.9 24.0 23.9 24.0

24.0 24.0 24.0 24.0

25.4 25.4 25.4 25.4

2.80% 3.20% 2.80% 3.20%

3.80% 4.20% 3.80% 4.20%

2.80% 3.20% 2.80% 3.20%

2.00% 2.60% 2.00% 2.60%

Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised:

 2020/21  2021/22 

£000 £000

372 464

5,650 4,970

Private Equity

26,898 27,304

32,548 32,274

1,819 7,491

2,324 1,148

4,143 8,639

1,762 3,252

4,228 5,062

4,958 5,205

3,695 (9)

14,643 13,510

51,706 54,887Total assets

Sub-total other investment funds

Mortality assumptions:

Longevity at 65 retiring today

 - Men

 - Woman

Longevity at 65 retiring in 20 years

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities

 - Men

 - Woman

Rate of increase in salaries

Rate of increase in pensions

 - Property

 - Target Return Portfolio

 - Alternative Assets

Bonds: 

 - Gilts

 - Other Bonds 

Sub-total bonds

Other investments: 

Fair value of scheme assets

 - Infrastructure

Cash and cash equivalents

Equities:

UK

Overseas

Sub-total equities 

Rate of inflation (CPI)

Both the Local Government Pension scheme and discretionary benefits liabilities have been estimated by Barnett 

Waddingham, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the Local Government Pension Scheme being based upon 

the latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2019 and has then been updated for estimated fund returns, asset 

statement, market returns, and income and expenditure as at the 31 March 2021.

Local Government 

Pension Scheme

Discretionary Benefit 

Arrangements

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using their projected unit credit method, an estimate of the pensions 

that will be payable in future years dependent upon assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc.

95

Page 125



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

46 Defined Benefit Pension Scheme continued…

McCloud and Sargeant cases Court of Appeal Judgement

Estimation of Assets and Liabilities

Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Scheme

The authority anticipates paying contributions of £1.899m to the scheme in 2022/23.

There are currently uncertainties in relation to Local Government Pension Service (LGPS) due to the 

McCloud and Sargeant judgments.  Remedial regulations are expected in 2022 and uncertainty over the 

benefit changes proposed will remain for the LGPS until these have been finalised.  The McCloud remedy 

may impact the value of the liabilites in respect of accrued benefits and therefore an allowance has 

previously been included within the Council pension liabilities in the previous year statement of accounts.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is 19 years. 

The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to the assumptions set out in the annual 

actuarial report. The sensitivity analysis shown below have been determined based on reasonably possible 

changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that 

the assumption analysed changes while all other assumptions remain constant. The assumptions in 

longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men and women. In practice, 

this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations in the 

sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on the actuarial basis using the 

projected unit credit method. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity 

analysis below did not change from those used in the previous period.

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease by 

0.1%)

The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers' contributions at as constant a rate as possible. Funding 

Longevity (increase or decrease in 1 year)

Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%)

Rate of increase in pensions (increase or decrease by 0.1%)

Impact on the Authority's Cash Flows

Decrease in Increase in 

£000

4,752 (4,532)

(1,905) 1,943

4,777 (4,484)

£000

177 (175)

1,753 (1,720)

96

Page 126



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Accounts

47 Contingent Liabilities

48 Contingent Assets

49 Trusts

National Non-Domestic Rates

At 31 March 2022 there were outstanding appeals in respect of Non-Domestic Rating valuations and these have been 

included in Note 32 financial statements as a provision. The appeals provision has been calculated with reference to 

previously settled appeals. In addition there will be appeals that have yet to be submitted. An estimate has been submitted  

for appeals yet to be lodged.  These valuations will not be determined until some time after the date the appeal is submitted. 

The Council will be liable for a proportion of any refund made to the ratepayer. The size of this liability in respect of the 

refunds is likely to be material but it is not possible at this point in time to quantify precisely.

At 31 March 2022, the Council had identified the following material contingent liabilities:-

Property Warranties

The Council has provided environmental warranties to Tarka Housing (Tarka Housing has merged with Westcountry 

Housing to become Westward Housing)  as part of the Housing Stock Transfer in 2007 to cover any unforeseen 

environmental impact for which the Council might be liable at a later date. The Council has insured itself against any future 

potential liability. The Council’s own Environmental Health records show a low likelihood of any liability.

The Council has provided property warranties to Tarka Housing (Tarka Housing has merged with Westcountry Housing to 

become Westward Housing) as part of the Housing Stock Transfer in 2007 to cover any unforeseen property defects for 

which the Council might be liable at a later date. The warranties, which last 30 years, provide a maximum liability over this 

period of £6.000 million but the liability for any one dwelling is capped at £3,529. The disclosures and exemption clauses 

within the warranties, coupled with the various stock condition surveys, are such that the Council assesses that there is 

unlikely to be any material liability arising in respect of the warranties.

Environmental Warranties

The Trustees of Municipal Mutual Insurance had been anticipating a solvent run off when settling all claims. In 2012/13 the 

Trustees concluded that this was no longer possible and required the Council to make a contribution based on claims 

settled on behalf of the Council. A further levy contribution was requested in 2015/16. The Trustees have not ruled out the 

need to make further contributions however it is not anticipated that any further contribution to the shortfall will not be 

material. However should further claims arise in future years then the Council’s potential liability will increase.

Municipal Mutual Insurance

The Council is also participating in a joint action against the Royal Mail for recovery of VAT on postage charged as Exempt 

and estimated to be £0.423 million.  

As the receipt of these amounts were uncertain they had not been included within prevous accounts. The case failed at 

Court appeal and Torridge has withdrawn from the case.

The Council holds the Thomas Burton Will Trust. Under the terms of the Trust the income is applied for the upkeep of the 

Burton Art Gallery. The assets of the Trust amount to £12,430 (£12,430 in 2020/21 ) and do not belong to the Council but 

are held by it as a deposit and are included on the Balance Sheet as a liability under Long Term Borrowing. The income to 

the Council from the Trust of £9 (£30 in 2020/21) is included within Gross Income on Head of Communities & Place in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Cost of Services.

97

Page 127



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

2020/21 2021/22

£000 Notes £000

Income

(48,462) (51,416) 

(48,462) (51,416)

Expenditure

Precepts, Demands and Shares

35,027 36,324 

5,393 5,686 

2,147 2,163 

4,104 Torridge District Council 4,174 

1,612 Parish Precepts 1,631 

48,283 49,978

106 109 

220 265 

0 0

326 374

243 Devon County Council (104) 

37 Devon and Cornwall Police Crime Commissioner (16) 

15 Devon & Somerset Fire and Rescue (6) 

40 Torridge District Council (17) 

335 Total Apportionment of previous years' surplus (143)

48,944 50,209

482 (1,207)

(289) 193

193 (1,014)

      The Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account - Council Tax

This section summarises how the money we collected through Council Tax is distributed between  

precepting authorities.

Total Income

Balance at 1 April

Council Tax receivable

Total expenditure

Disregarded Amounts

Apportionment of previous years' surplus

Total Expenditure

Deficit/(Surplus) for the year

Devon County Council

Devon and Cornwall Police Crime Commissioner

Devon & Somerset Fire and Rescue

Charges to Collection Fund

Write offs of uncollectable amounts

The (£1,014k) represents the overall surplus on the Council Tax element of the Collection Fund at 

31/03/22 (2020/21 £193 deficit). Of this 12% is due to Torridge, which equates to (£117k) (see note 35) 

(2020/21 £23k).

Increase in allowance for the impairment of debt 

Closing Balance at 31 March

Total Charges to Collection Fund

98

Page 128



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

(4,343) Business Rates receivable (8,667) 

(97) (117) 

(4,440) (8,784)

Expenditure

Precepts, Demands and Shares

5,813 5,936 

1,046 1,069 

116 119 

4,651 4,749 

11,626 11,873

193 (30) 

1,241 315 

570 584 

134 137 

2,138 Total Charges to Collection Fund 1,006

(44) (672) 

(3) (75) 

(161) (3,735) 

(138) (2,988) 

(346) Total Contribution towards previous year's Collection Fund deficit (7,470)

13,418 5,409

8,978 (3,375)

744 9,722

9,722 6,347

Write offs and  Increase in allowance for the impairment of debt 

Central Government

Devon County Council

Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority

Torridge District Council

Charges to Collection Fund

Total Expenditure

Income

This section summarises how the money we collected through our share of Non-Domestic Rates is 

distributed between precepting authorities.

The Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account - Non-Domestic Rates

Transitional Protection Payments

Total Income

Torridge District Council

Closing Balance at 31 March

The £6,347 represents the overall deficit on the Non-Domestic Collection Fund at 31/03/22 (2020/21 

£9,722k deficit). Of this 40% is attributable to TDC, which equates to £2,539k (2020/21 £3,889k 

deficit).

Decrease in provision for appeals

Cost of Collection

Total Expenditure

Deficit/(Surplus) for the year

Balance at 1 April

Disregarded Amounts

Devon County Council

Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Authority

Central Government

Contribution towards previous year's Collection Fund deficit

99

Page 129



Torridge District Council Financial Statements 2021/22

Notes to the Collection Fund

General

1 Calculation of Council Tax Base

Actual Band D 

A 1,386.2 3,547.1

B 1,617.3 4,378.7
C 1,848.3 5,271.5
D 2,079.4 5,045.7
E 2,541.4 3,689.9
F 3,003.5 1,499.2
G 3,465.6 569.7
H 4,158.7 33.4

Total 24,035.2

2 Income collectable from Business Rates 

2020/21 2021/22

£000 £000

40,434 40,919

51.2 51.2

49.9 49.9

Rateable value at 31 March

Uniform Business Rate

Small Business Rate

These accounts represent the transactions of the Collection Fund, which is a statutory fund 

separate from the main accounts of the Council.  The accounts are, however, consolidated 

with the Council's balance sheet. The accounts have been prepared on the accruals basis.

The council tax base is calculated by taking the number of chargeable dwellings in each 

valuation band  (adjusted for discounts as necessary) and converted into the number of Band 

D equivalent properties multiplied by the council tax rate per Band D properties.

Number of Dwellings

The Council collects Non-Domestic rates for its area, which is based on local rateable values 

multiplied by either a uniform rate; there is a reduced rate levied on small business.  For the 

financial year 2021/22 the Council is a member of the Devon Business Rate Pool.  

Consequently the total amount, less certain reliefs and other deductions, is allocated 50% to 

Central Government, 9% Devon County Council and 1% to Devon & Somerset Fire and 

Rescue Authority.  The remaining 40% is Torridge's share and is included within the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.   The Pool assigns a minimum funding 

baseline to its members, and allocates losses and gains to its members based upon their 

relative business rates tax base.

100

Page 130



 
 

Audit Opinion and Certificate                      

 

 
9:  Auditor Opinion and certificate 

 
 

THESE ACCOUNTS ARE UNAUDITED 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

101

Page 131



 
 

Audit Opinion and Certificate                      

 

 
 

9:  Auditor Opinion and certificate 
 
 

THESE ACCOUNTS ARE UNAUDITED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

102

Page 132



 
 

Audit Opinion and Certificate                      

 

 
 

9:  Auditor Opinion and certificate 
 
 

THESE ACCOUNTS ARE UNAUDITED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

103

Page 133



 
 

Audit Opinion and Certificate                      

 

 
 

9:  Auditor Opinion and certificate 
 
 

THESE ACCOUNTS ARE UNAUDITED 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

104

Page 134



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 
GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Accounting Period 
The period of time covered by the accounts is normally a period of twelve months 
commencing on 1 April. The end of the accounting period is the balance sheet date. 
 

Actual 
The actual, rather than budgeted, expenditure or income attributable to the accounting 
period.  Sometimes referred to as “Actuals”. 
 

Actuary 
An expert who analyses the financial consequences of risk, with the purpose of assessing 
the level of funds required in the pension fund. 
 

Actuarial Gains and Losses 
For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses 
that arise because: 
 

 Events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last 
valuation (experience gains and losses); or 

The actuarial assumptions have changed. 
 

Accumulated Compensated Absences Adjustment Account 
This account represents the value of any unused holiday, time off in lieu or flexi hours 
which have not been taken by officers at 31 March. 
 

Amortisation 
The writing down of an intangible fixed asset over its useful life. 
 

Amortised cost 
Investments for which any gains and losses in fair value are not accounted for until the 
investment matures or is sold. Defined as financial assets: 

 Held within a business model whose objective is to hold investments in order to 
collect their contractual cash flows, and 

 Which have the form of a basic lending arrangement (ie, contractual terms give rise 
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 
the principal amount outstanding). 

 

Appointed Auditors 
The Public Sector Audit Appointments department appoints external auditors to every Local 
Authority, from one of the major firms of registered auditors. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

105

Page 135



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 
Assets 
An item having value to the Council in monetary terms, categorised as: 

 Current assets will be consumed within the next financial year (e.g. cash and 
stock). 
 

 Non-current assets provide benefits over their useful life for more that 
one year and can be tangible (e.g. buildings, vehicles and plant) or intangible (e.g. 
computer software licences). 
 

 Community assets are assets that the local authority intends to hold in 
perpetuity, that have no determinable useful life and may have restrictions on 
their disposal (e.g. town squares and picnic sites). 
 

 Infrastructure assets that form part of the economic or social framework of the 
area and whose function is not transferable (e.g. highways, bridges and 
footpaths). 

 

 Surplus assets are fixed assets held by a local authority but not 
directly occupied, used or consumed in the delivery of services.  
 

 Assets under Construction details capital expenditure to date on work in 
progress. 
 

 Available for Sale are assets actively being marketed at the Balance Sheet 
date. 
 

Audit & Governance Committee 
A Committee of the Council which considers financial matters and reports from Internal 
Audit, and approves and monitors our Financial Regulations and risk management. The 
Committee is delegated to approve the Accounts following External Audit review. 
 

Audit of Accounts 
An independent examination of the Council’s financial affairs. 
 

Authorised Limit 
This represents the legislative limit on the Council’s external debt under the Local 
Government Act 2003. 
 

Balance Sheet 
A statement of all the Council’s assets and liabilities at the end of the financial year, 31 
March. 
 

Budget 
The forecast of net revenue and capital expenditure over the accounting period. 

 
 
 

106

Page 136



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 
Business model 
Arrangements for holding financial assets, whose objectives can involve making a return by 
either collecting the cash flows payable under the contracts for each investment (e.g. 
interest) or hoping to sell investments to gain from increases in their value. 
 
Capital Adjustment Account 
This records the timing difference between the costs of fixed assets used and the 
capital financing set aside to pay for them. 
 

Capital Expenditure 
Expenditure on assets which have a long-term value. Includes the purchase of land, 
purchase or cost of construction of buildings and the acquisition of plant, equipment 
and vehicles. 
 

Capital Charges 
A general term used for the notional charges made to service revenue accounts for the use 
of fixed assets. The term covers the following: Depreciation, Impairment charges and 
Amortisation of Deferred Charges (included in gross expenditure) offset by the Amortisation 
of government grants deferred (included in income). 
 

Capital Financing Costs 
Costs, such as interest, which are incurred as a result of spending funds spent on non-
current assets. 
 

Capital Receipts 
Proceeds received from the sale of property and other capitalised assets. 
 

Carrying Amount 
The recorded value in the Balance Sheet, of either an asset or a liability. 
 

Cash-flow Statement 
A statement summarising the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with 
third parties for both revenue and capital purposes. 
 

Collection Fund 
A separate fund recording the income and expenditure relating to Council Tax and Business 
Rates, Torridge is responsible for the collection and distribution of Council Tax and Business 
rates for both the Council and others preceptors. 
 

Community Assets 
Fixed assets that the Council intends to hold in perpetuity which have no determinable finite 
useful life and in addition, may have restrictions on their disposal. An example is a park. 
 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) 
A statement summarising the resources generated and consumed by the Council during the 
year in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (GAAP).   
 

107

Page 137



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 

Contingency 
Money set aside in the budget to meet the cost of unforeseen items of expenditure, or 
shortfalls in income, and to provide for inflation where this is not included in budgets. 

 
Contingent Liabilities or Assets 
Amounts potentially due to or from individuals or organisations which may arise in the future, 
but which at this time cannot be determined accurately, and for which provision as not yet 
been made in the Council’s accounts. 
 

Contract Asset 
An asset arising from a contract for the purchase of goods and/or services from the Council, 
where the Council has met some if its performance obligations but is not yet entitled 
unconditionally to receive payment. 
 

Contract liability  
A liability arising from a contract for the purchase of goods and/or services from the Council 
where the Council has received payment but has yet to meet the performance obligations 
relating to the payment. 
 

Council Tax 
The main source of local taxation to Local Authorities. Council Tax is levied on households 
within its area by the Billing Authority and the proceeds are paid into its collection Fund for 
distribution to precepting Authorities and for use by its own General Fund. 

 
Council Tax Requirement 
The net estimated revenue expenditure on General Fund services, after deducting income 
from fees and charges, certain specific grants and funding from reserves, which require 
financing from Council Tax income. 
 

Creditor 
Amounts owed by the Council for work done, goods received or services rendered but 
for which payment has not been made at 31 March. 

 
Credit losses 
A measure of how much the Council would lose if the amounts owed to it by debtors and 
borrowers are not repaid. Defined as the shortfall between all the cash flows that are due 
contractually to the Council under a financial asset and those that it actually expects to 
receive. 
 
Current Assets 
Short-term assets held at the Balance Sheet date, including cash, cash equivalents and 
monies due from debtors within 12 months. 
 

Current Liabilities 
Short-term liabilities, due to be settled within 12 months of the balance sheet date. 
 

 

108

Page 138



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 
Current Service Cost 
Current Service Cost is the increase in the present value of a defined benefit pension 
scheme’s liabilities expected to arise from employee service in the current period i.e the 
ultimate pension benefits “earned” by employees in the current year’s employment. 
 

Curtailment 
Curtailments will show the cost of the early payment of pension benefits if any employee has 
been made redundant in the previous financial year. 
 

Debtor 
Sums of money due to the Council, but unpaid at the balance sheet date. 
 

Deferred Capital Receipts 
Capital income still to be received after disposals have taken place and wholly consist of 
principal outstanding from the sale of council houses. 

 
Deferred Charges (now known as REFCUS see below) 
Expenditure which may properly be capitalised but which does not result in tangible fixed 
assets owned being by the Council. These charges are to be amortised to revenue over an 
appropriate period. 
 

Deferred Contributions 
Amounts received relating to future activities to be undertaken. 
 

Defined Benefit Scheme 
This is a pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution 
scheme. Usually the scheme rules define the benefits independently of the contributions 
payable and the benefits are not directly related to the investments of the scheme. The 
scheme may be funded or unfunded. 

 
Depreciation 
The allocation of the cost of a fixed asset over its useful economic life, representing the 
assets reduction in value over the accounting period through general wear and tear, 
consumption or obsolescence. 

 
Derecognition 
The removal from the Balance Sheet of a previously recognised financial asset or liability. 
E.g. when a building is sold 
 

Earmarked Reserves 
Those elements of the Council’s total reserves which are retained for specific purposes. 
 

Effective interest rate 
The interest rate that discounts future cash payments and receipts over the life of a financial 
instrument to the carrying amount (asset) or to the amortised cost (liability). This might be 
different from the actual interest rate where transaction costs have been accrued or because 
of interest at less than the market rates being spread over the term of the instrument. 

109

Page 139



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 

Effective Interest method 
The method that uses effective interest rates to calculate the amortised cost of a financial 
instrument and allocates interest revenue or payments to the particular financial years over 
which the financial instrument is held. 
 

Employee Costs 
Costs incurred employing staff including salaries, employer’s national insurance, pension 
contributions, and training. 
 

Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) 
The credit losses that the Council estimates will arise from the amounts that it is currently 
owed. ECLs are calculated by measuring the losses that would arise from different default 
scenarios and calculates a weighted average loss based on the probability of each scenario 
taking place. 
 

Exceptional Items 
Material items deriving from events or transactions that will fall within the ordinary activities 
of the Council, but which need to be separately disclosed by virtue of their size and/or 
incidence to give a fair presentation of the accounts. 
 

Expenditure 
Amounts paid by the Council for goods and services rendered of either capital or revenue 
nature. This does not necessarily involve a cash payment since expenditure is deemed to 
have been incurred once the goods and services have been received even if they have not 
been paid for. 

 
External Audit 
The independent examination of the activities and accounts of Local Authorities to ensure 
the accounts have been prepared in accordance with legislative requirements and proper 
practices and to ensure the Authority has made proper arrangements to secure value for 
money in its use of resources. 

 
Fair value 
The price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

  
Fair value through profit or loss financial assets 
Defined as financial assets that do not qualify for measurement at amortised cost or fair 
value through other comprehensive income. 
 

Fees and Charges 
The Council’s charges for certain services e.g. car parking. 
 

Finance Lease 
A lease whereby all the risks and rewards of ownership of a fixed asset are with the lessee. 
In substance the asset belongs to the lessee. 
 

110

Page 140



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 
Financial Instruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another. The term ‘financial instrument’ covers both 
financial assets and financial liabilities and includes both the most straightforward financial  
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables and the most complex 
ones such as derivatives. 
 

Financial Regulations 
The written code of procedures, approved by the Council, intended to provide a framework 
for proper financial management. Financial regulations usually set out rules on accounting, 
audit, administrative and budgeting procedures. 
 

General Fund 
The main revenue fund of the Council, income from the council tax precept and Government 
grants are paid into the fund, from which the cost of providing services are met. 
 

Government Grants 
Payments by Central Government towards the Council’s expenditure. They are specific for a 
particular service; and are receivable in respect of both revenue and capital expenditure. 
 

Government Grants Deferred 
Grants or contributions received which have supported wholly or in part the acquisition of 
fixed assets, net of the appropriate share of depreciation on those assets for which a 
depreciation charge is made. 
 

Heritage Assets 
An asset with a historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or environmental 
quality that is held and maintained principally for its contribution to knowledge and culture. 
 

Housing Benefit 
An allowance to persons on low income (or none) to meet, in whole or in part, their rent. 
Benefit is allowed or paid by local Authorities but Central Government refunds part of the 
cost of the benefits and of the running costs of the services to Local Authorities. Benefits 
paid to the Authority’s own tenants are known as rent rebate and that paid to private tenants 
as rent allowance. 

 
Impairment 
A reduction in the value of an asset to below its carrying amount on the balance sheet due 
to damage, obsolescence or a general decrease in market value. 
 

Income 
Amounts due to the Council for goods supplied or services rendered of either a capital or 
revenue nature. This does not necessarily involve a cash payment. Income is deemed to 
have been earned once the goods or services have been supplied even if the payment has 
not been received (in which case the recipient is a debtor to the Council). 
 
 
 

111

Page 141



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 

Income & Expenditure Account 
The net cost for the year for services provided by the Council for which it is responsible and 
showing how the cost has been financed from precepts, grants and other income. 
 

Intangible Assets 
Non-current assets without physical substance, but which are identifiable and controlled by 
the Council. Computer software is the most common example. 
 

Interest 
An amount received or paid for the use of a sum of money when it is invested or borrowed. 

 
Leasing Costs 
Sums paid for the use of an asset for a specified period of time. Two forms of lease exist: 
finance leases and operating leases. Operating leases are those where the risks of 
ownership of the leased asset rest with the owner of the asset all other leases are finance 
leases and must be recognised in the Balance Sheet. 
 

LGPS (Local Government Pension Scheme) 
The fund that manages and pays the Council’s staff pensions. Our LGPS scheme is now 
managed by Peninsula Pensions. 
 

Liabilities 
Amounts due to individuals or organisations which will have to be paid at some time in the 
future. Current liabilities are usually payable within one year of the Balance Sheet date. 

 
Local Development Plan 
A plan which includes documents that establishes the local policy towards the use of land 
and the vision for involving communities in the plan making process. 
 

Long Term Borrowing 
Amounts borrowed in excess of 364 days. 
 

Long-Term Contract 
A contract entered into for the design, manufacture or construction of a single substantial 
asset, or the provision of a service (or a combination of assets and services which together 
constitute a single project), where the project falls into more than one accounting period. 

 
Long Term Debtors 
Sums of money due to the Council repayable within a period in excess of twelve months. 
 

Loss allowance 
An allowance made by setting funds aside to cover the expected credit losses calculated for 
financial instrument. 
 
 
 
 

112

Page 142



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
A financial planning document that sets out the future year’s financial forecasts for the 
Council. It considers local and national policy influences and projects their impact on the 
general fund revenue budget and capital programme. It usually covers a four-year time 
frame. 
 

Member 
An elected councillor of the Council. 
 

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) 
The minimum amount which must be charged to the Council’s revenue account each year 
and set aside as provision for credit liabilities as required by the Prudential Code. 

 
National Non-Domestic Rate (NNDR) 
The levy on business property, based upon a national rate in the pound applied to the 
‘rateable value’ of the property. The government determines a national rate poundage each 
year which is applicable to all Local Authorities. Torridge is a member of the Devon NNDR 
Pool of Local Authorities whose share of the NNDR is allocated between the members. 

 
Net Book Value 
The value of fixed assets included on the balance sheet, being the historical cost or a 
current revaluation less the cumulative amounts of depreciation. 
 

Net Debt 
Net debt is the Council’s borrowings less cash and liquid resources. 
 

Net Realisable Value (NRV) 
NRV is the open market value of an asset in its existing use, less any costs to be incurred in 
selling the asset. 
 

Non-Current Assets 
Assets that yield benefits to the Council and the services it provides for a period of more 
than one year. Examples include land, buildings and vehicles. 
 

Non-distributed Costs 
In the main this represents support service area charges e.g. Corporate Management, 
Finance, Legal, ICT, HR services, etc. In addition to this a number of non-service specific 
corporate fees are included as well as any extra payments made to maintain the value of the 
pension fund. 

 
Operating Lease 
A lease where the risks and rewards and therefore the ownership of the asset remains with 
the lessor. 
 
 
 
 

113

Page 143



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 

Operational Boundary 
The maximum anticipated level of external debt consistent with budgets and forecast cash 
flows. 
 

Payment of Principal and Interest 
The amounts that would be paid under a basic lending agreement, for accounting purposes, 
they comprise: 

 the repayment of the fair value of a financial asset when it was brought onto the 
Council’s balance sheet (principal) 

 consideration for the time value of money, compensation for credit risk, recovery of 
basic lending costs and profit margin (interest) 

 
Pension Strain 
Additional employers pension contributions as a result of an employee’s early retirement. 
 

Precept 
The amount levied by one authority which is collected by another e.g. the County Council is 
the precepting authority and the District Council is the collecting authority. 
 

Prior Period Adjustments 
Material adjustments which are applicable to an earlier period arising from changes in 
accounting policies or for the correction of fundamental errors. 

 
Provision 
An amount which is put aside to cover future liabilities or losses which are considered to be 
certain or very likely to occur, but the amounts and timing are uncertain. 

 
Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) 
An arm of Central Government which is the major provider of loans to finance the long-term 
funding requirements for Local Authorities. 
 

Rateable Value 
A value placed upon all properties subject to rating. The value is based on a national rent 
that property could be expected to yield after deducting the cost of repairs. 
 

Related Parties 
Related parties comprise Central Government, other Local Authorities, precepting and 
levying bodies subsidiary and associated companies, elected Members, all senior officers 
and the Pension Fund. In respect of individuals identified as related parties the following are 
also presumed to be related parties: 
 

 Members of the close family, or the same household; and 

 Partnerships, companies, trusts or other entities in which the individual, or member 
of their close family, or the same household, has a controlling interest. 
 
 
 

114

Page 144



 
 

Glossary of Terms          

 

 

Revenue Expenditure 
Spending on the day-to-day running of services – mainly wages, operating expenses of 
buildings and equipment, and debt charges. These costs are met from the Council tax, 
government grants and our own fees and charges. 
 

Revenue Support Grant 
The major grant received each year from Central Government, which is not ring-fenced, 
to help finance our activities. Commonly referred to as the Council’s “Formula Grant”. 

 
Reserves 
The accumulation of surpluses, deficits and appropriations over past years. Reserves of a 
revenue nature are available and can be spent or earmarked at the discretion of the Council. 
Some capital reserves such as the capital adjustment account cannot be used to meet 
current expenditure. 
 

Restatement 
Changes to prior period comparative figures. Generally required due to changes in 
accounting standards and policies. 
 

Revaluation Reserve 
A record of net gains on assets from revaluations made after 1 April 2007 not yet realised 
through sales.  
 

Revenue Contributions 
The financing of capital expenditure directly from revenue rather than from loans or other 
sources. 
 

Revenue Expenditure 
The day-to-day expenditure of the Council on such items as employees, transport and 
equipment. 
 

Tax Base 
The number of houses (expressed in Band D Equivalents) the Council can charge Council 
Tax on. 

 
Treasury Management 
The process by which the Authority controls its cash flow and its borrowing and lending 
activities. 
 

Treasury Management Strategy (TMS) 
A strategy, approved by Cabinet, prepared with regard to legislative and CIPFA 
requirements setting out the framework for treasury activity for the Council. 
 

Value for Money 
The benefit obtained (not just in financial terms) for a given input of cash. 

115

Page 145



P
age 146

A
genda Item

 10



Commercial in confidence

P
age 147



Commercial in confidence

P
age 148

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/services/public-sector-services/


Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 149



Commercial in confidence

P
age 150



Commercial in confidence

P
age 151



Commercial in confidence

Independent auditor's report to the members of Torridge 

District Council
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Torridge District Council (the ‘Authority’) 

for the year ended 31 March 2021, which comprise the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, the 

Cash Flow Statement, the Collection Fund Statementand notes to the financial 

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial 

reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the 

CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 

2020/21.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 

2021 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of 

practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) 

(ISAs (UK)) and applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) (“the 

Code of Audit Practice”) approved by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 

responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are 

independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical 

Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 

these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter – effects of Covid-19 on property valuations

We draw attention to Note 7 of the financial statements, which describes the effects of 

the Covid-19 pandemic on the valuation of the Authority’s property as at 31 March 

2021. As disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements, specific trading related assets, 

such as leisure properties, continue to be faced with an unprecedented set of 

circumstances caused by Covid-19. The valuation of these assets is therefore reported 

as being subject to ‘material valuation uncertainty’, as set out in VPS 3 and VPGA 10 

of the RICS Valuation – Global Standards. For these valuations less certainty, and a 

higher degree of caution, should be attached to the valuation than would normally be 

the case. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Section 151 Officer’s 

use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 

obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 

may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 

in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify the auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions are 

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Authority to cease to continue as a going 

concern.

In our evaluation of the Section 151 Officer’s conclusions, and in accordance with the 

expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority 

accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 that the Authority’s financial statements 

shall be prepared on a going concern basis, we considered the inherent risks 

associated with the continuation of services provided by the Authority. In doing so we 

had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Note 10 Audit of financial statements 

and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020) on the 

application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to public sector entities. We assessed the 

reasonableness of the basis of preparation used by the Authority and the Authority’s 

disclosures over the going concern period.

P
age 152



Commercial in confidence

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material 

uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast 

significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of 

at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Section 151 Officer’s 

use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 

statements is appropriate. 

The responsibilities of the Section 151 Officer with respect to going concern are 

described in the ‘Responsibilities of the Authority, the Section 151 Officer and Those

Charged with Governance for the financial statements’ section of this report.

Other information

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts, other than the 

financial statements, and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial 

statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise 

explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 

thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 

inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine 

whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material 

misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required 

to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of 

Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in April 2020 on 

behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required 

to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with ‘delivering 

good governance in Local Government Framework 2016 Edition’ published by CIPFA and 

SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from 

our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement 

addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal 

controls. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial 

statements and our knowledge of the Authority, the other information published together 

with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts for the financial year for which 

the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

• we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local 

Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; 

or

• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is 

contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in 

the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or; 

• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability 

Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

P
age 153



Commercial in confidence

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Section 151 Officer and Those Charged 

with Governance for the financial statements

As explained in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Authority is required to make 

arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one 

of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this 

authority, that officer is the Section 151 Officer. The Section 151 Officer is responsible 

for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial 

statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC code 

of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, for being 

satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Section 

151 Officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Section 151 Officer is responsible for 

assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless there is an intention by government that the services provided by the 

Authority will no longer be provided.

The Audit and Governance Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those 

Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial 

reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 

is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is 

located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: 

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s 

report.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting 

irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. 

We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material 

misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Owing to the inherent limitations 

of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that material misstatements in the financial 

statements may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed 

in accordance with the ISAs (UK). 

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud 

is detailed below: 

• We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are 

applicable to the Authority and determined that the most significant ,which are 

directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial statements, are those related 

to the reporting frameworks (international accounting standards as interpreted and 

adapted by the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the 

United Kingdom 2020/21, the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the 

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the Local Government Act 2003, and the 

Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local Government 

Finance Act 1992) and the Local Government Finance Act 2012.

• We enquired of senior officers and the Audit and Governance committee, 

concerning the Authority’s policies and procedures relating to:

− the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations;

− the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

− the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or 

non-compliance with laws and regulations.

We enquired of senior officers, internal audit and the Audit and Governance committee, 

whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance with laws and 

regulations or whether they had any knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

• We assessed the susceptibility of the Authority’s financial statements to material 

misstatement, including how fraud might occur, by evaluating officers’ incentives 

and opportunities for manipulation of the financial statements. This included the 

evaluation of the risk of management override of controls. We determined that the 

principal risks were in relation to journals, accounting estimates and critical 

judgements made by management.

P
age 154

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


Commercial in confidence

• Our audit procedures involved:

− evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that the Section 151 

Officer has in place to prevent and detect fraud;

− journal entry testing, with a focus on management override of controls;

− challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its 

significant accounting estimates in respect of land and buildings, 

investment property and defined benefit pensions liability valuations;

− assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and 

regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement 

item.

• These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that 

the financial statements were free from fraud or error. However, detecting 

irregularities that result from fraud is inherently more difficult than detecting 

those that result from error, as those irregularities that result from fraud may 

involve collusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional 

misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-compliance with laws and 

regulations is from events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, 

the less likely we would become aware of it.

• Assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and 

capabilities of the engagement team included consideration of the engagement 

team's.

− understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a 

similar nature and complexity through appropriate training and 

participation

− knowledge of the local government sector

− understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the 

Authority including:

− the provisions of the applicable legislation

− guidance issued by CIPFA, LASAAC and SOLACE

− the applicable statutory provisions.

• In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an 

understanding of:

− the Authority’s operations, including the nature of its income and 

expenditure and its services and of its objectives and strategies to 

understand the classes of transactions, account balances, expected 

financial statement disclosures and business risks that may result in 

risks of material misstatement.

− the Authority's control environment, including the policies and 

procedures implemented by the Authority to ensure compliance with the 

requirements of the financial reporting framework.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – the 

Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 

and effectiveness in its use of resources

Matter on which we are required to report by exception – the Authority’s 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we 

have not been able to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources for the year ended 31 March 2021.  

Our work on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources is not yet complete. The outcome of our work will 

be reported in our commentary on the Authority’s arrangements in our Auditor’s Annual 

Report. If we identify any significant weaknesses in these arrangements, these will be 

reported by exception in a further auditor’s report. We are satisfied that this work does 

not have a material effect on our opinion on the financial statements for the year ended 

31 March 2021.

Responsibilities of the Authority

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper 

stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness 

of these arrangements.

P
age 155



Commercial in confidence

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 

to be satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, 

nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating 

effectively.

We undertake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard 

to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2021. This 

guidance sets out the arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper arrangements’. 

When reporting on these arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to 

structure their commentary on arrangements under three specified reporting criteria:

• Financial sustainability: how the Authority plans and manages its resources to 

ensure it can continue to deliver its services; 

• Governance: how the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and 

properly manages its risks; and 

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Authority uses 

information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and 

delivers its services.

We document our understanding of the arrangements the Authority has in place for 

each of these three specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support 

our risk assessment and commentary in our Auditor’s Annual Report. In undertaking 

our work, we consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant 

weaknesses in arrangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – Delay in 
certification of completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate for Torridge 

District Council for the year ended 31 March 2021 in accordance with the requirements 

of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we 

have completed our work on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources and issued our Auditor’s Annual 

Report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance 

with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 

43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that 

we might state to the Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to 

them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by 

law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and 

the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the 

opinions we have formed.

Julie Masci, Key Audit Partner

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

Bristol

Date:

P
age 156



Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

•

Ethical Standard (revised 2019)

P
age 157

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/601c8b09-2c0a-4a6c-8080-30f63e50b4a2/Revised-Ethical-Standard-2019-With-Covers.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 158



P
age 159



P
age 160

A
genda Item

 11



Commercial in confidence

P
age 161



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 162



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 163



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 164



Commercial in confidence

P
age 165



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 166



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 167



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 168



Commercial in confidence

We have:

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 169



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•









P
age 170



Commercial in confidence

Net 

pension 

liability –

£52m

•

•

•

•

•

•









P
age 171



Commercial in confidence

Minimum Revenue Provision -

£0.043m

•

•

•









P
age 172



Commercial in confidence

P
age 173



Commercial in confidence

P
age 174



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 175



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 176



Commercial in confidence

P
age 177



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 178



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 179



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 180



Commercial in confidence

-

-

-

P
age 181



Commercial in confidence

Transparency report 2020 
(grantthornton.co.uk)

P
age 182

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2020.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 183



P
age 184



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•







P
age 185



Commercial in confidence







P
age 186



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

P
age 187



Commercial in confidence

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

P
age 188



Commercial in confidence

P
age 189



Commercial in confidence

P
age 190



Commercial in confidence

Independent auditor's report to the members of Torridge 

District Council
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Torridge District Council (the ‘Authority’) 

for the year ended 31 March 2021, which comprise the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, the 

Cash Flow Statement, the Collection Fund Statementand notes to the financial 

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial 

reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the 

CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 

2020/21.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 

2021 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of 

practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) 

(ISAs (UK)) and applicable law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2020) (“the 

Code of Audit Practice”) approved by the Comptroller and Auditor General. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 

responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are 

independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical 

Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 

these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter – effects of Covid-19 on property valuations

We draw attention to Note 7 of the financial statements, which describes the effects of 

the Covid-19 pandemic on the valuation of the Authority’s property as at 31 March 

2021. As disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements, specific trading related assets, 

such as leisure properties, continue to be faced with an unprecedented set of 

circumstances caused by Covid-19. The valuation of these assets is therefore reported 

as being subject to ‘material valuation uncertainty’, as set out in VPS 3 and VPGA 10 

of the RICS Valuation – Global Standards. For these valuations less certainty, and a 

higher degree of caution, should be attached to the valuation than would normally be 

the case. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Section 151 Officer’s 

use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 

obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 

may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 

in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify the auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions are 

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Authority to cease to continue as a going 

concern.

In our evaluation of the Section 151 Officer’s conclusions, and in accordance with the 

expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority 

accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21 that the Authority’s financial statements 

shall be prepared on a going concern basis, we considered the inherent risks 

associated with the continuation of services provided by the Authority. In doing so we 

had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Note 10 Audit of financial statements 

and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020) on the 

application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to public sector entities. We assessed the 

reasonableness of the basis of preparation used by the Authority and the Authority’s 

disclosures over the going concern period.

P
age 191



Commercial in confidence

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material 

uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast 

significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of 

at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Section 151 Officer’s 

use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 

statements is appropriate. 

The responsibilities of the Section 151 Officer with respect to going concern are 

described in the ‘Responsibilities of the Authority, the Section 151 Officer and Those

Charged with Governance for the financial statements’ section of this report.

Other information

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts, other than the 

financial statements, and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial 

statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise 

explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 

thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material 

inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine 

whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material 

misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we 

conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required 

to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of 

Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in April 2020 on 

behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required 

to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with ‘delivering 

good governance in Local Government Framework 2016 Edition’ published by CIPFA and 

SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from 

our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement 

addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal 

controls. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial 

statements and our knowledge of the Authority, the other information published together 

with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts for the financial year for which 

the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

• we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local 

Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; 

or

• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is 

contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in 

the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or; 

• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability 

Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

P
age 192



Commercial in confidence

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Section 151 Officer and Those Charged 

with Governance for the financial statements

As explained in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Authority is required to make 

arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one 

of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this 

authority, that officer is the Section 151 Officer. The Section 151 Officer is responsible 

for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial 

statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC code 

of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, for being 

satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Section 

151 Officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Section 151 Officer is responsible for 

assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless there is an intention by government that the services provided by the 

Authority will no longer be provided.

The Audit and Governance Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those 

Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial 

reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 

is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is 

located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: 

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s 

report.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting 

irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. 

We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material 

misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Owing to the inherent limitations 

of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that material misstatements in the financial 

statements may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed 

in accordance with the ISAs (UK). 

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud 

is detailed below: 

• We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are 

applicable to the Authority and determined that the most significant ,which are 

directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial statements, are those related 

to the reporting frameworks (international accounting standards as interpreted and 

adapted by the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the 

United Kingdom 2020/21, the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the 

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the Local Government Act 2003, and the 

Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local Government 

Finance Act 1992) and the Local Government Finance Act 2012.

• We enquired of senior officers and the Audit and Governance committee, 

concerning the Authority’s policies and procedures relating to:

− the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations;

− the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

− the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or 

non-compliance with laws and regulations.

We enquired of senior officers, internal audit and the Audit and Governance committee, 

whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance with laws and 

regulations or whether they had any knowledge of actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

• We assessed the susceptibility of the Authority’s financial statements to material 

misstatement, including how fraud might occur, by evaluating officers’ incentives 

and opportunities for manipulation of the financial statements. This included the 

evaluation of the risk of management override of controls. We determined that the 

principal risks were in relation to journals, accounting estimates and critical 

judgements made by management.

P
age 193

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


Commercial in confidence

• Our audit procedures involved:

− evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that the Section 151 

Officer has in place to prevent and detect fraud;

− journal entry testing, with a focus on management override of controls;

− challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its 

significant accounting estimates in respect of land and buildings, 

investment property and defined benefit pensions liability valuations;

− assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and 

regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement 

item.

• These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that 

the financial statements were free from fraud or error. However, detecting 

irregularities that result from fraud is inherently more difficult than detecting 

those that result from error, as those irregularities that result from fraud may 

involve collusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or intentional 

misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-compliance with laws and 

regulations is from events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, 

the less likely we would become aware of it.

• Assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and 

capabilities of the engagement team included consideration of the engagement 

team's.

− understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a 

similar nature and complexity through appropriate training and 

participation

− knowledge of the local government sector

− understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the 

Authority including:

− the provisions of the applicable legislation

− guidance issued by CIPFA, LASAAC and SOLACE

− the applicable statutory provisions.

• In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an 

understanding of:

− the Authority’s operations, including the nature of its income and 

expenditure and its services and of its objectives and strategies to 

understand the classes of transactions, account balances, expected 

financial statement disclosures and business risks that may result in 

risks of material misstatement.

− the Authority's control environment, including the policies and 

procedures implemented by the Authority to ensure compliance with the 

requirements of the financial reporting framework.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – the 

Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 

and effectiveness in its use of resources

Matter on which we are required to report by exception – the Authority’s 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we 

have not been able to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources for the year ended 31 March 2021.  

Our work on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources is not yet complete. The outcome of our work will 

be reported in our commentary on the Authority’s arrangements in our Auditor’s Annual 

Report. If we identify any significant weaknesses in these arrangements, these will be 

reported by exception in a further auditor’s report. We are satisfied that this work does 

not have a material effect on our opinion on the financial statements for the year ended 

31 March 2021.

Responsibilities of the Authority

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper 

stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness 

of these arrangements.

P
age 194



Commercial in confidence

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 

to be satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, 

nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's arrangements for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating 

effectively.

We undertake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard 

to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2021. This 

guidance sets out the arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper arrangements’. 

When reporting on these arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to 

structure their commentary on arrangements under three specified reporting criteria:

• Financial sustainability: how the Authority plans and manages its resources to 

ensure it can continue to deliver its services; 

• Governance: how the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and 

properly manages its risks; and 

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Authority uses 

information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and 

delivers its services.

We document our understanding of the arrangements the Authority has in place for 

each of these three specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support 

our risk assessment and commentary in our Auditor’s Annual Report. In undertaking 

our work, we consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant 

weaknesses in arrangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – Delay in 
certification of completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate for Torridge 

District Council for the year ended 31 March 2021 in accordance with the requirements 

of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we 

have completed our work on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources and issued our Auditor’s Annual 

Report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance 

with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 

43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that 

we might state to the Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to 

them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by 

law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and 

the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the 

opinions we have formed.

Julie Masci, Key Audit Partner

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

Bristol

Date:

P
age 195



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 196



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 197



Commercial in confidence

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Audit and 

Governance Committee at its meeting on 5 October 2021.

Yours faithfully

Name……………………………

Position………………………….

Date…………………………….

Name……………………………

Position………………………….

Date…………………………….                                                             

Signed on behalf of the Council

P
age 198



Commercial in confidence

Grant Thornton UK LLP

2 Glass Wharf

Temple Quay

Bristol

BS2 0EL

T +44 (0)117 305 7600

F +44 (0)117 955 4934

P
age 199



P
age 200



 
  

REPORT OF Finance Manager and S.151 Officer 

To: Audit & Governance Committee 

Subject: Non Compliance with Procedure Rules and Waivers 

Date: 18 July 2022 Reference:  

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:    To provide an update on any matters of non-compliance with the 

Contract & Financial Procedure Rules and on the Waivers approved by the Chief Executive and 
Section 151 Officer. 
 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

 The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the overall financial arrangements of the Council. 
Under the Financial Procedure Rules (FPR) and Contract Procedure Rules (CPR) they and 
the Chief Executive are able to authorise waivers when as may happen from time to time, it 
is not possible or practical to follow the FRP or CPR. The waivers approved since June 2021 
are reported on. 

 
2. REPORT 

The process for waiving the Contract and Financial Procedure Rules was introduced in 
February 2011. It enables any of the rules to be waived provided the reason meets one or 
more of four clear principles.  
 
The FPR (and similarly the CPR) state “Where officers consider that the Financial Procedure 
rules cannot be followed then reasoned, considered and sensible solutions to everyday 
problems that may arise shall be applied. 
 
If the answer to one or more of the following questions is “yes”, the waiving of the Financial 
Procedure Rules may be considered;  
 

 Life or Death – Is there a significant chance that the life or health of officers, 

members of the public will be put at risk? 
 Increased costs/loss of income – Will the Council incur significant avoidable costs 

or lose significant income . 
 Limited Markets – Would the Council be wasting its time obtaining quotations as 

supply of the product or service is demonstrably restricted to one or few business (or 
a select list is recommended by Central Government) 

 Embarrassment – Would the Council be criticised for failing to act promptly? 

 
There is a comprehensive procedure for obtaining a waiver which includes a standardised 
application form, the support of the relevant Senior Manager, challenge and verification by 
the Governance Team and final approval by either the Section 151 Officer or Chief 
Executive. See Appendix A for an overview of the waiver process. 
 

  

Page 201

Agenda Item 12



 
  

The graph shows the number of contract waivers approved by year. The lower numbers of 
waivers approved in the past 3 years indicates that instances of non-compliance with the 
procedure rules are being minimised and the waiver process is being utilised only when 
necessary.    
 

 
 
The reasons for the waivers are provided below, for some waivers multiple reasons were 
provided.  
 

 
 
 

3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
No specific legal implications 
 
Financial Implications 
As outlined in Appendix A 
 
Human Resources Implications 
None 
 
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
None 
 
Equality/Diversity 
Not applicable 
 

  

16 

19 
18 

28 

20 

11 11 

7 
6 

5 

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Number of Waivers by Year 

Reason for Waiver Number

Limited Market 5

Embarrassment 2

Page 202



 
  

Risk Management 
Adequate controls are in place to ensure efficient application of the Financial and Contract 
Procedure Rules. 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
This report Complies with the FPR and CPR as set out in the Council’s constitution 
 
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 
Not applicable 
 
Climate Change 
Not applicable 

 
 Lead Member View – Cllr Hackett Chair of Audit & Governance 

“Waivers are independently scrutinised and also come under scrutiny from respective Lead 
Members to ensure they were raised for legitimate business reasons, as set out in the 
Financial Procedure Rules. I am satisfied that in all instances the Council has tried to 
achieve a best value approach.”  

 
 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 

The Council’s arrangements allow for efficient approval of waivers for all of the Procedure 
Rules provided they meet at least one of the four stipulated criteria. The Governance Team 
maintains a record of waiver requests together with any transactions which are required to 
be noted and any matters of non-compliance with the Procedure Rules.   

 

 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Members are asked to note that since June 2021 there has been 5 contract waivers 
approved by the Chief Executive/ Section 151 Officer.. 

 
 

Page 203



 
  

 

Page 204



Appendix 1  

 

APPENDIX A - WAIVERS OF FINANCIAL AND CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES - 2021/22 

A précis of the details of each waiver request received are listed below together with dates of approval. 

 

No. 

F
P

R
 o

r C
P

R
? 

Applicant Reason 

W
h

ich
 R

u
le? 

R
ep

o
rt to

 

C
o

m
m

ittee 

Date approved or note if rejected 

Se
n

io
r 

M
an

age
r 

P
ro

p
e

rty 
M

an
age

r 

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 

Te
am

 

H
O

P
S o

r 

Se
ctio

n
 1

5
1

 

O
ffice

r 

146 

Bedding Plants 

Bedding plants have not been ordered. This should have taken place in November but due to staff leaving this was not captured and 
actioned. 
 
Due to limited suppliers in the area and timescales involved we have not been able to go out to 
tender so approached the company who provided stock last year who have confirmed they can deliver mid-May. This is late but essential 
given the Platinum Jubilee Celebrations this year.  
 
The value of the order is £8737.56 + VAT = £10,485.07 
 
The risk for not proceeding is empty flower bed across the Torridge district 
 
A verbal order has been given following instruction from Sean Kearney 26/01/2022 and a process is 
now in place for future orders 
 

F Rachel Gulwell Limited Markets/Embarrassment 5.1.7 N/A 
SK 

09/02/22 
n/a 

SD  

10/02/22 

DH 

10/02/22 

P
age 205



No. 

F
P

R
 o

r C
P

R
? 

Applicant Reason 

W
h

ich
 R

u
le? 

R
ep

o
rt to

 

C
o

m
m

ittee 

Date approved or note if rejected 

Se
n

io
r 

M
an

age
r 

P
ro

p
e

rty 
M

an
age

r 

G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 

Te
am

 

H
O

P
S o

r 

Se
ctio

n
 1

5
1

 

O
ffice

r 

147 

Rough Sleeper Initiative Funded Services 2022/23 

DHLUC  invites  LA's to bid for Rough Sleeper  Initiative (RSI) funding,  usually on a year on year basis.  In a change to the norm,  in 
February we had to submit a bid for 3 years funding for 2022-25. Our bid was co-produced  with  current delivery  partners and our 
Rough Sleeper Advisor and in Year 
1   (22/23) we mainly sought funding for the continuation of existing  rough sleeper services. 
 
DHLUC's  announcement on funding allocations  was delayed,  and we were only notified of our allocation on 20 May by which time,  to 
ensure the continued delivery  of existing  services from  1 
April, we had already  had to give some degree of assurance  to our current delivery  partners. 
 
Given that we are now well into Year 1, a waiver is being sought to continue working with our current delivery partners without 
interruption through 2022/23,  as current arrangements  are effective  and within  budget. The services,  delivery  partners and costs are: 
 
•  £60,895 - 56 hours per week in-reach/outreach support to rough sleepers, former rough sleepers,  and those at risk of rough 
sleeping,  including  14 hours per week money/debt advice.  Generic support  hours provided  by Encompass  Southwest and specialist  
money advice provided  by Navigate. 
 
•    £19,742 -- Housing  First -- 21  hours per week support to 3 individuals with complex needs. 
Provided by Encompass  Southwest. 
 
•  £ 17, 122 -- Gender informed  support -- 14 hours per week support to survivors  of domestic abuse and women at risk of 
domestic  where there is also a risk of or history of rough sleeping.  Provided  by North Devon Against  Domestic Abuse (NDADA). 
 
We intend to test the market and consider going out to tender for Year 2 and Year 3,  although we expect there to be limited  markets. 
 
Cllr Clarke has been consulted and is supportive of this request. 
 
 

P
age 206



 

F Helen Page Limited Markets/Embarrassment 5.1.7 
N/
A 

SD 

8/6/22 
n/a 

SD  

8/6/22 
DH 8/6/22 

148 

Young Person Homelessness Prevention service 

The Young Persons Homelessness Prevention Service (Streetwise) currently costs £32,050 per annum to run. The service is funded jointly by 
Devon County Council and Torridge District Council, with DCC meeting two thirds of the cost and TDC meeting a third. Grant funding from 
DCC is agreed on a year by year basis but has been longstanding and there is no reason to believe that funding will be withdrawn. TDC acts 
as the commissioning body. 

 
The Council last went out to tender jointly with North Devon Council in 2016 for a Streetwise Project covering northern Devon. The successful 
tender was received from Encompass Southwest, 
although a tender from Young Devon was also considered. North Devon Council brought their 
service in house in April 2018 whilst Torridge continued to commission Encompass Southwest. 

 
The Council sought to go out to tender for the service again at the end of 2019, but it was demonstrably proven that there was a limited market 
and so a waiver was approved in January 
2020.  Encompass Southwest were awarded a 12 month contract with a 12 month run on period 
which ends March 2022. 

 
A waiver is being sought for a further 2 year period because there remains a limited market 

 
Cllr Clarke has been consulted and is supportive of this request. 

 
Encompass Southwest have advised that running costs for 2022/23 will rise to £35,521  per annum. We consider this increase to be 
reasonable and are waiting to hear whether DCC will part fund the increase. 
  

 

F Helen Page Limited market 5.1.7 
N/
A 

SD 

17/1/22 
n/a 

SD 

17/1/22 

DH 
18/1/22 

  

P
age 207



No. 

F
P

R
 o

r C
P

R
? 

Applicant Reason 

W
h

ich
 R

u
le? 

R
ep

o
rt to

 

C
o

m
m

ittee 

Date approved or note if rejected 

H
e

ad
 o

f Se
rvice 

P
ro

p
e

rty 

M
an

age
r 

In
te

rn
al A

u
d

it  

H
O

P
S 

Se
ctio

n
 1

5
1

 

O
ffice

r 

149 

 

Environment Centre – Carbon Consultant 

Following agreement from Full Council to move away from a BREEAM rating for the project in 
favour of a more appropriate carbon reduction approach to the design and delivery, we have sought to identify a suitable local specialist with 
the ability to be an integral part of the team through our existing procurement frameworks. The consultancies available through our normal 
frameworks 
were not identified as carbon specialists, most were either environmental or mechanical consultants that offered carbon consultancy as an 
additional service. 

 
Our sustainability officer is currently involved in other projects where the level of service being provided by other consultants locally was of 
limited benefit to the project and has also been unable to recommend an alternative based on enquiries with others in the sector. 
Our own research proved to be of limited success, we were therefore guided by a recommendation from the architects on the project to 
consider Eight Associates who they have worked with successfully on other projects.  Eight Associates are not an any frameworks and we 
are therefore unable to direct award or utilise any pre-determined  rates for the specialist input required. 

 
There appears to be a shortage of competent consultancies offering the specialist services required in a busy market. The consultancies that 
are in the market appear to be very busy with the increasing workload involved on the back of many local authorities committing to carbon 
plans and the journey to net zero. 
 

To achieve carbon reduction opportunities on this project we need to utilise a specialist in the early stages of the design process to ensure 
that maximum benefit of any input at the front end of the project. The time taken to source a suitable consultancy means that we are now at 
the point where an appointment is becoming increasingly time critical if the benefits are to be realised. 
 
A full p roposal  has been obtained from Eight Associates,  which has been assessed by our sustainability officer who has managed 
to omit one of the services offered in favour of a more cost• e ffective  approach through established links with  the ND Biosphere 
Team.  Additional e fficienc ies have been achieved through subsequent discussions with Eight Associates to further reduce the fees 
involved.  A full copy of the fee p roposal  is available for review if required.  We are only seeking to appoint Eight Associates for the 
RIBA Stages 1-3  at this stage.   

P
age 208



The fees involved  amount to 
£22,410 for RIBA Stages 1-3  (a copy o f the fee proposals is  attached below). 
 
Further fees will be calculated on completion of the in itia l stages to determine the merits  of any subsequent involvemen t through the 
delivery phase of the project. If further involvement is required, the inten tion  would be for this will be novated through the main 
construction  con tract. 
 
It is worth noting that the fees involve d  are not additional  costs for the project. The original BREEAM requirement would have 
involved fees that would be directly comparable in terms of the assessment and involvement required at this stage.  This waiver is  
only required due to the specialist nature of the work involve d  rather than the a ctual value of the fees. 
(By way of comparison,  the BREEAM fees for The Burrows Centre amounted to just over £15k for a 
lower value project). 
 

 

F Adrian Redwood Embarrassment 5.1.7 
N/
A 

SK 

27/02/22 
Yes 

SD 

01/3/22 
DH 01/03/22 

 

No. 

F
P

R
 o

r C
P

R
? 

Applicant Reason 

W
h

ich
 R

u
le? 

R
ep

o
rt to

 

C
o

m
m

ittee 

Date approved or note if rejected 

H
e

ad
 o

f Se
rvice 

P
ro

p
e

rty 

M
an

age
r 

In
te

rn
al A

u
d

it  

H
O

P
S 

Se
ctio

n
 1

5
1

 

O
ffice

r 

150 

 

Taxi Demand Survey 

Background. 

There is a requirement to undertake a demand study to allow the Council to maintain its taxi plate restriction.  Failure to do so may result 

in legal action against the Council. There is only one company with the necessary knowledge and expertise to undertake a demand 
study which can be 

P
age 209



defended in court if challenged. The cost of the survey is £8,970 these costs are recovered from the hackney carriage fees paid by the 
trade. 

 

F Chris Parkhouse Limited Markets 5.1.7 
N/

A 

JW 

06/4/22 
Yes 

SD 

07/4/22 

DH 

07/04/22 

 

 

P
age 210



       . 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2022/23 

 

 Cycle 

1 

Cycle 2 Cycle 

3 

Cycle 4 Cycle 

5 

Cycle 6 Cycle 7 Cycle 

8 

  19/07/2022  27/09/2022  17/01/2023 04/04/2023  
         

        

Audit 
Committee 

    
  

 
 

Risk 
Management 

 Cyber Security      
 

Internal Audit 

 Estate Management       

       
 

       
 

        
 

Accounts 

        

        

        

        

External 
Audit 

        

        

   
   

 
 

Note: At the end of each meeting, should it be deemed desirable, Members may meet with the External Auditors privately. 

P
age 211

A
genda Item

 13


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	3 Action List
	7 Estate Management Audit Report
	8 Devon Audit Partnership Update Report
	9 Draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22
	Untitled
	Untitled

	10 Grant Thornton Update Report
	11 Final Accounts Findings Report - Grant Thornton
	12 Contract Waivers - Annual Report
	12. Contract waiver Appendix 1

	13 Forward Plan

